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Chairman’s Accolades and Awards and Landsea Group's
2014 Events on Green Properties

ETENKRERREREMRFER MREMHME20145%

CHAIRMAN'S ACCOLADES OR AWARDS FRENREBHRE

Landsea Group ranked 55th in the Top 500 China Real Estate
Companies Survey 2014 and ranked second in the Top 10 China
Real Estate Companies in Innovative Capability 2014. Mr. Tian
Ming, the Chairman, was awarded the China Real Estate
Outstanding Person 2014 (2014 R B b EHE H A 9).

On the list of the Top 100 China Real Estate Enterprises 2014
announced by China Real Estate TOP 10 Research, formed by
Enterprise Research Institute of Development Research Center
of the State Council, Institute of Real Estate Studies of Tsinghua
University and China Index Academy, Landsea ranked 51st and
was honored the TOP 10 Operation Efficiency (i % &% &= TOP10
58 ), being among the top 100 enterprises for 4 consecutive
years.

It was the third year for Landsea Group to be listed on the
China’s Top 100 Green Companies.

The research, development and experimental base of Landsea
in Changxing was recognised as the “National Promotional and
Demonstration Base of Green Architecture” (BIZR A4k & 72 2 4
B E M),

1. 2014 B FEHE 50058 RI5F - BAFT S EBE
#5507 - A - BAFER20UFTBEEBE
FEEMRAIFEEN 1058 LESE2H BF R
FHERERIE 2014 h Bl S EE B H A YD) -

2. HBEBRERMEPOCENEN  BFERE
EHEMFTAMMF RIgE8MAERAKNPREHE
HWETOP 10 RAEE M 2014FHREFE 1 H
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KTOP 10582 « BEIIFEABTBRDE -
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Landsea Group listed on the China’s

e N Top 100 Green Companies
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Chairman’s Accolades and Awards and Landsea Group'’s

2014 Events on Green Properties
FENKEBERREREAFEE N EZEHE201451

“Bruck”, certified by Passive House Institute, was the first large-
scale passive house being awarded such certification in the PRC.
It was also granted the Three-Star Identification in terms of
green buildings in China and followed the certification standards
of DGNB from Germany and LEED from the US. “Bruck” was
honored the “Elite Award in the Best Innovative Practice” (#5%
B ERIFTE B ) in the same year.

With the sustained practice and innovation in the green building
industry, Landsea was complimented as “The Most Respected
Enterprise in China 2013-2014" (2013-2014 £ E Bl s X B (>
%), hosted by The Economic Observer.

With the case of “Scientific Marketing Innovation of Landsea
Green Living Museum”, Landsea’s green properties won the
2014 China’s Best Brand-Building Case Award.

Landsea ranked among the “Top 50 Globalised Emerging
Chinese Enterprises” in the Blue Book of Chinese Enterprise
Globalisation (2014).

Landsea Group won The Most Respected
Enterprise in China 2013-2014
EAFF SR B E2013-2014 F B R X B A ¥ 42
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Chairman’s Accolades and Awards and Landsea Group's

2014 Events on Green Properties

ETENRERREREMRFEE MeEME2014F%

LANDSEA GROUP’S 2014 EVENTS ON GREEN

PROPERTIES
1. 24 February
2. 27 March

3. 22 April

4. 13June

5 2luy

6.  291uly

Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd. (the
“Company"”) announced the provision of entrusted
development management services of property
projects for Landsea Group.

Landsea ranked 51st in the “Top 100 China Real
Estate Enterprises 2014".

Landsea was on the list of “China’s Top 100 Green
Companies” for 3 consecutive years.

Landsea shared its green transformation strategy
at the China Green Companies Alliance
Roundtable.

The Company adopted the restricted share award
scheme.

The Company obtained its first project with
minority interest, prone to asset-light
transformation.

Participants in the China Green Companies Alliance Roundtable
HJE B4R 2 Al BR B R & 2 A
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Chairman’s Accolades and Awards and Landsea Group'’s
2014 Events on Green Properties

TENKRERRERENRFER FMEME20145%

7. 8August Bruck Passive House of Landsea was certified by 7. BEBE B m B R B EE R E
Passive House Institute and the China’s Passive B RE - P RS
Architecture Summit (F BB X B ES B H1E) ABESERBERBGER
was successfully organised at the green building WA DhER 1T o

base in Changxing.

8. 25September  The Company privately placed to Great Wall Pan 8. 9A25H AARMRBIREALSREE
Asia of three-year term private notes with an BIEETN=FHLEGES -
aggregate amount of US$100,000,000.

9. 24 October Landsea was complimented as “The Most 9. 10A248  BAFSRECBEEZRBRII2013-
Respected Enterprise in China 2013-2014" by 014FEFHAZZEHPE] -
The Economic Observer.

10. 21 November  Landsea ranked among Top 50 Globalised 10. MA21H  AAFFEREPES R LI
Emerging Chinese Enterprises. 5058 °

11. 13 December  Bruck Passive House of Landsea was honoredthe  11. 12 H13H8  BAEHE S S =480 [1ETs8E
“Elite Award in the Best Innovative Practice”. SIFRFTERE] -

China’s Passive Architecture Summit was successfully organised at the green building base in Changxing
o [0 45 BY = 44 15 U G 1B 1 = BRAT B E M pK D R 77
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

| am pleased to present to our shareholders the business review for
the year ended 31 December 2014 and the prospects for 2015 of
Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd. (“Landsea” or the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”).

REVIEW OF 2014

The year 2014 was the Company’s first full year of operation since the
completion of its acquisition by the controlling shareholder of the
Company, Landsea Group Co., Ltd. (“Landsea Group”). With the strong
support from Landsea Group, the Company achieved rapid growth in
terms of asset size, profitability, project development and
development capabilities.
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The Group, as the sole listed platform undertaking the green
residential property development business of Landsea Group,
continued to enjoy Landsea Group's full support in terms of funding,
staffing and technologies in 2014.

o For the year ended 31 December 2014, Landsea Group granted
to the Group shareholder’s loans in an aggregate amount of
RMB 2.117 billion.

. On 23 February 2014, the Group entered into a Project
Development and Management Services Agreement with
Landsea Group to provide development management services
for the existing projects of Landsea Group. Moreover, Landsea
Group transferred a majority of the management staff of its
property development business to the Group to put together a
strong and experienced development and management team
for the Group. Through the provision of development
management services for Landsea Group, the Group recorded a
total service income of approximately RMB529 million in 2014.

. Landsea Group also injected the Wuxi Tiancui project into the
Group during the year. In 2014, the project contributed
recognised sales revenue of approximately RMB119 million to
the Group and recorded contracted sales of approximately
RMB134 million.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

OPERATING RESULTS
In 2014, the real estate market in China has undergone a round of
profound adjustment which is still going on.

The Group had a total of six projects put up for sale during the year.
Save for the Wuxi Tiancui project which is an ongoing sales initiative,
the remaining five projects, which are new projects undertaken by the
Ccompany since the completion of the acquisition, met the target of
making their debuts in the fourth quarter. Thanks to its precise
positioning of market and product, the Group achieved decent
performance for the initial sales. In 2014, the contract sales of the
Group together with its associated companies were approximately
RMB1.79 billion in aggregate and the total gross floor area (“GFA") sold
was 152,000 square meters. During the year, revenue of the Group
was approximately RMB704 million (representing an increase of
approximately 30.9 times as compared to 2013), of which income from
development management services was approximately RMB529
million. Profit attributable to the owners of the Company was
approximately RMB302 million, representing an increase of
approximately 9.6 times as compared to 2013.

PROJECT DEVELOPMENT

In early 2014, the Group proposed and implemented the operation
strategy of “asset-light transformation and profit diversification”,
leveraging on Landsea’s existing technologies, brand name and
development management capabilities to materialise cooperation with
financial institutions, developers and other enterprises whose
resources are complementary to the Group, with a view to jointly
investing in and developing projects as well as putting more efforts
into asset-light businesses such as joint development, projects with
minority interests and entrusted development. Such businesses may
generate gains on equity investments and income from management
and technology services. Extra income will also be available in case of
successful operation of projects. The Group has adopted this strategy
to address market changes.

LANDSEA GREEN PROPERTIES CO., LTD. ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group has a land bank
GFA of 2,104,259 square meters of which approximately 1,527,931
square meters were accounted for under the attributable interest of
the Group. During the year, the Group purchased 5 parcels of land and
acquired interests in 5 projects in Shanghai, Nanjing, Hangzhou,
Suzhou and Wuxi, with a total GFA of approximately 1,690,000 square
meters. The GFA attributable to the Group increased by approximately
1,110,000 square meters. In addition, the Group provides
development, construction and management as well as a full range of
green building technical services in respect of the Binhu District
Project in Hefei with & IEZE @ UL E £ E BB A7) (Hefei Hualun
Culture Industry Investment Company Limited*) and will charge fees
for the development services provided and the technologies used. In
January 2015, the Group joined forces with Shanghai Construction
Group Co., Ltd., & T 8) &= B R A 7) (Pingan Real Estate Company
Limited*) and China Merchants Property Development Co., Ltd. to
invest in the development of the Nanjing Hexi CBD Project. The Group
is responsible for the development, construction, management and
sale of the residential properties under the project with a GFA of
150,000 square meters and will charge fees for the development
management and technical services provided.

Among the projects undertaken by the Group so far, Nanjing Future
Home and Suzhou Green County of Landsea are joint developments;
Suzhou Science and Technology City Project and Nanjing Hexi CBD
Project are projects with minority interests; and Hefei Binhu Land
Parcel Project is an entrusted development. The three business
models under the strategy of “asset-light transformation and profit
diversification” materialised in 2014.

Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

FINANCIAL CONTROL

The Group maintains a prudent financial policy, closely monitoring the
security of cash flow and consistently implementing such risk control
measures as stress tests, capital adequacy alert and contingency
mechanism. To address possible market fluctuations and meet the
requirements for operation and development, the Group strives to
control capital costs and optimise its debt structure by reasonably
arranging the repayment schedules. As of 31 December 2014, the
aggregated amount of interest-bearing liabilities of the Group was
approximately RMB6.08 billion. The annual average interest rate of
borrowings was 6.7%, lower than the borrowing costs of the
comparable domestic developers.

During the reporting period, the Group actively developed a diversified
financing channel, both domestic and overseas, and successfully
issued to Great Wall Pan Asia International Investment Co., Limited (&
3R 0 BB & B IR A 7)) the 3-year private notes with a principal
amount of US$100 million on conditions more favourable than those
obtained by the domestic property developers by way of IPO in the
same period, reflecting the market recognition of the Company’s
influence in the industry and its brand name. It is an important move
for the Company to restore its ability to raise fund.

INCENTIVE SCHEME FOR STAFF

A share incentive scheme is in operation for Landsea’s senior
management and key executives with potential. The share incentive
will be awarded annually subject to the operating results of the
Company and performances of different units and individuals. The
share incentive scheme was adopted in 2014 and a total of 50
employees were granted 17,828,000 restricted shares of the Company
in aggregate.

LANDSEA GREEN PROPERTIES CO., LTD. ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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CORPORATE CULTURE

Landsea is a company adhering to the principle of openness and
integrity. At the inception of Landsea Group, its founders set up three
codes of practice, namely “Integrity”, “Unity” and “Learning”. Integrity:
safeguarding the company’s interests at all times; Unity:
communication and collaboration, avoiding pointless personnel
dispute; Learning: building a team with a passion to learn for the
purpose of enhancing competitiveness. A team with integrity, unity
and a passion to learn is essential to the organic growth of Landsea.
“People-oriented”, “Open” and “Green” are the core values of
Landsea. Landsea'’s values derive from “people-orientedness”. Taking
people as the essential, we judge from the perspective of people and
regard people as the starting point and reversion point of all initiatives.
Landsea’s attitude is openness, which applies internally and externally.
There are four rules, namely “No Bribery”, “No Tax Dodging”, "No
Accounting Fraud” and “No Deception to Customers” which are
strictly followed by Landsea and expressly set out in the staff
handbook. Green is Landsea’s underlying colour as well as its symbol
and essence. Landsea holds the harmonious and sustainable
relationship between humanity and nature in high regard, aspiring to
materialise the green concept not only at product level but also at

company level so as to achieve sustainable development.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

PROSPECTS FOR 2015

MACRO-ECONOMY

The global economy will remain deep in the post crisis consolidation
in 2015. Issues in the wake of the financial crisis and the possible
decline of growth rate still cast shadow over the economic growth
around the world. The world economy will continue its course of
uneven recovery where the US will maintain its upward momentum
while Europe and Japan will stay weak. In the third quarter of 2014, the
US declared its exit from the third round of quantitative easing (QE3).
Such move will result in the appreciation of the US dollar and in turn
increase the attractiveness of US$ assets and speed up the
repatriation of offshore funds back to the US.

The original factor-driven pattern of economic growth in the PRC finds
it hard to sustain and the PRC economy will bid farewell to the rapid
growth period and enters a moderate growth period.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The real estate industry in the PRC is not spared by the slowdown in
economic growth. 2014 marked the first year of the “silver era”.
Judging from the demographic structure, urbanisation process and the
living area per capita of the urban population, the effective demand
supporting the long-term development of China’s real estate industry
still exist, but the growth rate will gradually slow down. As the
pressure on dealing with the environment increases and the problem
of smog worsens, green eco-friendly housing will expand, in terms of
market share, from a small segment of the real estate industry to
become mainstream and an industry trend, drawing attention and
recognition of the home buyers and developers.

The major problems currently facing China’s real estate industry are
high inventory level and overcapacity. We expect the dominant theme
for 2015 to be “lowering inventory level and reducing capacity”, which
could be a painful process for the industry. In this process, the margin
of the industry will further flatten and competition will intensify. As a
result, some developers will wind up their businesses. Mergers and
acquisitions as well as restructuring will emerge and an industry
reshuffle will set in. In 2015, the government will address the situation
the other way round by introducing remedial package. We expect the
differentiation between developers will go further. While 1st tier cities
will remain stable as a whole, deeper differentiation among the 2nd
tier cities will bring about a market downturn in most of these cities
and a broader downturn will continue in the 3rd tier and 4th tier cities.
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OPERATION STRATEGY OF THE GROUP

The industry landscape is changing significantly and the Group’s
operation philosophy also changes accordingly. The real estate
industry has gone through the stage of extensive growth. The Group
has completely given up the traditional approach of pursuing growth
merely in terms of scale and rate and turned to quality growth as its
future development objective. Although the Group is highly conscious
of sales performance, sales figures are no longer a crucial indicator for
performance assessment starting from this year, and enhancing
margin as well as profitability has become the ultimate goal. At the
same time, “budget management” will be the Group's primary goal of
the year, placing more emphasis on achieving enhancement. In 2015,
the Group will implement a comprehensive budget management by
dividing functions strictly adhering to the approved budget and
tightening control on costs and expenses to enhance cost-
effectiveness.

In 2015, the Group will continue to pursue the full implementation of
the "asset-light strategy and profit-diversification strategy”, leveraging
on Landsea’s existing strengths in technology, brand name and
management capability to materialise various forms of cooperation
such as joint development with financial institutions and developers,
projects with minority interests, and entrusted development. We strive
to become an outstanding resource integrator in the industry. We
spread the operation risks of the enterprise by lowering the asset
weighting of individual project. Besides gain on equity investments,
there are also gains arising from development management and
technical services as well as the extra profit-sharing arrangement.
Such service income will become new growth points of the
enterprise’s profitability. Apart from the above projects, the Group is
currently negotiating a new project and expects more entrusted
projects to be concluded shortly and similar service contracts may be
granted in Nanjing, Suzhou, Changzhou, etc., covering management
services for entrusted projects, brand licensing, design and technical
services. The Group will actively develop its asset-light business so as
to considerably increase the proportion of service income in the
Group's revenue. Following the business models of Tishman Speyer
and CapitalLand, the Group will capitalise on its existing organisation
strengths to build up its capabilities in effecting vertical integration of
investment, development, operation of properties.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

The Group will actively seek opportunities for merger and acquisition
arising amid the industry downturn to acquire property projects and
equity interests of companies, expand its business scale and outrun
its competitors in a market downturn.

The Group will make efforts to cope with the training and incentive
issues. It will establish and strengthen the training systems, both in-
house and external, for human resources, focusing on enhancing the
professional capabilities of vertical integration and service capabilities
required for implementing the asset-light businesses. The Group will
explore and devise an effective incentive mechanism corresponding
to the asset-light business model. In addition to the existing share
incentive scheme for senior management, the Group also considers
the introduction of a number of incentive measures, such as the
partnership system at project company level by allowing associated
investment in the projects and the profit-sharing arrangement to
facilitate the risk-sharing and mutual benefits between the Company
and its staff.

The increasingly serious problem of smog in the PRC has become a
nuisance to its residents. As a professional real estate developer
highly focus on green technology, the Group is committed to stepping
up its efforts in energy conservation and emission reduction as well as
smog prevention. The combined energy consumption of the
construction and real estate sectors in the PRC that makes up 47.8%
of the total energy consumption of the nation is the critical cause of
smog. In 2015, the Group will continue to provide green residential
properties with high energy conservation rate and high degree of
comfort. Green building technologies will be further applied to various
product lines. Starting from 2015, a smog prevention system will be
deployed on all the Group’s new products on the market. Besides,
brand new home products with particular attention being paid to
indoor air quality, degree of comfort, renovation-related pollution and
intelligent control will be launched. Attempts will be made to provide
formaldehyde-free housing by controlling formaldehyde pollution at
the source. Further, the Group will adopt the “Bruck” passive house
technology accredited by Deutsche Energie-Agentur and the
Passivhaus Institut in Germany to expedite the application of such
technology in its property development.
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Working for a year and a half, the Group has largely accomplished the
post-acquisition integration. The acquisition process of the Company
will have exceeded 24 months by mid-2015. The Group is going to
present a brand new image to its shareholders and the investors.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The continuous support from stakeholders and valuable contribution
from the dedicated staff at all levels are essential to the healthy
development of the Group. On behalf of the Board, | would like to take
this opportunity to extend our heartfelt gratitude to our staff,
shareholders, bondholders and business associates for their support.
We will strive on to create value for our customers, staff, shareholders
and other stakeholders.

Tian Ming
Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 31 March 2015

*for identification purpose only
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERGREEAERHN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Tian Ming

Aged 54, was appointed as the Chairman of the Board and an
executive Director on 31 July 2013. He is the chairman of the
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and a member
of the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) of
the Company. He has a Master of Business Administration from China
Europe International Business School. Mr. Tian founded Landsea
Group Co. Ltd. (BAFF & B & 5 B R 2 7)) ("Landsea”) in 2001. He is
now the largest shareholder and also the Chairman and President of
Landsea and its subsidiaries (“Landsea Group”). Under the leadership
of Mr. Tian, Landsea’s asset scale has expanded from RMB10 million
registered capital on its incorporation to its current total assets value
of over RMB20 billion. Mr. Tian has more than 10 years’ extensive
experience in the fields of competitive strategy, operation
management and property investment and development. Mr. Tian is
widely recognised by industry peers as a pioneer in green property
industry.

Mr. Xiang Jiong

Aged 44, was appointed as an executive Director on 18 November
2013 and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 23 February
2014. Mr. Xiang is responsible for the overall operating management
of the Group. He holds a Bachelor’s degree of Engineering from
Huagiao University and a Masters degree of Business Administration
from China Europe International Business School. Mr. Xiang joined
Landsea Group in 2003, has been the marketing manager, executive
marketing director, general manager of Zhejiang region and executive
vice president of Landsea Group. Mr. Xiang has over 20 years of
working experiences in real estate marketing and operations
management.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Ms. Shen Leying

Aged 37, was appointed as an executive Director on 31 July 2013 and
was re-designated as the Co-Chief Executive Officer of the Company
on 23 February 2014. She is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. Ms. Shen is responsible for the Group's financial and
operational management, investment and finance strategies, legal
affairs management, brand building and investor relations. She has a
Master’s of Media Communication from Shanghai University. Ms. Shen
had been working in Gallup Consulting from 2002 to 2011 and had
served in the positions such as research and consulting director,
member of the Management Committee of Shanghai Office. She led a
team to provide management consulting services to over 60 global
and mainland well-known enterprises and has provided management
consulting services to Landsea Group during 2009 to 2011.

Ms. Shen joined Landsea Group in 2011 and served as the manager of
Marketing Center and general manager of Nanjing property regional
office in Landsea Group. Ms. Shen has more than 10 years’ experience
in various areas like corporate management, operational efficiency
management, market strategy, customers relationship management,

brand research, leadership evaluation and development.

Mr. Xie Yuanjian

Aged 49, was appointed as an executive Director and the Chief
Technology Officer of the Company on 31 July 2013. He has a Bachelor
of Architecture from Logistical Engineering University of PLA, Masters
of Business Administration in China Europe International Business
School, and is a national first class registered architect and senior
engineer. Mr. Xie joined Landsea Group in 2003 and served as the
general manager of R&D and design institute, general manager of
product center, and vice president of products in Landsea Group,
where he had been in charge of the work related to green
architectural products and technology for a long time. Mr. Xie has
more than 20 years' working experience in the fields of architectural
design and technology R&D.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERGREEAERHN

Mr. Lu Baoxiang

Aged 40, was appointed as an executive Director on 23 February 2014.
He is responsible for the administration and human resources of the
Group. He graduated from the Philosophy Department of Nanjing
University specialising in Management and Decision. Mr. Lu joined
Landsea Group in 2004. He served as director of real estate marketing
of Landsea, deputy general manager of Nanjing Real Estate Company,
general manager of market customer service center, general manager
of property company, general manager of human resource and
administrative center, vice president of Landsea Group. Mr. Lu has
over 15 years of working experiences in marketing of real estate,
human resource management, property management, operation,
development and management of real estate.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Ms. Zhou Qin

Aged 41, was appointed as a non-executive Director on 5 January
2015. She is a member of each of the audit committee of the Company
(the "Audit Committee”) and the Remuneration Committee. Ms. Zhou
earned her Executive Master of Business Administration degree from
China Europe International Business School in 2001 and MBA degree
from Nanjing University. Ms. Zhou has nearly 20 years' experience in
business development, investment and operation management in real
estate. She joined Landsea Group in 2002 and served as the regional
general manager in multiple locations, such as Nanjing, Suzhou and
Shanghai. After that Ms. Zhou led Landsea Group’s global strategic
deployment while serving as the assistant to Chairman, general
manager of Shanghai Landsea Architecture Technology Co., Ltd., and
general manager of Landsea Architecture Design Institute.

Currently, Ms. Zhou is the vice president of Landsea Group and
responsible for overseas business exploration. She played the
fundamental role to facilitate Landsea Group’s US business
development and investment. Since 1 December 2014, she served on
the board of directors in a Landsea Group's company in U.S.A. and
also the chairman of its investment committee.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Xu Xiaonian

Aged 61, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
31 July 2013. He is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
a member of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee. He obtained a PHD of Economics from University of
California Davis in 1991. He was the managing director and head of
research department in China International Capital Corporation
Limited, and senior economist of Merrill Lynch (Asia Pacific) and
consultant of World Bank. Currently, Mr. Xu serves as the professor of
Economics and Finance in China Europe International Business School
and his research areas include macroeconomics, finance, financial
institutions and markets, transition economics and China's economic
reforms. Mr. Xu is a famous Chinese economist and was granted the
highest award of economics study in China, the “Sun Yefang Economic
Science Award”. Mr. Xu has more than 30 years' experience in
economics analysis.

Mr. Ding Yuan

Aged 45, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
31 July 2013. He is the chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of each of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. He has a PHD of Management Science from College of
Business Administration, Bordeaux IV University in France. Mr. Ding
used to serve as a tenured professor of Accounting and Management
Control in HEC School of Management in France. Currently, he is the
Chair in Accounting of Cathay Capital in CEIBS and the co-editor of
The International Journal of Accounting. Mr. Ding is an independent
director of Magindustries Corp., a TSX listed company in Canada, and
has been an independent director of TCL Corporation (TCLEE & (H A
[R 2 7)), an A-share listed company, from June 2008 to August 2014.
Mr. Ding has more than 10 years”™ experience in teaching and studying
financial accounting, financial statement analysis, corporate
governance and M&AS.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERGREEAERHN

Mr. Lee Kwan Hung

Aged 49, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
31 July 2013. He is a member of each of the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee. He
received his Bachelor of Laws (Honors) and Postgraduate Certificate in
Laws from the University of Hong Kong in 1988 and 1989 respectively.
He was then admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1991 and in
England and Wales in 1997, and is currently a consultant of Howse
Williams Bowers. He was a senior manager of the Listing Division of
the Stock Exchange from 1993 to 1994. Mr. Lee is experienced in IPOs
and corporate financing, including assisting the listing of Country
Garden Holdings Company Limited in Hong Kong. Mr. Lee is currently
an independent non-executive director of Embry Holdings Limited,
NetDragon Websoft Inc., Asia Cassava Resources Holdings Limited,
Futong Technology Development Holdings Limited, Walker Group
Holdings Limited, Newton Resources Limited, Tenfu (Cayman) Holdings
Company Limited and China BlueChemical Ltd., the shares of these
companies are currently listed on the Stock Exchange. He was an
independent non-executive director of New Universe International
Group Limited and Far East Holdings International Limited until his
resignation on 18 July 2012 and 12 November 2014 respectively, the
shares of both companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. He was
also an independent non-executive director of Yuexiu REIT Asset
Management Limited (the manager of Yuexiu Real Estate Investment
Trust) until his resignation on 7 October 2014, the units of the said
trust are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Tian Jiong

Aged 35, was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company
on 5 January 2015. He obtained Master Degree of Applied Finance
from Tsinghua University — Macquarie University in 2007. Mr. Tian
had over 10 years of experience in real estate sector covering areas in
corporate finance, merger and acquisition, private equity investment
and investor relations management and so forth. Prior to joining the
Company, he served as the General Manager of corporate finance
department in Powerlong Real Estate Holdings Limited (HK stock code:
01238), Deputy General Manager of private equity investment
department in China Development Bank Capital and Senior Manager
of corporate finance department in Sino-Ocean Land Holdings Limited
(HK Stock Code: 03377).

Mr. Ding Feng

Aged 35, was appointed as the Chief Investment Officer of the
Company on 31 July 2013. He is a graduate of Civil Engineering Studies
from Southeast University and also a graduate of Business
Administration Studies from China Central Radio and TV University.
Mr. Ding joined Landsea Group in 2006 and was the Manager of Land
Project Investment Department of Landsea, the General Manager of
Landsea Chengdu Property Company (8 &F BX #B # Z= 22 /) and the
Deputy General Manager of the Operation Center of the Landsea
Group, responsible for land investment activities of the Landsea
Group. Mr. Ding has more than 8 years' working experience in land
investment and M&As as well as property development, operation and
management.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Chan Yuen Ying, Stella

Ms. Chan was appointed as company secretary and authorised
representative of the Company on 1 November 2006. Ms. Chan is a
fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Company Secretaries. She is also a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Directors. Ms. Chan has over 15 years' experience in handling listed
company secretarial matters.
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Sustainability Report of Landsea Green Properties

ettt ErFEERRS

INTRODUCTION

Landsea Group became the ultimate controlling shareholder of the
Company in June 2013. The Company is the only listed platform of
Landsea Group's green property business. In more than 10 years’
development since its establishment at the end of 2001 till present,
Landsea Group has gradually cultivated a complete set of values and
concepts of sustainable development covering all facets of business
development. In 2014, Landsea Green Properties implemented three
strategies, including profit maximisation, asset-light transformation
and cash flow protection, in response to the industry reform, as well
as adopted strategic guidance of “asset-light transformation and profit
diversification” and relied on internet orientation to hew out an
innovative reform.

As the successor of Landsea Group’s principal business, the Company
will continue to preserve and carry forward the values and concepts
of sustainable development of Landsea Group. The concepts of
sustainable development of Landsea Group and its progress
throughout the past year will be specifically introduced in this
sustainability report. Please be aware that the following
contents (including figures) do not represent the position or
financial performance of the Company in 2014 nor the
position which will necessarily be achieved by the Company
in the future. For years to come, we will publish sustainability
reports from the perspective of the Company.
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Sustainability Report of Landsea Green Properties
e ENSEERERS

CORPORATE VISION: EVERLASTING GREEN
COMPANY

Landsea holds in esteem the concept of harmonious coexistence of
human, society and nature, and realises its corporate vision of serving
the community and built-to-last by exploring and staying on the path
of sustainable development.

CORPORATE SPIRIT: LANDSEA, ALWAYS ON THE
ROAD
Motto: high aspiration, sure-footing and perseverance

MISSION: GREEN INNOVATES FUTURE
By adopting green thinking and technologies, Landsea will continue to
provide the market with social and environmental-friendly products, in
order to promote social progress and become an outstanding
corporate citizen with strong sense of responsibility.

CORE VALUES AND CONCEPTS OF LANDSEA.
"“"PEOPLE-ORIENTEDNESS, OPENNESS AND GREEN"
Landsea aspires to turn into a company brimming with continuous
innovation and humanistic spirit. Adhering to its mission of “Green
Innovates Future” and materialising its dream of “Everlasting Green
Company”, Landsea endeavors to pursuing its green strategy and
exploring a sustainable development model to become an everlasting
corporate citizen.

People-orientedness is the origin of Landsea’s values. Taking people
as the essential, we measure all things from the perspective of people
and regard people as the starting point and recurrent point of all
initiatives. Openness is Landsea’s attitude. We stick to the openness
principle both internally and externally. Green is the symbol, element
as well as the grounding of Landsea. The products of Landsea are
green, and so is the Company's sustainable operation.
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PEOPLE-ORIENTEDNESS

Customer First

Placing staff development as the prerequisite for the
development of the Company

Continuously creating value for shareholders

Achieving a win-win situation with partners

Making contribution to the community

OPENNESS
Emphasising openness and transparency with equal opportunities
Following the rules, respecting the rules,

studying the rules and applying the rules

GREEN
In pursuit of a sustainable development model for both its products
and the Company

CHAPTER ONE CUSTOMER

People-orientedness is the origin of Landsea’s values. People are
regarded as the starting point and recurrent point of all initiatives of
Landsea.

Landsea is always customer-oriented with a mission to meet
customers’ needs. Landsea’s customer service system covers a series
of contacts from product positioning before kickoff of the project to
the owners’ occupancy. Customer service staff of Landsea would
participate in all stages of the project development. At each stage,
they stringently control the service standard and product quality in the
best interest of the customers.

Landsea pays particular attention to quality realisation of customers’
experience and sets strict standards for customer reception.
Furthermore, through its “secret clients”, Landsea comprehensively
reviews the overall service quality on sale sites and compiles reports.
In the meantime, Landsea even provides trial stay for customers in
some cities to get first-hand experience of charm of green technology
system.

In 2014, accumulated volume of deliveries by real estate companies
under Landsea Group reached over 7,000 units. Our 400 national-wide
customer service hotlines received 1,281 calls during the year with
100% answer rate, 100% tracking rate and 74% satisfaction rate.
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LANDSEA’S PROPERTY SERVICES

Customer is the only reason for the existence of Landsea. The only
way to provide better professional customer services is to enhance
service capacity unceasingly. Landsea will continue to increase the
values of its products and services as well as customer perception
values, and achieve a win-win situation between customers and
enterprises.

Established in 2005, Landsea Group’s property management team is a
national second grade qualified property management enterprise, a
standing council unit of Nanjing Property Management Association (8
ERMYEETIEWE EKIESEEN) and a member unit of Jiangsu
Property Management Association (T#x& W EEE e e 8 BE ),
and obtained the 1SO09001:2000 — Quality Management System
Certification in 2008 and the 1SO14001:2004 — Environmental

Management System Certification in 2009.

Upon implementation of dual system certification, the level of
normalisation and standardisation in providing property services by
Landsea Group have been enhanced, which continuously improved its
property service quality and materialised the “green living” dream of
most of the owners as well as gradually built up its two core
competitive strengths, i.e. operations with IT systems and routine
property services, and grew into an outstanding property operation
and service enterprise with distinct characteristics of differentiation
across the nation. In addition to the award of “Three-Star Green
Building Design Identification” (= £ 4 4% & 2 S % 5112 %), Landsea
International Block in Suzhou was also awarded “Three-Star Green
Building Operation Identification” (= £ &% 4% & i 58 iF 1712 %), the
highest ranking for green buildings in the PRC. Only two projects in the
PRC were awarded this label.

Since the engagement of The Gallup Organization, an independent
third party, to conduct surveys on customer satisfaction in 2009, for
the year ended 2014, the overall satisfaction average of Landsea’s
properties is 92.2, maintaining its top tier rankings among the industry,
showing high recognition from the owners on Landsea’s brand image
with innovative product features.
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CHAPTER TWO STAFF
Landsea regards employees as the core resources of the Company.

Landsea continuously adheres to the principle of people-orientedness.
People are regarded as the starting point and recurrent point of all
initiatives of Landsea. Employees are the core resources of the
Company. Landsea is devoted to the creation of an open and positive
working environment and the provision of equal opportunities for its
employees and endeavors to offer a stage for more talents to play a
role. Landsea advocates the reward-driven culture which measures its
employees’ performance in terms of achievements and gives them a
sense of accomplishment to motivate their contribution. Landsea
attaches importance to the cultivation of its employees’ working ability
and individual quality instead of merely providing them with job
opportunities. With its value-oriented perspective, Landsea respects
each and every employee by encouraging them to realise their
personal values and pursue excellence amid the development of the
Company.

DEVELOPMENT OF STAFF

By upholding the principle of “loyalty, unity and learning”, Landsea
puts emphasis on building up the working ability of its employees as
well as recognising their capability enhancement through providing
the promotion path of both managerial and professional routes.

The Company provides all kinds of learning resources and platforms
for its employees and encourages them to develop and upgrade
themselves through various channels. The Company designs different
training programs based on different specialties and levels of its
employees, such as training and guidance for new employees, training
for mid-to-high level management, cross-functional training and
professional clubs.

Overview of Staff Training of Landsea Green Properties in
2014

Total number of training session: 111
Training coverage for new staff: 81.47%
Professional training coverage: 80.53%
Managerial training coverage: 74.68%
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Landsea encourages and supports its employees for lifelong learning
by providing books for them at Landsea’s library, and endeavors to
create and enhance atmosphere and space for all employees to
develop and grow. The “cross-functional training” provided by Landsea
is a learning and exchange platform with an aim to enhance the
overall professional competency of all functional lines under the
property segment. The cross-functional training is carried out by
stages annually on the basis of its business needs, with contents
covering all functional lines such as marketing, customer service,
engineering and investment.

INCENTIVES FOR STAFF

As an important human resources policy, Landsea will undertake a
regular annual allocation of the share award scheme for the
management and key executives. The allocation plan for the current
year will be determined by the Board according to the position of its
employees in the previous year after taking into account various
factors such as operating conditions of the Company for the year,
individual performances, contributions and potentials of the
employees, with a view to encouraging employees’ contribution
towards continuing operation and development of the Company.

Based on the position of employees and their respective contributions
to the Company’s performance in 2013, the Board, upon reviews,
determined to grant the first tranche (2014) of restricted shares of
Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd. to a total of 50 employees.
Grantees include senior management, core employees who are
influential over the Company’s performance and continuing
development, and the key executives with outstanding contributions
or potentials.

In 2014, Landsea established a “value creation award” for the purpose
of encouraging all staff to devote themselves to value creation for the
Company, providing opportunities for high-caliber employees to give
full scope of their potentials, and optimising its talent mechanism.
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CARE FOR EMPLOYEES

Landsea offers various additional benefits and care to its employees.
Landsea provides annual coverage of supplementary business medical
insurance for all employees and their children, such as outpatient
care, inpatient care and accident and injury. At the same time, it also
provides family supplementary medical insurance for its employees’
voluntary participation. Landsea provides the Buyers Interest-free
Loan Scheme for eligible outstanding employees to relieve their
pressure of home purchase. Moreover, Landsea arranges physical
examination for all staff annually and provides health assessment
reports. Landsea also provides overseas travelling opportunities for
outstanding employees annually.

ACTIVITIES FOR STAFF

Landsea establishes various sports clubs to enrich the spare time of
its employees. Sports clubs covering categories such as hiking,
cycling, jogging, walking, badminton and basketball are well received
by the employees.

Landsea is a green enterprise that advocates the spirit of humanity
and nature. Hiking has been a traditional sport of Landsea since its
establishment. It symbolises ceaseless challenging and scaling
heights. In 2014, the Landsea team successfully climbed up the Haba
Snow Mountain, demonstrating the perseverance of Landsea’s
employees.

As a popular sport, cycling has been adopted by Landsea as a
traditional sport internally. In 2014, the Landsea Cycling Team (BA77
F%) showed their vigor and valiancy by completing 6 open races held
in Jeju Island, Dianshan Lake, Shuangshan Island, Daquan Lake and
Yangcheng Lake respectively.

In 2014, a series of “urban jogging” events with a theme of “Sunshine,
Joy and Health” were held in Nanjing, Shanghai, Suzhou, Chengdu and
Wuhan respectively. The culture of "happy jogging and hard working”
was promoted while strong physique and strengthened
communication among employees were attained.
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CHAPTER THREE SHAREHOLDERS

From the pursuance of speedy scaling up to quality efficiency,
Landsea adheres to such transition amid the fast-changing industry.
By expediting the asset-light strategy through diversified cooperation
such as projects with minority interest and entrusted development
management services, Landsea successfully promotes its brand image
to create more value for its shareholders.

ASSET-LIGHT STRATEGY

Taking advantage of the capability, experience and brand strength
gained from green product diversification for over 10 years, Landsea
puts great efforts into the asset-light business model by participating
in technology services, strategic planning, project development
management, entrusted development management services, projects
with minority interest and cooperative development. The aforesaid
initiatives facilitate the shifting of focus from the traditional asset-
oriented model under the property segment, resulting in an even
higher flexibility in response to changing environments of the industry.
The competitive edge of Landsea’s asset-light business is mainly
derived from its strength in product diversification. Leveraging on its
existing development ability, Landsea diversifies its operating risks and
creates new profit growth point by providing technology, management
and branding services.

OPERATING RESULTS

In 2014, Landsea Group obtained 11 new projects with an additional
operating area of 1.48 million square meters. The gross floor area of
projects attributable to Landsea was 0.91 million square meters with a
value of RMB12.6 billion. There were 28 projects in progress with a
gross floor area of 4.80 million square meters. 16 projects were
delivered throughout the year with a delivery of area of 1.07 million
square meters. As at the end of 2014, the total area delivered by
Landsea Group to 21,000 customers amounted to 3.21 million square
meters. In this year, Landsea attained remarkable achievement in
product development as well as investment and financing, laying a
solid foundation for asset-light strategy transformation.
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PRODUCT LINES

Under its green strategy, Landsea continues to strengthen its business
in the green residential segment through upgrading the original single
product line to four new product lines, namely, first home, second
home, high-end housing and elderly housing, to cover the needs of
customers throughout the entire lifecycle.

In addition, Landsea establishes a quality management system for its
products and combines the process of internal inspection with third-
party inspection to enhance the product quality to industry standard
or above, ensuring the healthy development of Landsea’s property
development segment in long term.

DEVELOPMENT CAPABILITIES

Along with the comprehensive implementation of product
standardisation, Landsea continues to strengthen its development
ability. It took less than six months for Nanjing Landsea Future Home
project to complete the whole process from land acquisition to sales
launch. The cooperation between the project department and other
functional lines leads to improvement in cost control and development
pace to a certain extent, bringing cost reduction and higher efficiency
to the Company.

INVESTMENT AND FINANCING STRATEGIES

Among the newly acquired projects by Landsea in 2014, there were
two cooperative development projects, three projects with minority
interest and one entrusted development project, over 40% of which
were improvement projects. Landsea accomplished resources
integration and profitability enhancement by way of diversified
investments and cooperations. In respect of financing, Landsea
successfully resumed the financing function of the listing platform,
Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd., within a year after its backdoor
listing, and completed offshore financing for the first time. Landsea
will actively identify new financing models.
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CHAPTER FOUR SOCIETY

As a pioneer in the PRC’s green properties, Landsea Group not only
stays ahead for promoting green housing but concerns about public
welfare, offers its dedications and love and contributes to the
community. Over a decade of rapid development, Landsea always
regards helping others as its own mission. It insists on promoting
social charity and fulfilling its social responsibility in the capacity of
corporate citizen.

CHARITY EVENTS OF LANDSEA

In 2007, Landsea Group initiated the “Landsea Fund”, a special charity
fund aiming at support students in need, by pooling the endeavor of
the shareholders, staff, owners and partners, etc. The “Landsea Fund”
raised over RMB26 million to finance the reconstruction of two “Hope”
Elementary Schools, namely, Wuquan “Hope" Elementary School and
Labu “Hope” Primary School, located in quake-hit areas of Sichuan
and Qinghai. There are now more than 2,200 students studying in
these schools. Meanwhile, Landsea’s staff provide one-to-one
financial assistance to nearly 500 needy students and those in regions
suffered from disasters in recent years so that they can go to school
at ease.

After years of participation in charity activities, Landsea Group
attached more importance to the professional and sustainable
development of community charity in 2014, entering into a new page
of making contribution to the society. In June 2014, Landsea Group
Co., Ltd. and Mr. Tian Ming, the Chairman, jointly set up the Landsea
Nanjing Charity Fund Club (F R EAFF A% £ © &) by donating RMB2
million. The club will uphold the spirit of people-orientedness by
focusing on education and environmental protection, and provide
long-term subsidies for charity projects.

In April 2014, Mr. Tian Ming, the Chairman, led a delegation of
Landsea’s staff to revisit the Labu “Hope” Primary School rebuilt after
the earthquake in Yushu, Qinghai. During the visitation, the delegation
sat in on classes to understand the learning and living environments
of students.
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In 2014, Landsea’s employees continued to carry out the “one-to-one
bursary” event and raised over RMB0.1 million for 108 needy students
from those two “Hope” Elementary Schools. Two university students
facing financial difficulties received continuous subsidies for
completion of their studies. Besides, the club organised a summer
camp known as “Future Star” for primary students to broaden their
horizons and enrich their campus life by visiting science centers and
museums. Our employees also took the initiatives to form the
“Landsea Charity Walk” team to participate in charity activities with
students.

GREEN AGED CARE SERVICES

Aging population is the general trend of social development in the
PRC. Landsea aims at taking more responsibilities for caring the
community, families and the elderly under such trend, so as to realise
a new model of aged care services, namely, “joy for the elderly,
support for the elderly and care for the elderly”.

After carrying out researches and studies from 2011 to 2013, Landsea
setup A H B BEREETEAR AR and MBI B SRS ZRBEA
7] to provide aged care services as their core business.

In 2014, Landsea implemented the model of “aged care services at
home” by establishing Landsea Home Station (B8 :5EEZ /| i), an aged
care service composite in the community, to provide brand new
services integrating home care, organisational care and medical care.
The professional services and quality facilities won the general
recognition from the market and customers, reflecting that
neighboring aged care services will become the main steam in the
community.

Meanwhile, Landsea progressively carries out the research and
development of “one-stop” residential products for the elderly in
Changzhou and Nanjing, promoting a new aged living model that
integrates professional aged care home services and all-ages elderly
care services.
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CHAPTER FIVE ENVIRONMENT

Landsea adheres to the concept of unity and harmony between
human and nature. Nature is the home for human and creatures on
earth. We should develop in an environment-friendly, green, ecological
and sustainable direction. Landsea spares no efforts to care for and
protect the nature.

In the face of a series of marco-environmental changes, including a
slowdown in economic growth, changes in demographic structure and
increasing awareness of environmental protection, coupled with
various trends such as keen competitions and flattened profits in the
property industry, increasing professionalism and market
concentration, Landsea expands the green-related sectors based on
its own dominant resources, strengthens the strategic synergy among
diversified business modules with green technology capabilities as the
core and acts up to the principle of minimising total consumption of
construction resources in the entire lifecycle, with an aim to provide
clients with green, low-carbon and safe products and services, and
advocate green and healthy lifestyles.

GREEN TECHNOLOGY CAPABILITIES

Over the years, Landsea has participated in and provided support to
the campaigns and issues in relation to indoor health concerns
through various means and jointly undertook Twelfth Five-Year topics
on national indoor health with certain research institutes, including
Tsinghua University and Shanghai Research Institute of Building
Sciences (/& & £} Bz), to provide demonstration projects. In 2014,
Landsea Group also entered into a strategic cooperation agreement
with the Watts Water Technologies Inc. to formally establish strategic
cooperation relationship and jointly explore sustainable green
development model in the industry.
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During the year, Passive House Bruck (fi &5z i 8)5%), a large-scale
passive house project co-constructed by Landsea Group, Passive
House Institute (=B EHEIFFTFT) and German Energy Agency ({&E
8E2JRE), was duly inaugurated on 8 August 2014. It was the first
passive house project in the PRC recognised by Passive House
Institute. The research and development base of Landsea in Changxing
was thereby listed as a national promotional and demonstration base
of green architecture. To facilitate marketing developments of passive
buildings in the regions with hot summer and cold winter in the PRC,
Landsea has formed the China Passive Building Alliance (F B# &)=
EEE ) and was elected as the first rotating president of the
alliance.

Passive House Bruck
HEEREE

Through continuous green building exploration and practice by
Landsea, 16 residential projects (with another two pending for public
notification) were awarded the Green Three-Star Identification (4k &=
E1Z:#) of The Ministry of Construction, the highest ranking of national
green property design certification in the PRC. Fifteen of them are
certified the Three-Star Design Identification (= £ :&5TZ:%) while one
of them certified the Three-Star Operation Identification (= £2E171Z
). In addition, five residential projects (with another one pending for
public notification) were awarded the Two-Star Design Identification
(Z E 4 :RET1Z %) while two more applied for the One-Star Green
Design Identification (£ & — 2 H&ZFT1Z:%) (pending for public
notification).

GREEN CONTROL THROUGHOUT THE ENTIRE
PROCESS

With a value chain management covering green building business in
place and different from other real estate developers and design
institutes, Landsea Group has its own property companies and own
design institutes, therefore it has the control over the entire process
and completes the closed process by the system operation team of its
property company. Design direction of most of the green buildings is
determined at the preliminary concepts and schematic design stages
and implemented through the stages of construction drawing and
construction. At last, verification and feedback on designs are
conducted with the information collected from property management.
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GREEN CONSTRUCTION

Landsea aspires to build the corporate culture with responsibility for
product quality which plays an important role in its corporate culture.
Currently, three-tier quality control system of the Company has
developed to advanced stage. Landsea always attaches substantial
importance to the safety and health management in construction sites
and has established and continued to improve the procedures for
construction safety management and the guidelines on the practice
for safe and civilised construction. Every chief project manager of
Landsea is vested with great responsibility for safe and civilised
construction, which is stringently linked up with the team and
individual performance. Landsea encourages its contractors to apply
for the OHSMS18001 (Occupational Health, Safety and Management
System) certification and 1SO14001 (Environmental Management
System) certification, and includes the certifications above into the
admission eligibility criteria of contractors. Landsea also includes the
material sources of danger and safety risks in construction sites to the
criteria of third-party assessment and adopts the “one defect is
enough for elimination” system for strict management of a safe,
civilised and healthy construction.

Green Building Evaluation Standard* (4% & 2 £ HEIZ %) was issued
by the state in 2005. In September 2007, the Ministry of Construction
issued Guidelines on Green Construction* (4% & i LT % Bl]). Landsea
Green Properties actively implements green building technology and
turns it into a part of green strategy implementation.

With Landsea’s establishment of the green research and development
base in Changxing, it has made solid progress over the research of the
international green building standard by making further reference to
the LEED Green Building Certification System from the US, the BREEAM
Green Building Certification System from the UK, the DGNB Green
Building Certification System (also known as the second-generation
green building certification system) from Germany as well as the
Passive House Building Design System from Germany on top of its
existing green strategy.

The state issued the amendments to Green Building Evaluation
Standard* (4% &2 FEIZ%) in 2014 to further raise the bar for the
green building technology in the PRC. Landsea will continue to expand
in the green building industry and broaden its horizons through
international green architecture in the future.
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GREEN PROCUREMENT

To ensure meeting the green building standard, Landsea has
developed and partnered with the suppliers who share common
values in the green building industry, and thereby established a
supplier base for the green architectural products of Landsea. In the
admission session for development of suppliers, they are required to
obtain the ISO9001 (Quality Management System) certification and
ISO14001 (Environmental Management System) certification. During
investigation, the procurement department carries out on-site visits
with the “Technical Expert Group” (£ fii82 5 /\48), comprising design,
engineering and other professional staff, to monitor the entire
procurement, processing and transport processes for its raw materials
and management system. Green suppliers and green energy-saving
products are given the first priority to be selected, so as to raise
awareness about environmental enhancement along the supply chain
of the whole industry.

On 1 January 2015, Landsea activated its online procurement
tendering system and published tendering information regarding
domestic project management of Landsea to the public on the
procurement platform of its official website, abiding by the principle of
“open information, just procedures and fair results”. Landsea also
upholds its principle of “open-mindedness, open mechanism and
scientific process” to enhance the product quality and achieve
economic efficiency in procurement.

GREEN DESIGN

Landsea has been applying the building concept of “energy-saving,
environmentally-friendly, healthy, comfortable and safe”, to its design
and developing low-carbon buildings and lifestyles and attractive living
environment by making use of its core energy-saving technology.
Furthermore, Landsea wishes to build a low-carbon, livable and quality
ecological residence with reasonable planning, full function,
convenient access, lush surroundings and cultural elements. In
addition, for the purpose of setting quality improvement of the living
environment as the basic starting point and ultimate goal of planning
design and construction design, Landsea pays close attention to
protect the ecological environment in community and enhance the
living quality through reasonable allocation and utilisation of
resources, which fully presents the intention of sustainable
development.
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Through information feedback on projects, Landsea’s own business
process of green building is formed as a cycle to achieve continuous
improvement. Design direction of most of the green buildings is
determined at the preliminary concepts and schematic design stages
and implemented through the stages of construction drawing and
construction. At last, verification and feedback on designs are
conducted with the information collected from property management.
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In 2013, Landsea Group strategically developed a residential product
with innovative technology to further enhance its share in the green
property market. One of the projects is the new healthy housing
system of Landsea’s Future Block in Nanjing (BA 53 & @ & ;X 35 FE I )
which continued to maintain a high energy saving rate with the
replacement of radiation/new wind technology systems with new
small-scale household systems, further stressing on healthy and
comfortable indoor environmental standard that deserves high
customer value.
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Another product is an innovative pilot project in Nanjing's Zhongshan
Green County known as the Padua Residence (1A % & {£ =£). The
product was inspired by Padua in Italy during overseas visits of
Landsea’s research and development team and it established a more
comfortable, healthy, human-centered and green research and
development direction for its new product. Thus, a small-scale pilot
construction was commenced in Zhongshan Green County. In 2013,
over 70 units were put up for sale in the market, recording sales
revenue of over RMB200 million.

In 2014, following the completion of Passive House Bruck, the research
and development base of Landsea in Changxing, the design concept of
“Passiveness Taking Precedence over Activeness” (#Eh& 5t « T 8) A5
was gradually manifested in Landsea’s products. Building envelope,
with good design in heat preservation, air tightness and solar shading
as the foundation, is the prerequisite for creating a building with
pleasant, healthy and comfortable environment. In the meantime, the
effective new wind system is adopted to control the indoor air quality
and minimise indoor sources of pollution, such as VOC, formaldehyde,
etc. Appropriate technology shall be applied according to the project
analysis of local conditions and climatic conditions. The main direction
of building design shall be based on the passive technology to
strengthen the structures of building envelope and enhance its air
tightness while the interior environment can be optimised by the
effective new wind system and thermal comfort system, which can
control indoor sources of pollution to ensure good air quality. For our
future products, “passiveness” will become the development direction
of products’ design technology, further emphasising “healthy and
comfortable” based on the existing “green” foundation.

Passive Techno@

R

Tailor-made
Measures to

Local Conditions
E s HIE

Air Quality Control New Wind System

Zero Formaldehyde Thermal Comfort
Ze SR B R NN

O %
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GREEN ASSESSMENT

Since the introduction of green products, Landsea has been
conducting detailed calculations and assessments on diverse aspects
of green products, such as light environment, wind environment,
building thermal design, noise insulation and water conservation
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measures.
Landsea’s green property assessment factors: PREFMERETBEER
Specification Description =¥ 4118
Planning Design Concept E JETES
Community Light Environment NEFEIRIE
Community Acoustic Environment NNRERIBIE
Community Wind Environment NERIRE
Green Configuration BRILECE
Permeable Ground BT
Construction Underground Space g2 b T 22 [
Thermal Calculation BT:E
Dew Point Temperature BELRE
Adjustable Shading AR SIMNERS
Natural Ventilation B AmE,
Indoor Lighting B
Acoustic Insulation P ER FR 1
Building Materials fe=yy b
Water Supply and Drainage Integrated Planning 4 HEK e |
Water Saving Appliances kA
Water Saving Irrigation BRoKIE E
Electricity Lighting Power Density ER REA R = E
Intelligence Community NEE B
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GREEN DECORATION BUSINESS

Green decoration is people-oriented, especially for interior room,
environment, functions and other aspects. It is not only required to
satisfy the living and aesthetic requirements of the people, but also
their needs for safety and health. Green decoration business is one of
the major components of the green health products’ system created
for customers by Landsea Green Properties.

Decoration business of Landsea adheres to “green, energy-saving,
healthy and environmentally-friendly” as its distinct characteristics to
differentiate itself from others. The differentiation lies in its focus on
people’s increasing awareness of good indoor environment. To
provide the market and customers with more healthy, safe and
comfortable solutions to the general indoor environment and “one-
stop” convenient services, the decoration business is
comprehensively integrated with the green building technology during
the design, procurement, construction and after-sale service
processes, covering all aspects such as interior room, environment,
function, intelligence, acoustics and lighting, materials, temperature
and humidity and air quality.

The main business scopes of Landsea’s green decoration include the
provision of tailor-made and mid-to-high end household products,
commercial and office renovation with themed features and
renovation for specialised industries such as elderly care and
healthcare and hospitals.

CONCLUSIONS

Landsea has always followed an economic, environmental and socially
responsible way to conduct business. Landsea will continue to focus
on providing green property related products and services, strive to
create customer value, employee value and shareholder value, and
promote a green, low-carbon, environment-friendly and sustainable
development in order to become a reputable and outstanding green
enterprise.

* for identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2014, the Group, as the
only listed and operation platform for green residential property
development business of Landsea Group, continued receiving the
supports from Landsea Group in terms of financial resources, human
resources and technology. As at 31 December 2014, Landsea Group
has granted to the Group shareholder’s loans of RMB2,117,000,000 in
aggregate. On 23 February 2014, the Company entered into a property
development and management services agreement with Landsea
Group, pursuant to which the Group will provide the property
development and management services for Landsea Group's existing
projects. By transferring its own management members of the
property development business to the Group, Landsea Group quickly
improved the Group's core competencies, built a strong and
experienced management team and laid a concrete foundation for the
Group's development. Landsea Group has also injected Wuxi Tiancui
project into the Group in the year.

On the full support of Landsea Group and under the endeavor of the
management, the Group’s green real estate development business is
developing on a fast track. During the year, the Group acquired 5
parcels of land and obtained interests in 5 cooperative projects in
Shanghai, Nanjing, Hangzhou, Suzhou and Wuxi, with gross floor area
(“GFA") amounting to 1,688,911 square meters, GFA attributable to the
Group amounting to 1,112,583 square meters. These projects are
developed to different development stages, some of the projects have
already established their own cash flows and begun to raise funds
from banks or a trust company. As to the contracted sales, some
projects, such as Shanghai Future Block, Nanjing Youth Block, Nanjing
Future Home, Hangzhou Mer De Fleus, Suzhou Green County of
Landsea and Suzhou Science and Technology City project,
successively recognised contracted sales amounting to approximately
RMB1,786,361,000. During the year, Wuxi Tiancui project concluded
the contracted sales amounting to approximately RMB119,453,000.
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In tackling with the downward trend in the property market in early
2014, and being an integral part of Landsea Group’s “Deep Green
Strategy”, we proposed the coping of “asset-light strategy and profit
diversification strategy”. Firstly, we will involve in more projects with
minority interest (normally holding less than 30% equity interests). We
will leverage on Landsea’s unique knowledge in green technologies to
provide services such as project development management,
technology and branding to these projects. By doing so, we will benefit
from both capital investment and providing technology and
management services. Secondly, Landsea also puts effort into asset-
light businesses such as pure professional services involving
construction, strategic planning and technology consultancy. Thirdly,
Landsea will look forward to more opportunities to either enter equity
partnerships with other organisations such as developers and financial
institutions or participate in projects developed by other developers.

Involvement in projects with minority interest

(1) On29July2014, B8 R BA 84 5 b = 7 % A BR & & (Nanjing
Langming Property Development Company Limited*) (“Nanjing
Langming”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and &M EHE BT b IR 328 B A BR A /) (Suzhou
Science and Technology City Kexin Cultural and Tourism
Development Company Limited*), made a successful bid jointly
for the land use rights of a parcel of land at Science and
Technology City, New District, Suzhou City, at purchase price of
RMB268,857,000. Nanjing Langming holds 20% interest in the
project and Suzhou Science and Technology City Kexin Cultural
and Tourism Development Company Limited holds 80% interest
in this project. The Company will be entrusted by the project
company to manage the development of this project and will
receive relevant project development management fee,
technology system consulting fee and brand name usage fee
from the project company. This is the Company’s first attempt to
be minority interest in a cooperation, and is also an important
step towards asset-light strategy.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In January 2015, () R BREEEFR A (Nanjing
Bozhixin Investment Management Company Limited*) (“Nanjing
Bozhixin”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, (i) FIR
BRMEMWEMZEERAA (Nanjing Aohe Real Estate
Development Company Limited*) (“Nanjing Aohe”), a subsidiary
of Shanghai Construction Group Co., Ltd. (the shares of which
are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange), (iii) =B FTIR & &
AP 7A (Shenzhen Lianxin Investment Management
Company Limited*) (“Shenzhen Lianxin”), a subsidiary of %~
EE AR A 7 (Pingan Real Estate Company Limited*) and (iv) 48
7 B E (R R)ABR AR (China Merchants Property (Nanjing)
Company Limited*) (“China Merchants Property”), a subsidiary
of China Merchants Property Development Co., Ltd. (the shares
of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange) entered
into a cooperation agreement (“Cooperation Agreement 1),
pursuant to which, the parties set up a project company
(“Project Company ") for the joint development of the project of
a parcel of land at 2014G52 lot, Hexi CBD area, Nanjing City (the
“Hexi CBD Land Parcel”). The equity interest of Project Company
I'is held as to 51%, 30%, 12.97% and 6.03% respectively by
Nanjing Aohe, Shenzhen Lianxin, Nanjing Bozhixin and China
Merchants Property. The Hexi CBD Land Parcel is near the venue
for Nanjing Youth Olympic Game and is in the high-end
residential area in Nanjing. The land parcel of project covers a
site area of approximately 81,561 square meters and with the
plot ratio of 2.75. The expected total GFA could reach 224,293
square meters. The land purchase price is RMB3.1 billion, and
the estimated total investment will be approximately RMB5.5
billion. The use of the Hexi CBD Land Parcel is for type 2
residential land. Landsea is in charge of development,
construction, management and sale of a land parcel covering a
GFA of 153,083 square meters. The project is intended to build a
green technology residence which is widely sought in Nanjing
market, and is expected to bring in considerable income.
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Project development management, technology consultancy

In December 2014, Nanjing Langming, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company and & EZER XL EXEZREBR A A (Hefei Hualun
Culture Industry Investment Company Limited*) (“Hefei Hualun”)
entered into an entrusted project development management and
green building technology services framework agreement, pursuant to
which, Hefei Hualun agreed to cooperate with Nanjing Langming in the
commercial residential buildings in the north of the land parcel No.
BH2014-04 (the “Hefei Land Parcel”) and its underground construction
located in Binhu District, Hefei owned by it. Relying on Landsea’s
experiences in real estate, and its professional technical capability,
operating ability and brand strength in the development green
property project, and will be constructed under the Three Stars Green
Building standard adopted by the Ministry of Construction. Hefei
Hualun entrusted Landsea, through provision of professional
management and technical services, brand name and trademark
licensing, to conduct development and construction management and
to organise and cooperate in the entire residential green technology
services of relevant project for Hefei Hualun. Landsea will charge
entrusted development fees of not less than RMB330 per square
meter (based on residential GFA), not including the marketing and
management fees for the project. In addition, in the event that the
average sales price is higher than the benchmark price agreed
between the parties, Landsea will be awarded with additional
earnings. The project is located in the central area of Binhu New Area,
covering a residential floor area of approximately 91,840 square
meters and several underground construction areas.

Collaborative development

The Group developed the Nanjing Binjiang project in joint venture.
Nanjing Langming, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
Shenzhen Lianxin, a subsidiary of Pingan Real Estate Company
Limited* entered into a cooperation agreement, pursuant to which,
Nanjing Langming and Shenzhen Lianxin own as to 50.1% and 49.9%
interests respectively in Nanjing Langrun Property Development
Company Limited* (B = BA 8 5 #h & B % & R 2 7]), and jointly
cooperate in the development of the urban mix of residential land
located in the west of Jinger Road and the north of Jinwen Road in
Jiangning Binjiang Development Zone, Nanjing.
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OPERATION INCOME AND GROSS PROFIT

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 was
mainly derived from property development and management services
income of approximately RMB528,617,000, property development
business income and sale of a property held for sale in Hong Kong of
approximately RMB150,895,000, and rental and management fee
income mainly from investment property in the amount of
approximately RMB24,314,000 aggregating to approximately
RMB703,826,000, representing a significant increase of approximately
30.9 times as compared to revenue of 2013. The increase in revenue
was mainly due to increase in property development and management
services income, property development business having begun to
record sale and sale of a property held for sale in Hong Kong.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the gross profit of the Group
was approximately RMB473,937,000, as compared to gross profit of
2013, representing a significant increase of approximately 31.8 times.
For the year ended 31 December 2014, the gross profit ratio of the
Group was approximately 67.3%, representing an increase of
approximately 2 percentage points as compared to 2013. The increase
in gross profit ratio was mainly due to the income from the property
development and management services business having a higher
gross profit margin.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the profit attributable to
owners of the Company was approximately RMB301,590,000,
representing a significant increase of approximately 9.6 times as
compared to 2013. The increase in profit was mainly attributable to
significant increase in operation income and increase of about 2
percentage points in consolidated gross profit margin.
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CONTRACTED SALES AND PROPERTIES SOLD BUT
NOT RECOGNISED

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group recorded an
aggregate contracted sales of approximately RMB1,786,361,000,
aggregate contracted sales GFA of 151,690 square meters, at average
selling price of RMB11,776 per square meter, representing increases
of 7.6 times and 10.3 times respectively as compared to contracted
sales and sales GFA of 2013. 2014 contracted sales were mainly
derived from Shanghai Future Block, Nanjing Youth Block, Nanjing,
Future Home, Nanjing China Merchants Evian County, Hangzhou Mer
De Fleus, Hangzhou Liangzhu Wanke Future Life, Suzhou Green
County of Landsea, and Wuxi Tiancui. As at 31 December 2014, the
accumulated area of properties sold but not recognised was 156,886

square meters, amounting to approximately RMB1,875,428,000.

DETAILS OF CONTRACTED SALES IN 2014

ERHEEREERARYE
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AEBEERHAEARY1786,361,0007T © $HEM
HEA151,690F 5K - BEREFEHARKARK 11,776
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156,886 F 75K - &84 AKEE1,875,428,000 7T ©
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Average

Contracted

Sales Selling

Contracted price per

Contracted Sales GFA square

Equity Sales (Square meter

Projects HE Holding  (RMB'000) meters) (RMB)

YK

ERME ERHE

ERKESE EEmE FIHEE

R (AR%ETR) (F733K) (AR® )

1. Shanghai Future Block BeRRER 100% 228,500 13,212 17,295

2. Nanjing Youth Block [EZBaN—g=xcal 100% 64,006 6,747 9,487

3. Nanjing Future Home B RARKR 50.1% 91,733 11,712 7,832

4. Nanjing China Merchants B R B K EER

Evian County 30% 117,137 12,399 9,447

5. Hangzhou Mer De Fleus mNTEZ R 100% 254,672 24,395 10,440
6. Hangzhou Liangzhu Wanke LN RE B REAR 2RI

Future Life 34% 785,631 63,947 12,286

7. Suzhou Green County of Landsea  &RJN A4 ED 55% 110,234 9,073 12,150

8. Wuxi Tiancui mHREE 100% 134,448 10,205 13,175

1,786,361 151,690 11,776
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RECOGNISED SALES

In 2014, the recognised sales of the property development business of
the Group was approximately RMB119,453,000 (2013 (Restated): Nil).
Recognised sales areas were approximately 8,273 square meters,
mainly attributable to the Wuxi Tiancui project. The average selling
price of recognised sales of the project in 2014 was approximately
RMB14,439 per square meter.

SALE OF PROPERTY HELD FOR SALE
In 2014, the Group sold a property held for sale in Hong Kong, selling
price was approximately RMB31,442,000, while the Group did not sell
any property held for sale in Hong Kong in 2013.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT AND MANAGEMENT
SERVICE

On 23 February 2014, the Company entered into a property
development and management services agreement with Landsea
Group, pursuant to which the Group provides the property
development and management services to Landsea Group. In 2014,
property development and management services income totaled to
approximately RMB528,617,000 (2013: Nil).

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

The Group's investment property, namely Dawning Tower, is located
in Shenzhen, the PRC. For the twelve months ended 31 December
2014, the Group recognised an income of approximately
RMB24,030,000, representing an increase of approximately 14.1% as
compared to 2013. Owing to its prime location and quality property
management services, Dawning Tower managed to maintain high
level occupancy rate during the year. The high occupancy rate, being
100% at year-end 2014 and effective cost control of Dawning Tower
guarantee steady net operation income from the building.

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2014, the Group's fair
value gain of investment property was approximately RMB50,867,000.
The fair value was determined by independent valuer based on its
current operation mode adopted by the Group in respect of Dawning
Tower and the expected income to be generated.
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SELLING EXPENSES

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the selling expenses of the
Group were approximately RMB32,856,000, representing a significant
increase of approximately 1.4 times as compared to 2013. The
increase was mainly due to the Group has 6 projects recording
contracted sales and several projects at pre-sale preparatory stage,
therefore selling expenses and expenses relating to the pre-sale
promotional activities launched for projects increased accordingly.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the administrative expenses of
the Group were approximately RMB37,676,000, representing an
increase of approximately 1.2 times as compared to 2013. The
increase was mainly due to the number of staff of the Group increased
after Landsea Group transferring its own management members of
the property development business to the Group, and the adoption of
performance measured bonus scheme and share award scheme by
the Group to increase the loyalty and contribution of the employees;
therefore, the related labour costs and expenses were increased as
compared to 2013.

FINANCE COSTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014, finance costs of the Group
were approximately RMB20,956,000, representing an increase of 7.2
times as compared to 2013. The finance costs were mainly related to
non-capitalised interests of the loans from the Company’s controlling
shareholder, loan under trust financing arrangements, senior notes
and short to medium term bank loans.

The average interest rate for the year of 2014 was 6.7% per annum,
representing an increase of 0.9 percentage point as compared to 5.8%
per annum of 2013.

TAXATION

For the year ended 31 December 2014, taxation charge of the Group
was approximately RMB119,367,000, representing an increase of 15.6
times as compared to 2013, that is mainly attributable to the year-on-
year increase in taxable profits and fair value gain of investment
property recognised in this year.
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EARNINGS PER SHARE

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the basic earnings per share
from continuing operations attributable to the owners of the Company
were RMBO0.101.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the basic earnings per share
from continuing and discontinued operations attributable to the
owners of the Company were RMB0.101.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors recommend to the shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Monday, 1 June 2015 (“2015 AGM") a final dividend of RMB1 cent per
share (equivalent to HK cents 1.26) for the year ended 31 December
2014 to be paid on Friday, 19 June 2015 to the shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on
Tuesday, 9 June 2015.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the identity of the shareholders
entitled to attend and vote at the 2015 AGM, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 28 May 2015 to Friday,
29 May 2015, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be effected. All transfers accompanied by the relevant
certificates must be lodged with the Company'’s branch share registrar
and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 27 May 2015.

For determining the entitlement of the shareholders to the proposed
final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed
on Tuesday, 9 June 2015, no transfer of shares will be registered on
that date. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all
transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 8
June 2015.
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ADDITIONAL ACQUISITION OF LAND RESERVE

In 2014, the Group, in Shanghai, Nanjing, Hangzhou, Suzhou and Wuxi,
acquired 5 parcels of land and obtained interests in 5 projects, with
land area amounting to 779,081 square meters, total GFA amounting
to 1,688,911 square meters and total land costs of RMB5,162,000,000.
The Group's attributable land reserve GFA was 1,112,583 square
meters, average land cost was RMB3,056 per square meter.
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Land Land Total Attributable Average
Area GFA  Land Cost land GFA land cost
Equity (Square (Square (RMB in (Square  per square
Projects HH Holding meters) meters) million) meters) meter
¥
BreH P RER SR
THEE AREAE (AR¥ HBREER T A
Rzl (EF7K) (EAK) BER) (E7K)  (AR%7®T)
1. Shanghai The Course of LEER
The Future 100% 47,085 108,264 560 108,264 5173
2. Nanjing Youth Block HREEHE 100% 164,494 303,941 1,010 303,941 3323
3. Nanjing, Future Home HRARR 50.1% 50,543 133,978 200 67,123 1,493
4. Hangzhou China Merchants B RIBEKEE
Evian County 30% 110,872 159,700 580 47,910 3,632
5. Hangzhou Liangzhu Wanke MMR AR AR,
Future Life 34% 56,286 192,536 680 65,462 3,932
6. Suzhou Renmin Road Project & JNARKIER 100% 26,591 83,360 600 83,360 7,198
7. Suzhou Green County of M A
Landsea 55% 163,615 424,162 980 233,289 2,310
8. Suzhou Science and Technology &k ME S HER
City Project 20% 71,886 99,670 269 19,934 2,699
9. Wuxi Tiancui EmHRE 100% 20,134 48,772 110 48,772 2,255
10. Wuxi Luka Small Town BHERNE 100% 67,575 134,528 173 134,528 1,286
779,081 1,688,911 5,162 1,112,583 3,056
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LAND BANK

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had land bank GFA of 2,104,259
square meters. In terms of the attributable interest, the Group’s land

GFA was approximately 1,527,931 square meters.

As at 31 December 2014, details of the land bank of the Group are set

T b fE e
RZF-—NFE+-_A=+—H AXEEHEEN LM
EFEARIEEEEIE2,104,259 F 5K - IEHFTE - K
SEEE T EBREEETE 1,527,931 F K -
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out as below: FREFHHNNT :
GFA
Developed  Developing for future
GFA GFA GFA development
Equity (Square (square (square (Square
Projects 1A Holding meters) meters) meters) meters)
[=5: s BEF AREE
BEEEE MEEE /EE L/EE
35340 (FHK) (E5K) (E5K) (EHK)
1. Shanghai Future Block ERRRER 100% 234,875 = 234,875 =
2. Shanghai The Course of LgER
The Future 100% 108,264 - 108,264 -
Nanjing Youth Block AREEHER 100% 303,941 = 42,268 261,673
Nanjing, Future Home HRRRK 50.1% 133,978 - 24,757 109,221
Nanjing China Merchants MRBEKER
Evian County 30% 159,700 = 37,963 121,737
Hangzhou Mer De Fleus wNTER 100% 180,473 - 80,000 100,473
Hangzhou Liangzhu Wanke TN & BRER R
Future Life 34% 192,536 - 192,536 -
Suzhou Renmin Road Project &M ARKIER 100% 83,360 = = 83,360
Suzhou Green County of BRI A AR ED
Landsea 55% 424162 = 82,124 342,038
10. Suzhou Science and Technology % MR HIER
City Project 20% 99,670 - - 99,670
11. Wuxi Tiancui EIHREE 100% 48,772 12,400 36,372 -
12. Wuxi Luka Small Town B RME 100% 134,528 - 40,495 94,033
2,104,259 12,400 879,654 1,212,205
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Developing status of major projects:

Shanghai Future Block

The land parcel of the project is at the south of Shanghai and close to
the hub of Z=% (Fengxian), namely F#&#13k (Nangiao New City) and
BI17 8 T 38 (Pujiang Town of Minhang). With artery roads and public
transport routes directing to the urban district and Nangiao New City,
it takes only a 45-minute drive to reach A REE35 (The People’s Square)
at the city centre which is only 33 kilometers away. The project enjoys
seamless integration with the Nangiao New City, sharing quality
ancillary facilities within the district. The site area is of approximately
82,406 square meters, it is expected that the total GFA could reach
234,875 square meters with land cost of approximately RMB3,598 per
square meter (based on GFA). The aggregate purchase price is
approximately RMB845,000,000. The land parcel will be used for
construction of residential properties, car parks and commercial
properties for sale in the market. The project was first launched for
sale in 25 October 2014, the subscription was pretty good. The
aggregate subscription amounted to approximately RMB266,000,000.

Shanghai The Course of The Future

The land parcel of the project is adjacent to the /&8 Z[& (Shanghai
Pilot Free Trade Zone) and only 3 kilometers away from 2 LR T 7 &
(Yangshan Harbour Bonded Zone), with a site area of 47,085 square
meters and the expected total GFA could reach 108,264 square
meters with land cost of approximately RMB5,173 per square meter
(based on GFA). The aggregate purchase price is RMB560,000,000. The
land parcel will be used for construction of residential properties, car
parks and commercial properties for sale in the market. The sale office
and sample houses were formally open to the public on 27 September
2014.

Shanghai Future Block
LERFHEE
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Nanjing Youth Block

The land parcel of the project is located within the planning core
commercial and residential area in this district, about 18 km from the
commercial center of )T & [& (Jiangning District), B Z # (Baijiahu)
district, about 5 km from Nanjing Lukou International Airport, and
about 3 km from Lukou New City North station of subway line no. 6 of
airport line which is in operation. The land parcel covers a site area of
164,494 square meters and the total GFA could reach 303,941 square
meters. The land parcel will be used for construction of residential
properties, car parks and commercial properties for sale in the market.
The project was first launched to the market on 28 December 2014.

Nanjing Future Home

The land parcel of the project is in JT % & ;T 9 % Rk #& (Jiangning
Binjiang Development Zone), which will catch up with JT 2 (Jiangning)
and R #& (Biangiao) and will soon become the main supply for rigid
demand from first-time homebuyers in Nanjing. It is expected to have
a better development. This area is an established community with
good living facilities and excellent transport connections. The land
parcel covers a site area of 50,543 square meters and total GFA could
reach 133,978 square meters with land cost of approximately
RMB1,493 per square meter (based on GFA) and with aggregate
purchase price of RMB200,000,000. The land parcel will be used for
construction of residential properties, car parks and commercial
properties for sale in the market.
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Hangzhou Mer De Fleus

The land parcel of the project is located within the planning area
B R)#FH (Qiaosi New City), Yuhang District, northern Hangzhou City,
with JL£& (Jiubao) to the south and 5§ (Wengmei) to the north, 14
kilometers from EARE#H (Wulin Square) at the city centre. The east of
the project is right next to Hangzhou's Qiaosi Station of Metro Line No.
1, adjacent to a number of public transport routes passing through the
area with good traffic accessibility. The site area is of 81,905 square
meters and the total GFA could reach 180,473 square meters with
land cost of approximately RMB4,477 per square meter (based on
GFA). The aggregate purchase price is RMB808,000,000. The land
parcel will be used for construction of residential properties, car parks
and commercial properties for sale in the market.
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Hangzhou Mer De Fleus
mMEBE

Suzhou Renmin Road Project

The land parcel of the project is located in the north of F %z E&(Nanhuan
Road), east of A & B (Renmin Road), near the = 97 B (South Gate
Central Business District) of old Suzhou City and planned Metro Line
No. 4. It is unique location with rich surrounding living facilities. The
land parcel covers a site area of 26,591 square meters, the total GFA
could reach 83,360 square meters with land cost of approximately
RMB7,198 per square meter (based on GFA). The aggregate purchase
price is RMB600,000,000. The Land Parcel will be used for construction
of residential properties, car parks and commercial properties for sale
in the market. The commercial plan is being in process.
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Suzhou Green County of Landsea

The land parcel of the project is located in the connection area of new
city and southern new city in Taihu, east of #2 & X #& (Songling Da
Dao), north of E#E 7 (Yunlong Xi Road), being out-laying area of a
high-end richly developed district, with rail transit and highway directly
access to Suzhou City. The Land Parcel is 1.7 kilo meters from the
Songling Da Dao Station of Metro Line 4 of Suzhou Rail System which
is expected to be in operation in 2016. The land parcel covers a site
area of 163,615 square meters and the total GFA could reach 424,162
square meters. The land parcel will be used for construction of
residential properties, car parks and commercial properties for sale in
the market. It was launched to the market on 27 December 2014.

Wuxi Tiancui

The land parcel of the project is centrally located at the core
commercial area of the #& # %7 [& (Wuxi New Area), Wuxi, Jiangsu
Province. The land occupies a site area of 20,134 square meters and is
being developed into a residential and commercial complex with GFA
of approximately 48,772 square meters, comprising 5 residential
buildings and 3 commercial buildings. The project was launched to
sale in August 2013, accumulated sales proceeds amounted to
RMB352,000,000.

Suzhou Green County of Landsea
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Wuxi Luka Small Town

The land parcel of the project is located at southwest of intersection
of iE A 78 B& (Yunhe West Road) and % 3 # (Ningjia Road), New
District, Wuxi City and at the south of Wuxi Green Block project. It will
be at the proximity of planed Wuxi Metro Line 4 and suitable for
building residential properties for rigid demand from first-time
homebuyers. The land parcel covers a site area of 67,575 square
meters and the total GFA could reach 134,528 square meters at
aggregate purchase price of RMB173,000,000. The land parcel will be
used for construction of residential properties, car parks and
commercial properties for sale in the market.
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Wuxi Luka Small Town
B E

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash were approximately RMB595,061,000 and
RMB1,414,062,000 respectively. As at 31 December 2014, the Group's
working capital (current assets less current liabilities) of the Group was
approximately RMB4,180,574,000. As at 31 December 2014, the
Group's current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) was
approximately 2.1 times. The Group’s major sources of working capital
are derived from its operating cash flows, short-term bank loans and
financial support from controlling shareholder.

A rights issue was completed in December 2013, the net proceeds
from the rights issue were approximately HK$739,800,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB584,465,000). In 2014, the proceeds raised were
fully used to partly finance acquisitions of several land parcels at
Shanghai City, Nanjing City, and Suzhou City.
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INDEBTEDNESS

As at 31 December 2014, the total borrowings of the Group were
approximately RMB6,079,642,000 (31 December 2013 (restated):
approximately RMB1,505,600,000), mainly from shareholder’s loans,
secured bank loans and secured loan under trust financing
arrangement aggregating to RMB5,497,876,000, and senior notes due
in 2017 with carrying value of RMB581,766,000. The borrowing interest
rates per annum range between Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
plus 2% and a fixed interest rate of 10.8%. The average borrowing cost
of the Group was 6.7% per annum (2013 (restated): 5.8%).

On 25 September 2014, the Company issued to Great Wall Pan Asia
International Investment Co., Limited the 3-year 9.56% Senior Private
Notes due 2017 with an aggregate principal amount of
US$100,000,000. As it is within the acquisition period of 24 months
and there is no credit rating available to the Company in the capital
markets, this private note issue can be viewed as an innovative
financing mode and the relatively favourable interest rate reflects the
market recognition of the Company’s influence in the industry and
brand name. It is also the Company’s first debt financing and an
important move for the Company to restore its ability to raise fund.
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Analysis of Indebtedness: (e
2014 2013
—E2-mF ZE—=F
RMB’'000 Percentage RMB'000 Percentage
AR¥TR EEDL ARETT HESL
Analysis of borrowings by currency:  #EEAGLE SO
— Denominated in RMB —UAREHEE 5,311,000 87.3% 1,395,000 92.7%
— Denominated in USD —UETHEE 581,766 9.6% - -
— Denominated in HK$ —UBTTEE 186,876 3.1% 110,600 7.3%
6,079,642 100.0% 1,505,600 100.0%
Analysis of borrowings by maturity:  ZAEFARIERE D4
Within one year E—FR 2,456,640 40.4% 1,385,600 92.0%
Between one year and two years E—FEME 1,252,000 20.6% 120,000 8.0%
Over two years MEME 2,371,002 39.0% - -
6,079,642 100.0% 1,505,600 100.0%
Bt ERGRAT ¢« —T—INFFR
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GEARING RATIOS

The net debts to equity ratio* of the Group was approximately 295% as
at 31 December 2014 and approximately 47.4% (restated) as at 31
December 2013. The Group's debts to total assets ratio (total
borrowings divided by total assets) was approximately 67.6% as at 31
December 2014 and 52.3% (restated) as at 31 December 2013. The
management noticed that the Group’s gearing ratios rose as
compared to corresponding period of last year. However, the
management is of the opinion that the situation is normal as the
Group is now at business-developing stage, number of projects and
the assets size are rapidly increasing. And approximately one-third of
the total liabilities are belonging to shareholder’s loans which are
renewable at maturity. The management will monitor the capital and
debts structure of the Group from time to time, in order to mitigate its
exposure to risk of high gearing.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS OF THE GROUP

As at 31 December 2014, the bank borrowings of the Group were
secured by one or a combination of the following securities:
investment property, shares in subsidiaries, land under development
and part of development expenditure, standby letter of credit, cash
and guarantee by controlling shareholder. Senior notes are secured by
shares of related subsidiaries and guarantee by controlling
shareholder and a director of the Company. The loan under trust
financing arrangement is secured by the Group’s land parcel and/or
shares of related subsidiaries.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND CURRENCY RISK

As most of the income as well as direct costs, payments of equipment,
salaries and majority of debts payable are denominated in Renminbi,
United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars, it is not necessary to use
any financial instruments for hedging purpose, and the Group’s
exposure to the fluctuation of exchange rates is minimal. During this
year, the Group was not engaged in any hedging activities. As at 31
December 2014, cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash of the
Group were mainly denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and
United States dollars.

# net debts to equity ratio = total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash divided by total equity
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INTEREST RATE RISK

As at 31 December 2014, the fixed rate interest bearing borrowings
accounted for 96.9% of the total borrowings of the Group. Therefore,
exposure to interest risks is minimal. The Group will continue to
closely monitor the trend of interest rates in the market and seeks to
adopt appropriate risk management measures, in order to mitigate the
exposure to the interest rate risks.

SUBSTANTIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

The Group acquired the entire interest of Wuxi Langhua Development
Co., Ltd. according to an agreement dated 23 February 2014 (Please
refer to details set out in the circular to the shareholders of the
Company dated 14 March 2014).

The Group acquired 34% interest of fi ) & % & AR A 7] (Hangzhou
Wanye Property Co Ltd.*) according to an agreement dated 10 June
2014 (Please refer to details set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 10 June 2014).

Save as above-mentioned, the Group did not participate in any
substantial acquisition or disposal during the year ended 31 December
2014.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group has in cooperation with certain financial institutions
arranged mortgage loan facility for its purchasers of property and
provided guarantees to secure obligations of such purchasers for
repayments. As at 31 December 2014, the outstanding guarantees
amounted to approximately RMB97,347,000 (31 December 2013
(restated): approximately RMB30,843,000). Such guarantees will be
discharged upon the earlier of (i) issuance of the real estate ownership
certificate; and (ii) the satisfaction of relevant mortgage loan by
purchasers.

There are certain corporate guarantees provided by the subsidiaries
for each other in respect of their borrowings as at 31 December 2014.
The Board considers that the subsidiaries have sufficient financial
resources to meet their obligation.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other material contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2014.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had 647 employees (31 December
2013 (restated): 26) responsible for management, executive, technical
and general functions in Hong Kong and the PRC. The increase in
number of staff was mainly due to recruiting the property
development management staff of Landsea Group by the Group. The
level of remuneration, promotion and remuneration increment are
commensurate with the employees’ job duties, performance and
professional experience. Other employee benefits include mandatory
provident fund scheme, insurance and medical cover. According to
the terms of the current Share Option Scheme and the Share Award
Scheme adopted on 2 July 2014, the Company will grant awarded
shares or share options to members of management and employees
according to their respective performance.

*for identification purpose only
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to maintain corporate governance of high
standards and quality procedures. The Company has put in place
governance practices with emphasis on the integrity to shareholders
and quality of disclosure, transparency and accountability to
shareholders for the sake of maximising returns to shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code of
corporate governance.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company was in
compliance with all the code provisions under the CG Code except for
the deviation as explained below:

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code provides that independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views
of shareholders. Mr. Ding Yuan, an independent non-executive
Director, did not attend the special general meeting of the Company
held on 31 March 2014 due to his prior engagement.

Save as the aforesaid and in the opinion of the Directors, the Company
has met all code provisions set out in the CG Code during the year
ended 31 December 2014.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code") as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions.

The Company confirms that, having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all Directors have complied with the required standards as
set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company, and is responsible for setting up the overall strategy as well
as reviewing the operation and financial performance of the Group.
The Board reserved for its decision or consideration matters covering
overall Group strategy, major acquisitions and disposals, annual
budgets, annual and interim results, approval of major capital
transactions and other significant operational and financial matters.
The management was delegated the authority and responsibility by
the Board for the daily management of the Group. In addition, the
Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the Board
committees. Further details of these committees are set out in this
report.

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a year at
approximately quarterly intervals in addition to other Board meetings
that are required for significant and important issues, and for statutory
purposes. Appropriate and sufficient information is provided to Board
members in a timely manner to keep them abreast of the Group'’s
latest developments and thus can assist them in discharging their
duties.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of the Board
meetings and drafts of which will be circulated to all Directors for their
review, comments and approval after the meetings. The minutes
books are kept by the Company Secretary and will be open for
inspection by the Directors upon request. All Directors have access to
the advice and service of the Company Secretary who is responsible
to the Board for ensuring that the procedures are followed and that all
applicable laws and regulations are complied with.
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
The Board currently consists of five executive Directors, one non-
executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Tian Ming

Mr. Xiang Jiong

Ms. Shen Leying

Mr. Xie Yuanjian

Mr. Lu Baoxiang

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:
Ms. Zhou Qin

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Xu Xiaonian

Mr. Ding Yuan

Mr. Lee Kwan Hung

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial, business
and family relationship among members of the Board. The biographies
of the Directors are set out on pages 18 and 23 under the section
headed "Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development
by attending seminars or in-house briefing relating to their role as
director of the Company/taking part in business-related training/acting
as speaker for seminars and refresh their knowledge and skills and
provided to the Company a record of training they received for the
financial year ended 31 December 2014.
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The Company has also continuously provided update to the Directors AR AR IS EMEEIZME A FhR A R E @A
on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other EETFE 2 FHEREN @ UHRESBEH EET
applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and RIFDEEATEIR o

enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

The individual training record of each Director received for the year #HZE—Z—ME+—-_A=+—RHIEFEE SE=EF
ended 31 December 2014 is summarised below: B2 7 EAAERSBaEmT

Attending or
Attending or  participating
participating  in seminars/

in seminars/ in-house
in-house briefing HERSE HESSHE
briefing relevant to ¥¥Kez EBERSEZ
relevant to the director’s HEMNE S HEWEE
Name of Directors the business duties EEHRS A EBER A B TR
Executive Directors: HITESE
Mr. Tian Ming v/ v/ ML 4 v/ v
Mr. Xiang Jiong v/ v/ A4 5 A v v
Ms. Shen Leying v/ v/ SEL Jegnn v/ v
Mr. Xie Yuanjian v v/ WERESRE v/ v
Mr. Lu Baoxiang v/ v/ EEMLAE v v
Mr. Liu Da* v/ v/ Bz~ v/ v
Non-executive Director: FBITEE
Ms. Zhou Qin* N/A N/A IEEI Rtk i@ A TiEA
Independent Non-executive BB ITESE -
Directors:
Mr. Xu Xiaonian v/ v/ FFNES A v v/
Mr. Ding Yuan v/ v TrEE v/ v
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung v/ v/ TR A v v
* Mr. Liu Da resigned as an executive Director on 5 January 2015. * REXER T —RAF—ARAHEUTES -
# Ms. Zhou Qin was appointed as a non-executive Director on 5 January 2015. # AT HR T —RAF A RAREZFEAIENTES -

All the Directors also understand the importance of continuous S REEEFHABEEELRE EEMN - WEMKRRHE
professional development and are committed to participating in & EEE3IERA2 - AKEE & &8 AN B pE o
suitable training to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The Company has a separate chairman and chief executive officer
currently. On 31 July 2013, Mr. Tian Ming was appointed as the
Chairman and Ms. Shen Leying was appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Subsequently on 23 February 2014, Mr. Xiang
Jiong was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer and Ms. Shen
Leying was re-designated as Co-Chief Executive Officer. The Company
considered that the division of responsibilities between the chairman,
chief executive officer and co-chief executive officer is clearly
established.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors of the Company are appointed for a
specific term and they are also subject to the retirement by rotation at
least once every three years in accordance with the Bye-Laws.

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with specific
terms of reference, which is responsible for, among others, identifying
suitable individuals to become Board members and reviewing the
structure, size and diversity of the Board to complement the
Company's corporate strategy.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

As required under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive Directors,
of whom Mr. Xu Xiaonian, is a famous Chinese economist and was
granted the highest award of economics study in China, the “Sun
Yefang Economic Science Award”. Mr. Xu has more than 30 years’
experience in economics analysis.

Mr. Ding Yuan, is the Chair in Accounting of Cathay Capital in China
Europe International Business School and the co-editor of The
International Journal of Accounting. He has more than 10 years’
experience in teaching and studying financial accounting, financial
statement analysis, corporate governance and M&AS.
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Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, is currently a practicing lawyer in Hong Kong. He
was a senior manager of the Listing Division of the Stock Exchange
from 1993 to 1994. Mr. Lee is experienced in IPOs and corporate
financing.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors the annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that
all the independent non-executive Directors are independent.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy on 30 August 2013 (the
“Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board. The Company recognises that increasing diversity at the Board
level will support the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives
and sustainable development. The Company seeks to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The Company will also take into consideration its own
business model and specific needs from time to time in determining
the optimum composition of the Board.

The Board delegated certain duties under the Policy to the Nomination
committee. The Nomination Committee will discuss and review the
measurable objectives for implementing the Policy from time to time
to ensure their appropriateness and the progress made towards
achieving those objectives will be ascertained.

The Nomination Committee will review the Policy, as appropriate, to
ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD AT BOARD MEETINGS
During the year ended 31 December 2014, 4 Board meetings were
held. All Directors are given an opportunity to include any matter in
the agenda for regular Board meetings and are given sufficient time to
review the documents and information to be discussed in Board
meetings in advance.

CHEABE
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BE-T-NF+-A=+—ALFE EFEHY
BITMAEH - 2REFHERENEERENE
BHRRMAMEAREFE - PRIREAMERIR
EFBERDITNENST AR ZMERER -

Number of
Name of Directors meetings attended BENS HEEERE
Executive Directors: BITESE
Mr. Tian Ming (Chairman) 4/4 MeA %A (F/F) 4/4
Mr. Xiang Jiong 4/4 R GRS 4/4
Ms. Shen Leying 4/4 R4 47+ 4/4
Mr. Xie Yuanjian 4/4 FRELE 4/4
Mr. Lu Baoxiang (Note 1) 33 EEHEAL (1) 3/3
Mr. Liu Da (Note 2) 44 BlES A (MEE2) 4/4
Mr. Ding Feng (Note 3) 171 T 8% % (HH3E3) 171
Non-executive Director: HHITESE -
Ms. Zhou Qin (Note 4) N/A AEz+ (Mi3E4) T EA
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BUIBITESE -
Mr. Xu Xiaonian 4/4 FNESE A 4/4
Mr. Ding Yuan 4/4 TEEAE 4/4
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung 4/4 TS E 4/4
Notes: BiE
1. Mr. Lu Baoxiang was appointed as an executive Director on 23 February 2014, 3 1. R-TZ—WNE-_A-+=H EEHLLEEZTENTE
Board meetings were held after his appointment. B LEBREBRTZRESREE -
2. Mr. Liu Da resigned as an executive Director on 5 January 2015. 2. RZZ—AF—ARB  BIELRERHTRITES -
3. Mr. Ding Feng resigned as an executive Director on 23 February 2014, 1 Board 3. RZZE—NF_A=-+=8 " THREEFTRITES &
meeting was held before his resignation. ERIGRIT—REEREH -
4. Ms. Zhou Qin was appointed as a non-executive Director on 5 January 2015. 4. RZZ—hFE—ARH  AYZTEZEAIENTES -
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ATTENDANCE RECORD AT GENERAL MEETINGS
During the financial year ended 31 December 2014, 2 general meetings
of the Company were held, being the special general meeting held on
31 March 2014 and the annual general meeting held on 22 May 2014
(“2014 AGM").

BRAGHFETE
BE-T-ME+-A=+—BLMBEE  ARQ
AEETMARRRE IR -_F-—NOF=A
S+-BRTZREBHAGRN T —NELA
—+ o BRIz RFAFAR (- F-NFREE
EXE) -

Number of
Name of Directors meetings attended BEEHR HERERE
Executive Directors: BiTESE
Mr. Tian Ming (Chairman) 2/2 MR %A (F/F) 2/2
Mr. Xiang Jiong 2/2 MM sTE 2/2
Ms. Shen Leying 2/2 R4+ 2/2
Mr. Xie Yuanjian 2/2 BRI A 2/2
Mr. Lu Baoxiang (Note 1) 212 EEHEL () 2/2
Mr. Liu Da (Note 2) 2/2 2IE A (M7 2) 2/2
Mr. Ding Feng (Note 3) N/A - T e85 (FiIFE3) i A
Non-executive Director: FHITESE
Ms. Zhou Qin (Note 4) N/A  EEt (Mizt4) i A
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BB TESE -
Mr. Xu Xiaonian 2/2 FFNFR A 2/2
Mr. Ding Yuan 1/2 TEGAE 1/2
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung 2/2 TS A 2/2
Notes: Bt et
1. Mr. Lu Baoxiang was appointed as an executive Director on 23 February 2014, 2 1. R-Z—NE-_A-+=8 EEHLLEEZTAENTE
general meetings were held after his appointment. = ZAEREETMARRAE -
2. Mr. Liu Da resigned as an executive Director on 5 January 2015. 2. RZZ—AF—ARB  BIEEERHTRNTES -
3. Mr. Ding Feng resigned as an executive Director on 23 February 2014, no general 3. RZZE—NF_A=-+=8 " THREEFTRITES W &
meeting was held before his resignation. ERTMEBITRRARG ©
4. Ms. Zhou Qin was appointed as a non-executive Director on 5 January 2015. 4. RZZ—hFE—ARH  AYLTEEZERIENTES -

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, uses annual general meetings or other
general meetings to communicate with them and encourage their
participation. The Chairman of the Board, the chairmen of the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Audit
Committee attended the 2014 AGM to answer questions and collect
views of shareholders.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees under the Board,
namely Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
committee and Executive Committee, to oversee different aspects of
the Group's affairs and to assist in the execution of the Board's
responsibilities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Audit
Committee in accordance with the requirements of the Stock
Exchange. The Audit Committee shall comprise of a minimum of three
members, all of which must be non-executive Directors. The Audit
Committee currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Ding Yuan (as chairman), Mr. Xu Xiaonian and
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, and one non-executive Director, Ms. Zhou Qin.
The terms of reference for the Audit Committee are currently made
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Terms of reference for the Audit Committee are aligned with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions
of its resignation or dismissal of such auditor; reviewing the interim
and annual reports and financial statements of the Group; and
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting system including the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff in charge
of the Company’s financial reporting function and their training
arrangement and budget, and internal control procedures.

The Audit Committee meets the external auditor regularly to discuss
any area of concern during the audit. The Audit Committee reviews
the interim and annual reports before submission to the Board. The
Audit Committee focuses not only on the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance with
reporting and accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal
requirements in the review of the Company's interim and annual
report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Audit Committee held 2
meetings. Each committee meeting has supplied with the necessary
financial information of the Group for members to consider, review
and access significant issues arising from the work conducted.

HE-_Z-—NMF+A=1+—HILFE BZZEE
GLRITMAEE BRZEERHREVEY
$EIWW§H UHZEBENEERE - BH KT
HATETITEEAZEAEH -

Number of
Name of Members meetings attended KEHE HESEE
Mr. Ding Yuan (Committee Chairman) 2/2 TREE(ZESEE) 2/2
Mr. Xu Xiaonian 2/2 FTNESRRE 2/2
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung 2/2 FHERA 2/2
Ms. Zhou Qin (Note) N/A A gz + (FFE) T EA

Note: Ms. Zhou Qin was appointed as a member on 31 March 2015.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee had performed the

following work:

— reviewed the annual results for the year ended 31 December

2013 and the interim results for the six months ended 30 June
2014;

discussed with the management of the Company over the
completeness, fairness and adequacy of reporting and
accounting standards and policies of the Group in the
preparation of the annual financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013 and interim report for the six months
ended 30 June 2014,

reviewed and discussed with the external auditor over the
financial reporting of the Company;

recommended to the Board, for the approval by shareholders, of
the re-appointment of the auditor; and

reviewed the internal control procedures of the Group.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the
Remuneration Committee in accordance with requirements of the
Stock Exchange. The Remuneration Committee shall comprise at least
three members with majority of independent non-executive Directors,
and an independent non-executive Director should take up the role of
chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration
Committee currently comprises one executive Director, Mr. Tian Ming,
one non-executive Director, Ms. Zhou Qin, and three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Xu Xiaonian (as chairman), Mr.
Ding Yuan and Mr. Lee Kwan Hung. The terms of reference for the
Remuneration Committee are currently made available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Terms of reference for the Remuneration Committee are aligned with
the code provisions set out in the CG Code.

The functions of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
on the remuneration packages for all Directors’ and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment of a set of
formal and transparent procedures for developing remuneration
policy, to review and approve the management’'s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives, to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, and to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors.

CHEABE

yWESS

ARRRBEMR A2 RENTFHEZES 2 EEB
REE- - FHEZES=L AR =-2KEAK  ME
PARZBRBYIFNITES U —BBIIFNTT
EEREEFHNZBEEER - FMHEEERM—BH
TEFHRALLE  —BIIFATEFHAILIAL=
BEIFITESNERE(ER)  TELER
FHMTEMAK - FTHEZ B @ BERERC T
PABSEZZ P B AR N B4

FHEZBERMIBESETAEXEATRIME
TR ZFRE

FIHEZEe BEANEREERGRERARL
7 T B8R K 3o B A5 48 2R LA R ) BT S BB SR 2L —
EFARERREFRNEERRLER  2EZEER
Z AT BIRERE et RS IR E e B
RERRTEERSRERABZFTMEFEMNES

RIRLES  RIFATESHFHAEERRL
i -

BREEHERRLR « T UFFR

73



74

Corporate Governance Report
SRERBE

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Remuneration
Ccommittee held 4 meetings for reviewing the remuneration package
of the Directors of the Company and recommended to the Board the
proposed remuneration of the Directors and senior management
including the grant of awarded shares under the Restricted Share
Award Scheme adopted on 2 July 2014, and making recommendation
to the Board on the proposed remuneration of hew Director.

“E-ME+-_A=+—HLFE FMEE
RETOREH  UWRHARRESTZHMAF
B UREEREREEAEZEEFMERERE
R-T—MFEL A = BRMER FIER D 2B 5T 8
RERGIERDAESTHRELES  IRFESEZ
EERFHREERROES

Number of
Name of Members meetings attended REHE HESE I
Mr. Xu Xiaonian (Committee Chairman) 4/4 TNFEE(ZESEE) 4/4
Mr. Tian Ming 4/4 ML 4 4/4
Mr. Ding Yuan 4/4 TiR%ESE 4/4
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung 4/4 LA 4/4
Ms. Zhou Qin (Note) N/A gzt (M) A

Note: Ms. Zhou Qin was appointed as a member on 31 March 2015.

The emolument payable to Directors and senior management will
depend on their respective contractual terms under the employment
agreements, if any, and is fixed by the Board with reference to the
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, the performance
of the Group, their duties and responsibilities, remuneration
benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market conditions.
Details of the remuneration of the Directors and senior management
are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the
Nomination Committee in accordance with requirements of the Stock
Exchange. The Nomination Committee shall comprise at least three
members with a majority of independent non-executive Directors, and
the Chairman of the Board or an independent non-executive Director
should take up the role of chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee currently consists of one executive
Director, Mr. Tian Ming (as chairman), and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Xu Xiaonian, Mr. Ding Yuan and Mr.
Lee Kwan Hung. The terms of reference for the Nomination Committee
are currently made available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.
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Terms of reference adopted by the Nomination Committee are aligned
with the code provisions set out in the CG Code.

The functions of the Nomination Committee are to review and monitor
the structure, size and diversity of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement of the Group’s strategy, to identify qualified individuals to
become members of the Board; to assess the independence of
independent non-executive Directors; and to make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or re-election of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Nomination Committee
held 2 meetings. The Nomination Committee considered the
nomination of new Director; reviewed the structure, size and diversity
(including without limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
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length of services) of the Board; assessed the independence of the & ARISEEISE) : sHE B IEMTES 2B &
independent non-executive Directors; and considered the re-election 4 REEEEZHREF o
of Directors before putting forth for discussion and approval by the
Board.

Number of
Name of Members meetings attended REHER HESERE
Mr. Tian Ming (Committee Chairman) 4/4 HRLE (ZESF/E) 4/4
Mr. Xu Xiaonian 4/4 AN A 4/4
Mr. Ding Yuan 4/4 Ti%ESE 4/4
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung 4/4 LA 4/4
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The corporate governance functions were performed by the Board.

The corporate governance functions are to develop and review the
Company'’s policies and practices on corporate governance to comply
with the CG Code and other legal or regulatory requirements, to
oversee the Company’s orientation program for new Director, to
review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, to develop, review
and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors, and to review the Company’s
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2014, the Board held 1
meeting for reviewing the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management and reviewed the
Company's compliance with the CG Code for the year ended 31
December 2013 and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The executive Committee (formerly named as “Operational
Committee”) of the Company was established on 18 March 2005, was
reformed and renamed to “Executive Committee” with all of the
executive Directors as its members and a new set of terms of
reference was adopted on 31 July 2013.

The Executive Committee meets on ad hoc basis to exercise the
powers, authorities and discretions of the Board in accordance with
its written terms of reference.

LANDSEA GREEN PROPERTIES CO., LTD. ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2014

ERERBAE
CEE AR EEBHIT -

EEERBBERFIF LRI ARREREABR M
FR G UNEEREARTAREMEARREERE
EBARRZHEFTARESIFE - i RER
ELBREBABZBIIRFEEEER - HI5T -
B MEEREEREFEMRZITATR LB A
(WE) URBHAARBEEE AREP ZREE
£t o

i FTA=+—RILMBRFE - %
REEBEBRRIT-NER  UEHEERSME

ATAZBRERERERREF ZHWE -

HITREE
ARRZHTEEEN - ETRF=AHNBKY
YEEM MRERTEFHENE AR -F
—=FEAS+— BRAIEMEE -

HITZEERBEEERENERRRERTERHM
S WITHEESERET2ED BERDIBE -



Corporate Governance Report

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Group and ensure that the financial
statements are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The Directors also ensure the
timely publication of the financial statements of the Group.

The responsibility statement of external auditor of the Company,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 96 and 97.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information
and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware
of any matters uncertainly relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION
For the year ended 31 December 2014, the remuneration paid/payable
to the Company's auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers is set out below:
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Services rendered by PricewaterhouseCoopers BERUKBEETANESATRME 2 R
Audit services ZERT 869
Non-audit services (Note) FERZERTS (M 5E) 498
1,367

Note: Non-audit services include services for reviewing the interim results of the Group

for the six months ended 30 June 2014 and other non-audit services.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engages an external professional company secretarial
services provider, Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited (“Uni-1"), to
provide compliance and full range of company secretarial services to
the Group in order to assist the Group to cope with the changing
regulatory environment and to suit difference commercial needs.

Ms. Chan Yuen Ying, Stella (“Ms. Chan”), the representative of Uni-1, is
the named Company Secretary of the Company. The biographical
details of Ms. Chan are set out under the section headed "Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management”.

Mr. Tian Jiong, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, is the
primary point of contact at the Company for the Company Secretary.

According to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms.
Chan has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
for the financial year ended 31 December 2014.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communications between the shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the
place as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting,
other than an annual general meeting, shall be called a special general
meeting.

SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE A SPECIAL
GENERAL MEETING

Shareholders may convene a special general meeting of the Company
according to the provisions as set out in the Bye-Laws and the
Companies Act of Bermuda. The procedures shareholders can use to
convene a special general meeting are set out in the document
entitled “Procedures for a Shareholder to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director”, which is currently available on the Company’s
website.
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PUTTING ENQUIRIES BY SHAREHOLDERS TO
THE BOARD

To ensure effective communications between the Board and the
shareholders and the investment community at large, the Company
has adopted a set of shareholders communication policy (the “Policy”)
on 12 March 2012. Under the Policy, the Company'’s information shall
be communicated to the shareholders and the investment community
mainly through the Company’s financial reports (interim reports and
annual reports), and its corporate communications and other
corporate publications on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange's website. Shareholders and the investment community
may at any time make a request for the Company's information to the
extent such information is publicly available. Any such questions shall
be first directed to the Company Secretary at the Company's principal
place of business in Hong Kong.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS BY SHAREHOLDERS AT
SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING

The number of members necessary for a requisition for putting
forward a proposal at a general meeting shall be:

(@ any number of members holding not less than one-twentieth (5%)
of the paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the
requisition carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company; or

(b)  not less than one hundred members.

A copy or copies of requisition signed by all requisitionists shall be
deposited, with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses in giving notice of the proposed resolution or circulating any
necessary statement, at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong in the case of:

() a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, not less than six
weeks before the meeting; and

(i) any other requisition, not less than one week before the
meeting.

The Company will verify the requisition and upon confirming that the
requisition is proper and in order, the Board will proceed with the
necessary procedures.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
There has been no change to the Company's constitutional documents
during the year.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Board recognises the importance of good communications with
all shareholders. The Company’s annual general meeting is a valuable
forum for the Board to communicate directly with the shareholders.
The Chairman of the Board as well as the chairman of each of the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Ccommittee together with the external auditor are present to answer
shareholders’ questions. The annual report together with annual
general meeting circular will be distributed to all the shareholders at
least 20 clear business days before the annual general meeting.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll except where the
chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates
purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by a
show of hands. As such, all the resolutions set out in the notice of the
2015 annual general meeting will be voted by poll.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a proper and
effective system of internal control of the Group. The internal control
system includes safeguard of the interest of shareholders and the
Group's assets. The Board has delegated to management the
implementation of all relevant financial, operational, compliance
controls and risk management functions without a defined framework.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board has conducted a
review on the system of internal control to ensure the effectiveness
and adequacy of the system. The Board shall conduct such review at
least once annually.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 38
to the financial statements respectively.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages
98 t0 99.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of RMB1
cent per share (equivalent to HK cents 1.26) for the year ended 31
December 2014 to be paid on Friday, 19 June 2015 to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on
Tuesday, 9 June 2015.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the identity of the shareholders
entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company to be held on Monday, 1 June 2015 (“2015 AGM"), the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 28
May 2015 to Friday, 29 May 2015, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be effected. All transfers
accompanied by the relevant certificates must be lodged with the
Ccompany'’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 27
May 2015.

For determining the entitlement of the shareholders to the proposed
final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed
on Tuesday, 9 June 2015, no transfer of shares will be registered on
that date. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all
transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 8
June 2015.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the share capital for the year ended 31
December 2014 are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group revalued its investment property at the year-end date. The
net increase in fair value of RMB50,867,000 has been credited directly
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Details of the movements in the investment property and property,
plant and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in notes
20 and 21 to the financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2014, the Company had reserves in an amount of
approximately RMB121,056,000 available for cash distribution and/or
distribution in specie. Under the laws of Bermuda, the Company’s
contributed surplus account may be distributed under certain
circumstances, as at 31 December 2014, the balance of the account
was nil.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Tian Ming (Chairman)
Mr. Xiang Jiong (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Shen Leying (Co-Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Xie Yuanjian (Chief Technology Officer)
Mr. Lu Baoxiang
(Appointed on 23 February 2014)
Mr. Liu Da (Chief Financial Officer)
(Resigned on 5 January 2015)
Mr. Ding Feng
(Resigned on 23 February 2014)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:
Ms. Zhou Qin
(Appointed on 5 January 2015)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Xu Xiaonian

Mr. Ding Yuan

Mr. Lee Kwan Hung
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In accordance with the Company’s Bye-law 87, Messrs. Xu Xiaonian,
Ding Yuan and Lee Kwan Hung will retire by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the 2015 AGM.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-law 86(2), Ms. Zhou Qin, being
a Director appointed after the last annual general meeting, shall retire
from office as Director and, being eligible, offers herself for re-election
at the 2015 AGM.

The Company entered into a service contract with each of Mr. Tian

Ming, Ms. Shen Leying and Mr. Xie Yuanjian, executive Directors, on
31 July 2013 for a term of three years commencing from 31 July 2013.

The Company entered into a service contract with Mr. Xiang Jiong, an
executive Director, on 18 November 2013 for a term of three years
commencing from 18 November 2013.

The Company entered into a service contract with Mr. Lu Baoxiang, an
executive Director, on 23 February 2014 for a term of three years
commencing from 24 February 2014.

The Company entered into an appointment letter with each of Mr. Xu
Xiaonian, Mr. Ding Yuan and Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, independent non-
executive Directors, on 31 July 2013 for a term of three years
commencing from 31 July 2013.

The Company also entered into an appointment letter with Ms. Zhou
Qin, a non-executive Director, on 5 January 2015 for a term of three
years commencing from 5 January 2015.

Each of the above Directors is subject to the retirement by rotation
and re-election pursuant to the Bye-Laws.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571, Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO’) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or were required
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were
as follows:

LONG POSITION IN ORDINARY SHARES OF HK$0.01
EACH OF THE COMPANY

EERFETBRAERKRS - HEBER®D
RfEs kR

RZE—NF+—A=+—H ARREEXFE
TBABRAARSHEMBEEZE (ERREEE
PlEsS7T1 EFEHFRAEGKO(TELERAEKRD] E
XVER) 2Bt - RGO RESFT  BEREES
MEREIEBIEXVERE 7 R 8 A A MG AN QN A R
Frzigam AR + SRR B H & A E 151 8 352 15
BREPMEFI Tl B MR 2 s KA R ¢ SARMR
ETBETAESETESFRSHNIRETH ([1ZEST
A NBESTTAEARREB RBR Mz EmRARIAT

RAQAFTEBREECOIETERERZ
L3}

Approximate

Number of Shares/ shareholding
Name of Directors Capacity Underlying shares percentage
EEnE 14 B 13, HHEARR 13 B BHARRBE D
Mr. Tian Ming (“Mr. Tian") Interest of controlled corporation 2,209,991,823 74.16
and/or beneficial owner (Note 1)
MRS A ([HEED) REHEEER N REREE A
Beneficial owner (Note 2) 1,596,000 0.05
BEmEA A (M5E2)
Mr. Xiang Jiong Beneficial owner (Note 2) 1,596,000 0.05
A {5 A Emda A (f5E2)
Ms. Shen Leying Beneficial owner (Note 2) 1,064,000 0.04
R+ Emda A (5t2)
Mr. Xie Yuanjian Beneficial owner (Note 2) 1,064,000 0.04
ARER S EmfEA A (ME2)
Mr. Lu Baoxiang Beneficial owner (Note 2) 888,000 0.03
EEMLE Emma A (fsr2)
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Notes:

) These 2,209,991,823 shares are held through Greensheid Corporation
("Greensheid”), a company which is wholly-owned by Landsea International
Holdings Limited (“Landsea International”), which is in turn wholly-owned by
Landsea Group Co., Limited (“Landsea Group”), a company which its issued shares
are held as to approximately 14.49% by Mr. Tian and as to 15.75% by Nanjing Ding
Chong Investment Management Consultants Ltd., a company which is in turn held
as to approximately 92.5% by Mr. Tian and as to approximately 7.5% by eight
individuals (accordingly the attributable interest of Mr. Tian in Landsea Group is
approximately 29.06%).

2 These are restricted shares granted according to the restricted share award
scheme adopted by the Board on 2 July 2014.

Save as disclosed, as at 31 December 2014, none of the Directors and
the chief executives of the Company and their respective associates
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions in which they are deemed or taken to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein or which
were required pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than those disclosed in the sections headed “Connected
Transaction and Continuing Connected Transactions” below and
“Related Party Transactions” in note 36 to the financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2014, no contracts of significance to
which the Company or its subsidiaries were a party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 2 July 2014, the Board adopted a restricted share award scheme
(“Share Award Scheme”) as an incentive to recognise the contributions
by employees and to give incentives to retain them for the continuing
operation and development of the Group, as well as attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group. The Directors
strongly believe that the continued success of the Group is closely tied
with the commitment and efforts of the employees of the Group. The
shares subject to restrictions (“Restricted Shares”) can serve as an
incentive to motivate them to further contribute to the Group. The
Restricted Shares to be awarded will be with reference to the
performance, operating and financial targets and other criteria
determined by the Board from time to time. The Share Award Scheme
shall be effective for a term of 10 years commencing on the date of
adoption subject to any early termination as may be determined by
the Board.

The summary of the principal terms and conditions of Share Award
Scheme were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 2 July
2014. On 19 November 2014, the Company granted a total of
17,828,000 Restricted Shares to reward the eligible awardees. On the
reporting date, an aggregate of 17,828,000 Restricted Shares were
granted, details of which were set out as below:

BR 5l 14 A 40 SR B =t &)

RZF—NFLAZHB  EFRRMR IR 8
By ET &I (At BT & D ERRBUEFRENE
BB PMAREENFELENBERMES
h AAREEE-FHRBEEE AT - EFE
& ARBEZFHERYEAEERE 2 FERE S
ZEARE - ZRHIAA (TBRBIMERL 1) AT AR —
BRI EBIE - P HAREERER - 5T
BHHRBIERD B2 ERE  ARELERME
BEELBREERTMHRAEENEMEEET - K
DR B R RA A BELER  SHTF  RIE
REBFERRERERL -

FI]

BOREEE CEERABERI N S —NF L
AZBARRARFBZAERN - RZZ—NHNF+—A
+h B ARQFEREHA 17,828,000 B BR #1415
INEREIEEMAL - A& B - H A $£17,828,000
MREIBR B AR (D - FFIBEERSIT -

Number of

Restricted
Awardees Shares Date of granting Vesting conditions
ERBAL PR &I AR 1D 2L B RTFEH BEEEG
Mr. Tian 1,596,000 19 November 2014 (1) Subject to fulfillment of the year’s preset
MAFE A 201411 H19H performance, operation and financial targets at
Mr. Xiang Jiong 1,596,000 the discretion of the Board.
[R5 A //\??é§$%?ﬁﬁ@']\ ERTENFERE - &
Ms. Shen Leying 1,064,000 BERUBER -
FRES& 41 (2)  After satisfying condition (1), a waiting period of
Mr. Xie Yuanjian 1,064,000 two years is required.
AL E s () EFB RS E - ALBREmEEN)
Mr. Lu Baoxiang 888,000 BB R R MFENTERESH -
EEALE
Ms. Zhou Qin 620,000
A#+
Remaining 44 11,000,000

eligible employees

BTUMEBEEREE
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SHARE OPTIONS

The share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted and became
effective upon passing relevant ordinary resolution at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 25 April 2012. Summary of
the principal terms of the Scheme were set out in the circular to the
Company’s shareholders on 22 March 2012. No share option was
granted under the Scheme since its adoption.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Options” and
“Restricted Share Award Scheme” above, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Company’s Directors or chief executives
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2014, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows
that other than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain
Directors and chief executives, the following shareholders had notified
the Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of the
Company:
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LONG POSITIONS IN ORDINARY SHARES OF RKAGEBREEIIEBLEEBR 2
HK$0.01 EACH OF THE COMPANY )
Number of shares held
FrERH#E Percentage
Direct Indirect in total number
Name of Shareholders interest interest Total of issued shares
HERT
RRER EfRG BiEs 8%  ROBEELN
Landsea Group Co., Ltd. (Note 1) B EERHERAF (1) - 2,209991,823 2,209991,823 74.16
Landsea International Holdings Limited Landsea International Holdings Limited - 2,209,991,823 2,209,991,823 7416
(Note 1) (Bt 1)
Greensheid Corporation (Note 1) Greensheid Corporation (&£ 1) 2,209991,823 - 2,209991,823 74.16
Mr. Wong Chung Tak, Richard (Note 2) TRELE(HE2) - 188,440,623 188,440,623 6.32
Ms. Ng Ka Fong, lenny (Note 2) REF L (M) - 188,440,623 188,440,623 6.32
Thing On Group Limited (Note 2) Thing On Group Limited (Miz£2) 188,440,623 - 188,440,623 6.32
Notes: BEsE -

Q] These 2,209,991,823 shares are held through Greensheid, a company which is
wholly-owned by Landsea International, which is in turn wholly-owned by Landsea
Group, a company which its issued shares are held as to approximately 14.49% by
Mr. Tian and as to 15.75% by Nanjing Ding Chong Investment Management
Consultants Ltd., a company which is in turn held as to approximately 92.5% by Mr.
Tian and as to approximately 7.5% by eight individuals (accordingly the attributable
interest of Mr. Tian in Landsea Group is approximately 29.06%). Therefore, each of
Landsea International and Landsea Group is deemed to be interested in
2,209,991,823 shares under the SFO.

2) The entire issued share capital of Thing On Group Limited (“Thing On”") is
beneficially owned by Mr. Wong Chung Tak, Richard (“Mr. Wong"), Ms. Ng Ka Fong,
Jenny ("Ms. Ng") is the spouse of Mr. Wong. Therefore, Mr. Wong and Ms. Ng are
deemed to be interested in 188,440,623 shares held through Thing On.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any
other relevant interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as at 31 December 2014.

1) 2,209,991,823 % f% 15 79 i% i Greensheid #5 & + Greensheid
fj Landsea International & & # 4 - i Landsea International
AmMFEE2EER  PAFEENERITRGOFT &
14.49% AL EHH - 15.75% H — 2D BlH B X4 RNE
ATHEHBH25% RH75% 2 AAIEFHE - Bt RIEEFEH
N Hj & 1 5] Landsea International &2 B8 3% & & # & & ®
2,209,991,823 B AR 17 7 e A 4 2 o

) Thing On Group Limited ([ Thing On ) K2 0 & #1717 A
FTREEE(TEEDERERS  MRESZKE(REL])
ABTRENEG At TAEREZTHEANREB
Thing On#E 5 2 188,440,623 P I 1n R B #E2s o

BREXHEEEN RCT-—WF+-_A=1+—
B ARBEHEEMNENARR BN RABRMDZ
Hib BRAEm IR R o
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group has the following
connected transactions:

On 23 February 2014, Nanjing Langming Property Development
Company Limited* (MR EWEMZE AR AF) (“"Nanjing
Langming”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
purchaser and Suzhou Landsea Technology Real Estate Co., Ltd. (/M
ERFF R E AR A 7)), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Landsea Group,
as vendor entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to
which Nanjing Langming conditionally agreed to acquire the entire
registered capital of Wuxi Langhua Development Co., Ltd.* (#E$5EA%E
E ¥ AR A7) for a consideration of RMB50,000,000.

The acquisition constituted a major transaction for the Company
under Rule 14.06(3) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). As the
vendor is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Landsea Group, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, the acquisition also constituted a
connected transaction for the Company. The acquisition was approved
by the independent shareholders of the Company at the special
general meeting held on 31 March 2014 and was subsequently
completed on 26 May 2014.

*for identification purpose only
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For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group has the following
financial assistances which are exempt from the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules:

(1) (a) the entrusted loan agreement entered into between Nanjing
Langming as borrower and Landsea Group as lender and (b) the
entrusted loan contract entered into between Nanjing Langming,
Landsea Group and Agricultural Bank of China Limited
("Agricultural Bank”) on 26 August 2013 in relation to the
granting of an entrusted loan in the principal amount of
RMB100,000,000 to Nanjing Langming by Landsea Group through
Agricultural Bank for a term of 366 days commenced on 26
August 2013 at an interest rate of 5.5% per annum. Under this
entrusted loan contract, RMB100,000,000 was drawn down by
Nanjing Langming on 26 August 2013. The loan in the amount of
RMB100,000,000 (together with accrued interests) was fully
repaid on 27 August 2014;

(2)  (a) the entrusted loan agreement entered into between Nanjing
Langming as borrower and Landsea Group as lender, and (b) the
entrusted loan contract entered into between Nanjing Langming,
Landsea Group and Agricultural Bank on 28 August 2013 in
relation to the granting of an entrusted loan in the principal
amount of RMB400,000,000 to Nanjing Langming by Landsea
Group through Agricultural Bank for a term of 2 years
commenced from 28 August 2013 at an interest rate of 5.5% per
annum. Under this entrusted loan contract, RMB80,000,000,
RMB200,000,000 and RMB120,000,000 were drawn down by
Nanjing Langming on 28 August 2013, 22 September 2013 and
26 September 2013 respectively. The entrusted loans should be
repayable in full (together with the accrued interests) by Nanjing
Langming on the day 366th day from the date on which the
entrusted loans were drawn down. The loans in the amount of
RMB80,000,000 and RMB200,000,000 together with
RMB120,000,000 were fully repaid (together with respective
accrued interests) on 27 August 2014 and 10 September 2014
respectively;
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the shareholder loan agreement entered into between Cathay
Holdings Limited (“Cathay”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as borrower and Greensheid as lender on 9
September 2013 relating to the granting of a shareholder loan in
the principal amount of HK$250,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB197,500,000) to Cathay by Greensheid for a term of 2 years
commenced on 9 September 2013 at an interest rate of 5.5% per
annum. Under this shareholder loan agreement, HK$140,000,000
was drawn down by Cathay on 23 December 2013. The
entrusted loan should be repayable in full (together with the
accrued interests) by Nanjing Langming on the day 366th day
from the date on which the entrusted loans were drawn down.
The loan in the amount of HK$140,000,000 (together with
accrued interests) was fully repaid on 25 February 2014,

(a) the entrusted loan agreement entered into between Nanjing
Langming as borrower and Landsea Group as lender, and (b) the
entrusted loan contract entered into between Nanjing Langming,
Landsea Group and Agricultural Bank on 9 September 2013 in
relation to the granting of an entrusted loan in the principal
amount of RMB1,000,000,000 to Nanjing Langming by Landsea
Group through Agricultural Bank for a term of 2 years
commenced on 9 September 2013 at an interest rate of 5.5% per
annum. Under this entrusted loan contract, RMB385,000,000,
RMB350,000,000 and RMB265,000,000 were drawn down by
Nanjing Langming on 26 September 2013 and 13 December 2013
respectively. The entrusted loans should be repayable in full
(together with the accrued interests) by Nanjing Langming on
the day 366th day from the date on which the entrusted loans
were drawn down. The loans in the amount of RMB385,000,000
and RMB350,000,000 thereof (together with respective accrued
interests) were fully repaid on 10 September 2014 and 19
November 2014 respectively, and the remaining
RMB265,000,000 was still outstanding as at 31 December 2014,
and

@)
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(5) on 10 January 2014, the Company entered into the shareholder
loan framework agreement (“Framework Agreement”) with
Landsea Group in relation to the grant of the shareholder loan(s)
in an aggregate principal amount of not exceeding
RMB2,300,000,000 (or the Hong Kong Dollar equivalent) by
Landsea Group to the Company and/or its subsidiaries during
the two-year period from the date of the Framework Agreement.
Loan agreement(s) and/or entrusted loan agreement(s) would be
entered into between Landsea Group and the Company and/or
its subsidiaries for each shareholder loan to be granted under
the Framework Agreement at an interest rate of 5.5% per
annum. During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
entered into three entrusted loan agreements with Landsea
Group. Under these three agreements, an aggregate of
RMB1,852,000,000 was drawn down by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2014.

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group has the following
non-exempt continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules:

(1) on 23 February 2014, the Company and Landsea Group entered
into an agreement (“Property Development and Management
Services Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group provides
property development and management services to Landsea
Group. The property development and management services
comprise (i) preliminary project stage management services,
including customers survey, positioning of the project, planning
design management, and preliminary stage administration; (ii)
sales management, including agency services, sales and
planning management, and customer services administration;
(iii) construction and delivery management, including
procurement management, cost management, engineering and
construction management, completion inspection and delivery
administration, customer services and maintenance services, (iv)
other management services, which comprise administration and
human resources management, drawings and file management
and financial management, and (v) financing advisory services.
The Property Development and Management Services
Agreement has a fixed term of three financial years ending 31
December 2016. During the year, the Group received from
Landsea Group property development and management income
in an aggregate amount of approximately RMB528,617,000.
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The annual cap for the financial year ended 31 December 2014
in respect of the Property Development and Management
Services Agreement is RMB660,000,000.

(2)  on 23 February 2014, the Company and /885 R 232585

AR A A (Shanghai Landsea Planning Construction Design Co.,
Ltd.) ("Landsea Design”) entered into an agreement (“Design
Services Agreement”), pursuant to which Landsea Design
provides design services to the Group. The Design Services
Agreement has a fixed term of two financial years ending 31
December 2015. During the year, the Group paid to Landsea
Group design services fee in an amount of approximately
RMB23,231,000.

The annual cap for the financial year ended 31 December 2014
in respect of the Design Services Agreement is RMB52,000,000.

Under the Listing Rules, the transactions in relation to Property
Development and Management Services Agreement and Design
Services Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for
the Company. The two transactions were approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company at the special general
meeting held on 31 March 2014.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that the transactions have been entered into:

1. inthe ordinary and usual course of the Group's business;

2. onnormal commercial terms; and

3. have been carried out in accordance with the terms of the
agreements governing such transactions that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the above
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued its unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions
in respect of the above continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s purchases from the five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 46.76% of the Group'’s total purchases
and purchases from the largest supplier included therein accounted
for approximately 14.44% of the Group’s total purchases.

During the year, the Group's revenue from the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 80.71% of the Group’s total revenue and
revenue from Landsea Group, being the largest customer included
therein accounted for approximately 75.11% of the Group’s total
revenue.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the Company, their
associates, nor any shareholder which to the best knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital,
had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2014.

PRE-EMPTVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws, or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a prorata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENT OF PUBLIC FLOAT
The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 December 2014.
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AUDITORS

BDO Limited (“BDQO") resigned as auditor of the Company with effect
from 22 October 2013, and PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC") was
appointed as auditor of the Company with effect from 22 October
2013 to fill the casual vacancy occasioned by the resignation of BDO.
Save as aforesaid, there was no change in auditor during the past
three years.

A resolution will be submitted to the 2015 AGM to re-appoint PWC as

auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd.

Shen Leying
Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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i
pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF LANDSEA GREEN PROPERTIES CO., LTD.
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Landsea
Green Properties Co., Ltd. (the “"Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 98 to 204, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31
December 2014, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

: 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2289 8888  Fax: +852 2810 9888
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2014 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31 March 2015

B ZBAHRE

BEET R B AE ()
AMERBELSHDHLEBHNEBEERE
TE - ZSEABRAMYTERNE WL
RATES AL RREGAMBRREATEE
{EMBASHREL -

B RATREANERE @GS M EHRRAE S
BMERBEERNENRRE - MEENEABURNZ
BUEDE 2 - BREF A BN HGFRERMER S
MBREFEEAHERBCAO AR - EFFEZER
I AZ BN E BB L A R AR Bl AR B B TS R AR
HEEMRFHORRAEOAEES - LKHEE
METERN - (BB WAL IEE R R RENE S A R
BRER - BANTBEFEESMRASEERN
BEMRELEEFNAEYE  ULFELRAH
Bk ERIHRT A

HTAIEME - RPIMESHRTREETEIEE
REMMETERIRHEER -

=R
BPRR ZEHAMBRRCREFTBMBRE

HAEEMAFbRE BRARE BEEER_-F

—MOF+—A=+—BNEBERL k& E£EE

EZALFENFMBERESRE  WEEBREBA

FMEBIR I 5B Bk Z AR T

BOERKEBSHEMERT

HEDE AN

F& —E—AF=A=+—H
Rt ERRAT ¢« —T—JIFFER

97



98

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
mezEBaER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE—ZT—NHF+-A=+—HIFE

Notes
B aE

continuing operations FEEE
Revenue WA 6,7
Cost of sales and services & MRS AR 1
Gross profit EF
Other income H bWz 8
Selling expenses HEEM 1
Administrative expenses THEA "
Fair value gain on investment properties & MWEDN AL BENGE 20
Other (losses)/gains, net Hth (E8R), M5 — F8 9
Operating profit £ A
Finance costs 7% 8 A 10
Share of losses of associated companies FE(EEE N A E I 18
Share of loss of a joint venture EiE—RaahEEE 19
Profit before income tax BRETISTERIFE
Income tax expense FriS®i & A 12
Profit for the year from continuing operations 3% 48 45 & #9 & )4
Discontinued operation HRILEE
Profit for the year from BIEEENFEENHE

a discontinued operation 13
Profit for the year FERE
Other comprehensive income/(loss)  Eftim& il (E#E)
Translation differences which may be AR EREHE L ERE

subsequently recycled to profit or l0ss

Other comprehensive income/(loss)

for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income

for the year
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-ZT—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

Notes
M

Profit for the year attributable to:
The owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income
for the year attributable to:

The owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Basic and diluted earnings per share
from continuing operations
attributable to the owners of the
Company

Basic and diluted earnings per share
from continuing and discontinued
operations attributable
to the owners of the Company

Details of the dividend recommended to the shareholders of the

Company are set out in Note 16.

The notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

FMEBER :
ARABIRAEH
SR lE: o

FEERGEREREBRN

ZANSIIREE
EISE e Fo

FRAFASENEBRELR
REUSEEBRAQRAMEE

FRAREKERREEENER
EXRBEREEE
RAEXTRBE

14
33

15

15

MiFERAR A MR BREED -

BFREMERRQT o

2013
—F—=F
RMB'000

ARBTIT
(Restated)
(geE7))

28,519

28,519

19,442

19,442

RVB
ARH

0.009

0.014

BEIRE T AR BN SFFERNMTE16

—T-MFEFER
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B ISR &

As at 31 December 2014 W-—Z—ME+_-_F=+—8H

Notes
ks

Non-current assets FERBEE
Investment property A MY 20
Property, plant and equipment TEE - THER&RE 21
Interests in associated companies /N o ey 18
Interests in a joint venture R—EeErHEIER 19
Non-current deposit FEmEIRS 25
Deferred tax assets RIETRIEA 29
Current assets RBEE
Properties held for sale FHIEHEME 23
Properties under development 8 R F i EE 24
Deposits for purchase of land BEITHNES
Other receivables, prepayments HE e - B REES

and deposits 25
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary JE W — 1 [R) 22 Bt /&8 A R 5k IE 36
Prepaid taxes TERTRIE
Restricted cash ZRHE S 26
Cash and cash equivalents HekBEeSEYD 26
Current liabilities REBEE
Creditors and accruals FERRF R ERTE A 27
Advanced proceeds received BB WA 2 TR 5K IR

from customers
Amounts due to non-controlling interests — FEA FEF2E Hl 1 #E 25 70 IE 33
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FESTR BT/ A B 5kIE 36
Borrowings CE 28
Taxation payable FEARBLR

LANDSEA GREEN PROPERTIES CO., LTD. ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2014

2013

RMB'000
AREFT
(Restated)
(#e&E7))

154,256
2,178

159,758

17,323
1,098,908
455,200

14,676
110,491
12,519
54,800
956,660

2,720,577

93,102

169,163

50,000
1,385,600
1,594

1,699,459



Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

Equity

Capital and reserves attributable
to the owners of the Company

Share capital

Reserves

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

On behalf of the Board
EFxedo

Xiang Jiong
@ 4
Director
-

The notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

—ET—=F
Note RMB'000
M5 ARBTIT
(Restated)
(& =75))
REEETFE 1,021,118
HEEHRRBEE 1,180,876
kRBER
EE 28 120,000
RERIEAE 29 18,685
138,685
FEE 1,042,191
s
BARARFEEFBRARRIMEE
f& A 30 23,939
[tz 32 1,008,252
1,032,191
e M 33 10,000
e 1,042,191

Shen Leying
R
Director

EE

MiFERaR B M mA B BN -

BRFREMERRAT « T UFFR
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Statement of Financial Position

B IR R

As at 31 December 2014 W-—Z—ME+_-_F=+—8H

Notes
ihg=s
Non-current asset kREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries BRI E 22
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables, prepayments HmEls - AR kRS
and deposits 25
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUT B B A B RUE 22
Cash and cash equivalents RERIBSEEY 26
Current liabilities REBEE
Creditors and accruals FERERA N ERTE R 27
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEATI B A Bl FUAR 22
Borrowings B 28
Net current assets REBEETFHE
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Borrowings BN 28
Net assets FEE

LANDSEA GREEN PROPERTIES CO., LTD. ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2014

2013

RMB'000
ARETIT

88
203,339
618,106

821,533

787,377

787,377



As at 31 December 2014 R—F—p&E+=A=

Notes
B aE
Equity e
Share capital &N 30
Reserves s 32
Total equity R
On behalf of the Board
EE5g(Em
Xiang Jiong Shen Leying
&4 e
Director Director
EE E

The notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.

MR A M HRRABEEED -

BFREMERRQT o

2013
—F—=F
RMB'000
AR¥ET T

23,939
763,438

787,377

—T-MFEFER
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERRBEIX

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE-—T—NF+-A=1+—HIFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

GBRALRAMAS
Capital Non-
Share  Translation  redemption Retained controlling Total
Share capital premium reserve reserve eamings Total interests equity
EXED JERRTI M
BA  RWEE  FTERE fBE  Brla b Ea s
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR AREBTT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETr ARETR
At 1 January 2013 —E-=§-f-H
(Restated) (&&350) 16,091 - - 23,185 389,008 428,284 - 428,284
Profit for the year EERE - - - - 28,519 28,519 - 28,519
Other comprehensive Hgaks
income
Exchange difference arising KB /EINEHRMER
from translation of foreign ~ TEZH
operations - - (9,077) - - (9,077) - (9,077)
Total comprehensive FEAGANE
income for the year - - 9.077) - 28519 19,442 - 19,442
Issue of shares uponrights — Z{TBRERIEIR
issue (note 30) (M3E30) 7,848 576,617 - - - 584,465 - 584,465
Contribution from SEREIMERORA
non-controlling interest - - - - - - 10,000 10,000
At 31 December 2013 “E-ZE+ZR
(Restated) =t+-H(BE5) 23939 576,617 9.077) 23,185 417527 1,032,191 10,000 1,042,191

LANDSEA GREEN PROPERTIES CO., LTD. ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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At 1 January 2014 (Restated)

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Bxchange difference arising from

translation of foreign operations

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Contribution from
non-controlling interest

Acquisition of addition interest
ina subsidiary (note 33)

Employee share based
compensation

Shares held for share
award scheme

Transfer to statutory reserve

At 31 December 2014

~%-BE-A-A(REY)

FERA

Aftsels

REBISHOERTEZE

FEAGANE

FEHERRORA

WE-EHELTRMER

(H3i3)

fagic i

ARhEEAmSANRD

BREATER

“E-mEtoAZt-R

The notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial M3 A44SR AR LI -

Statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE—ZT—NHF+-A=+—HIFE

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:

Interest income
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Gain on fair value of investment property
Interest expenses
Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary
Share of losses of associated companies
Share of loss of a joint venture
Employee share based compensation
Gain on disposals of property,
plant and equipment
Gain on disposals of available-for-sale
financial assets

Operating profit/(loss) before movements

in working capital

Increase in properties under development
Decrease in properties held for sale
Increase in deposits for purchase of land
Increase in other receivables,

prepayments and deposits

Increase in creditors and accruals
Increase in amounts due

to non-controlling interests

Increase in advanced proceeds received

from customers

Increase in restricted cash
Increase in employee share trust
Decrease in trade receivables
Decrease in loans and receivables
Decrease in financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss

REEBNRERE
BR PSR AT AIE
HE
S A
THE IRERENTE

BREMMENAREBENE
MEER
BREE—MHEBRRNHNE
FEIGEE 2 R EEE
EIE—HAELEER

BB T A e e
RETHE - THERENNE

REAHBESREENTE

MREEEAEBALETE,
(E18)

B3 b 55 b A 1R N

FEHEMERD

BE LIRS

H b e - FAM R R IR SR N

e AR K BT B A N
JEAS SEFR I 1 R 2 SR IR N

A% P W BR 2z TR SRR A0

PR IR 238 hn

BLTARD 2 8 10
RS SR >
RO

HAR IS B LS B
RN BAEHD
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2013

RMB’000

ARETTT
(Restated)
(ge&E7))

(2,062)

(1,024)

(5,960)
(983,809)

(455,200)

(15,537)
82,122

169,163
(54,800)

160
105,300

7,398



Notes
M

Net cash used in operations
PRC land appreciation

and other taxes prepaid
Income tax paid
Interest paid

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received

REMANFRS
B LR E R IR HIA

BN
BERFE

BETBITAAFR T

REFHNRERE
BB

Purchases of property, plant and equipment f8 & T &hE&E - T MR

Disposal of a subsidiary, net of cash and
cash equivalents disposed of

RE—FHMBATE - HRHEN
RekBReEHED

Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from  fEUL R R M B A B R 4

fellow subsidiaries
Increase in interests
in associated companies
Decrease in amount due from
a joint venture
Acquisition of additional interest
in a subsidiary
Proceeds from disposals of property,
plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposals of
available-for-sale financial assets

Net cash used in investing activities

(1Zh0)
B2 X MRS 8 0

FE WA 2 b 2 FIRIE BN

Yo i — TP B 2 RS M 2

BRETEE - THNRREMER

BEAHEESBREEMSK

KRELBITARFRE

34

BFREMERRQT o

RMB'000
ARBT T
(Restated)
(#e&E7))

(1,151,159)

(4,723)
(12,519)

(1,168,401)

4,119
(1,998)

(110,491)

4,012

1,024

(103,334)

—T-mEER
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE—ZT—NHF+-A=+—HIFE

2013
—ET—=F
Notes RMB’000
B aE ARBT T
(Restated)
(& E5)

Cash flows from financing activities ®EZENRERE
Loans from the shareholders [FEREEAN 1,345,600
Repayment of shareholders’ loans ERRRER -
New bank loans B IRITIERR 160,000
Repayment of bank loans EERBITER -
Interest paid BFE -
Contribution from non-controlling interests  3E1% i 14 #E 25 A9 3% A 10,000
Increase in amounts due &S [R) 22T /8B /2 B SR IEE A0

to fellow subsidiaries (66,888)
Dividends paid to owners of the Company 242 RIFF B & 2 1 IEF (294,767)
Proceeds from rights issue, net of costs BT B DTS

FOBR A A 584,465

Net cash from financing activities BETEELENFHE 1,738,410
Net (decrease)/increase in cash ReRRESZSEYFRL) 8

and cash equivalents 466,675
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January RekBeEEYw —A—H 499,373
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes NS [E SR et Sl o 2L (9,388)
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBESEEY

at 31 December +=A=+—H 26 956,660
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Notes to the Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd. (the “"Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability. The addresses of its registered office and principal place
of business are disclosed in the corporate information to the
annual report. The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("SEHK").

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Company and its
subsidiaries are referred to as the “"Group” hereinafter. The
Group is principally engaged in property investment and
property development and trading.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
discontinued its financial service operation and the details are
disclosed in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding company of
the Company is BA &F & [ ix 1p B BR 2 =] (Landsea Group Co.,
Ltd.), a company established in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC").

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Renminbi (“RMB’000") and were approved for issue
by the board of directors on 31 March 2015.

BT RS aR MY aE

—REH
AR BHERR AR (AR R—KEH
RAERDA - RBEREZMAL o M &
IBEBMWHNFERERARNERFTRE - K
REZBMEARBRMERZAERAF (178
D) BT e

ARAB—RREZERRDR - EEEMBLRF
ZEBFHITHENGE M MRS » AT
LREWMBARGES[AEE] AEEXE
REMEREE - MEBRERS -

BE-T-=F+-A=T—BILFE A%
MERIEHSBRBEY - HERENEAH
HHRAMIET3 -

EZeRR ARANRKERARAPFE
EROBRIR  ZRARRPEARKME
(THBI ) ARAL »

KGR BBRRAARETLI® - BE&H
EZgRN T RF=A=+—B#ETE-

BREEHERRLR « T UFFR

109



110

MERGER ACCOUNTING RESTATEMENT

The Group acquired the entire interest in #EiSEAZEE 2B R A 7
(Wuxi Langhua Development Co., Ltd.) from a fellow subsidiary
on 23 February 2014 at a cash consideration of RMB50,000,000.
The acquisition is considered as a business combination
involving entities under common control and has been
accounted for by using merger accounting method (Note 3.2) in
accordance with the guidance set out in Accounting Guideline 5
“Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. As a
result, the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2014 and the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for
the year ended 31 December 2013 have been restated to include
the results of the combining entities during that year. The
adoption of merger accounting for the year ended 31 December
2013 has resulted in a decrease in the Group’s total
comprehensive income and profit attributable to the owners of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2013 by
RMB9,863,000.

The effect of the merger accounting restatement described
above on the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2013 by line items is as follows:

LANDSEA GREEN PROPERTIES CO., LTD. ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR MIEE

2,

EHEEET

AREFBR -ZT—NFE-A-+=HUBELKE
7 AR 50,000,000 7oAt — R R E A T
BEGIAEEXBRARIMERE - i
RERPEZHRAEHERELS I RBRIE
BB ASRENSETIESIESH [H£A
e s e HestRE] - mRAGHEE
(Mt5E32) c At —ZF—MF+=-A=+—
BFEENGETEIRRE  FE2ElERE
P RNEASRERCHEEY - BHRZ

FENEEMNAHER -RNBE_T—=F
T RA=1THLEFERABEHSEREH
AEENFERGERaMREARBMAESE

HEFEFIE D BIR A AR 9,863,000 ©

RALEHEHEBIERBE_T—=F
TZA=Z+T—HLFENEHREREREME
MBEZENT



Notes to the Financial Statements
M HRRMEE

2. MERGER ACCOUNTING RESTATEMENT 2. AftETHEEY (&)
(Continued)

For the year For the year
ended Merger ended
31 December accounting 31 December
2013 restatement 2013

BE-Z—= BE-Z2—=
+=A=+—H +=ZA=+—H
LEE SHEsHEET LHEFE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFT AREF T AREF T
(Originally stated

and audited) (Restated)
(RY| R A& %) (s E5)

continuing operations IFERE
Revenue WA 22,067 - 22,067
Cost of sales and services SHE R RS A A (7,615) - (7,615)
Gross profit EF 14,452 - 14,452
Other income Hitn g A 4,296 46 4,342
Other gains, net HEmFE — 558 1,712 - 1,712
Selling expenses HEEM (769) (12,720) (13,489)
Fair value gain on KEMYMENRRBENSF

investment properties 38,426 - 38,426
Administrative expenses THEA (16,602) @77 (17,079)
Operating profit/(loss) R, (E18) 41,515 (13,151) 28,364
Finance costs W% ER (2,561) - (2,561)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETEERIFNE, (E518) 38,954 (13,151) 25,803
Income tax (expense)/credit e (BR) K% (10,494) 3,288 (7,206)
Profit/(loss) for the year from BESENEENE(FE)

continuing operations 28,460 (9,863) 18,597
Discontinued operation HRUIEEE
Profit for the year from BRI EFEN

a discontinued operation 9,922 - 9,922
Profit/(loss) for the year BEAATMEENEE

attributable to the owners of Utz (E518)

the Company 38,382 (9,863) 28,519
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br 755 R AR B

2. MERGER ACCOUNTING RESTATEMENT

2. SHEFEEY ()

(Continued)
For the year For the year
ended Merger ended
31 December accounting 31 December
2013 restatement 2013
BE-_ZT—=F% BE-Z—=
+=HA=+—8 +T=A=+—H
LEE &HEsHEET LEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFIT AREF T
(Originally stated
and audited) (Restated)
(RF R ER) €=
Other comprehensive loss Hit &R EEBR
ltems that may be reclassified BED I IBHENIER ¢
subsequently to profit or loss:
— Exchange difference arising —ERNEETERLER
from translation of foreign BINETGPTEE
operations (9,077) - (9,077)
Other comprehensive 10ss REEFHMERE EE -
for the year, net of tax HBRBIE (9,077) - (9,077)
Total comprehensive REEFBRAWE(BE)
income/(loss) for the year 29,305 (9,863) 19,442
RMB RMB RMB
AR¥TT AR AR
Basic and diluted earnings per share HELLHTRER KL
from continuing operations WEW S RS
attributable to the owners of the WARBIFTEE
Company 0.014 (0.005) 0.009
Basic and diluted earnings per share #5848 & I 4% | F 48 &K
from continuing and discontinued — GRRER RFEW S
operations attributable to the BERNARARMEE
owners of the Company 0.019 (0.005) 0.014
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B IEER R M EE

MERGER ACCOUNTING RESTATEMENT 2. AftETHEEY (&)
(Continued)
The effect of the merger accounting restatement on the RKEaHg s8R _E—=F+=A
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December =+ BHIENGEUBERRXREFER BNFE
2013 by line items is as follows: PN
As at Merger As at
31 December accounting 31 December
2013 restatement 2013
—E—= —E—=
+ZA=+—H &HgEEYN +=A=+—H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTFT AR¥ETF T ARBTF T
(Originally stated

and audited) (Restated)
(RP| RAEEZ) (g &%)
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment property WE 154,256 - 154,256
Property, plant and equipment TEE - TN &G 2,049 129 2,178
Deferred tax assets BRI EE - 3,324 3,324
156,305 3,453 159,758
Current assets RENEE
Properties held for sale FHEHEMZ 17,323 - 17,323
Properties held under development 535 9 5 ith & 883,661 215,247 1,098,908
Deposits for purchase of land BEIHHNIZS 455,200 - 455,200
Rental and other receivables, JEMIE S  HAnEUGR
prepayments and deposits R REE 14,386 290 14,676
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary &Y — 5 & 5 & A 7 08 - 110,491 110,491
Prepaid taxes TR HE - 12,519 12,519
Restricted cash ZREEE - 54,800 54,800
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEYD 948,658 8,002 956,660
2,319,228 401,349 2,720,577
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Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR MIEE

2. MERGER ACCOUNTING RESTATEMENT 2. EHEFEEY(E)

(Continued)
As at Merger As at
31 December accounting 31 December
2013 restatement 2013
—EB-=F —E—-=
+=ZBA=+—H &HEEEYN +t=A=1+-—H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFIT AREEF T
(Originally stated
and audited) (Restated)
(RY| R A& 2E%) (g &%)
Current liabilities REEE
Creditors and accruals FERERR BT E R 57,490 35,612 93,102
Advanced proceeds received B W2 FE R 5RIE
from customers - 169,163 169,163
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries  FE {7 Z BB A 71518 - 50,000 50,000
Borrowings B 1,345,600 40,000 1,385,600
Taxation payable FES R 1,594 - 1,594
1,404,684 294,775 1,699,459
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Borrowings B - 120,000 120,000
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBEE 18,685 - 18,685
18,685 120,000 138,685
Net assets BEE 1,052,164 (9,973) 1,042,191
Equity =
Capital and reserves attributable to &7 & (@57 B
the owners of the Company RARRIFTAEE
Share capital R AN 23,939 - 23,939
Reserves 1 1,018,225 (9,973) 1,008,252
1,042,164 (9,973) 1,032,191
Non-controlling interests FEFE MRS 10,000 - 10,000
Total equity RS 1,052,164 (9,973) 1,042,191
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MERGER ACCOUNTING RESTATEMENT 2.

(Continued)
The effect of the merger accounting restatement on the total
equity as at 1 January 2013 is as follows:

B B R R Y

SotEsHEES (&)

EAAHEIABISN =T =5 AR
RSB

As at Merger As at
1 January accounting 1 January
2013 restatement 2013
—E—= —=—=
—H—B &ftEiiEsl —H—H
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREEF T
(Originally
stated) (Restated)
(R7 RAEE==Z) (ge=:75)
Equity R
Share capital f& A 16,091 - 16,091
Reserves EE 412,303 (110) 412,193
428,394 (110) 428,284

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EES:HBERE

POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

3.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA"). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of investment property, which is carried at fair
value.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with the applicable requirements of the
predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) for this
financial year and the comparative period.

RENEAVBREFANEIEZSTBERERN
TX - BB A FAN - L FBEREPTIIRAFT
BEEENERER -

3.1 wmHEIEE
AEENGAMBRREBRER LG
rg((EEEAMAE ) ERNEE
MBEHRELEN(FEMBRSEER D &
HoGAMBRRBRE LKA LR
o WHREEYE ARG E
7 EREER/ANE -

REMBHRRERBERTE(QAIKF
I (£RNRTE)ERRTE - LAY EREF
JE A0 LE B HA R 10 A 61 o

BREEERRLR « —T—HFFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR MIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EE€HERE(H)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 3.1 bl EZE (&)
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in B A BB IS REEAN I ERE

conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the

FEERETHRE G - ENFE
EEETERAAKRENGHREBET
TTREEAE - P RRENHERREE
MUEMEE S REREMBHRRE
HERBRRAMGETHHE - A0S
WERMES PR -

consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 5
to the consolidated financial statements.

(i)  Effect of adopting new standards and (i)

amendments to standards

In the current year, the Group has applied for the

first time the following new standards and

amendments to standards issued by the HKICPA,

which are relevant to and effective for the Group's

consolidated financial statements for the annual

period beginning on 1 January 2014:

BRAFET N ENSHER B E

AEEBRARNFHERERTINELES
SHE A & R A B ET AT AN B 2
A pHEREREAREE LGRS R R
KMEBEAER =T —HF—A—H
FA 26 #O S E HAR AR A

HKAS 32 (Amendment)  Financial Instruments; Presentation BREHENEDT(EX) 2BIE: 2R
— Offsetting Financial Assets and —HBEEN
Financial Liabilities BiEmHH
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and  Investment entities BERBRERAE 0% RETE
HKAS 27 (Amendment BEUBREENE R
— revised 2011) RERGIENE 2%

(B2 —fgaT20m)
BRGIEAE R (%) FeREETRE
SROHE

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-financial Assets

HKAS 36 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 (Amendment) ~ Novation of derivatives BEAIEE0% (i) ITETANER
HK (IFRIC) Levies BE(ERGBREEE HE

Interpretation 21 RES)RELEENS

The adoption of the above new standards and NEBEIMLA T A B Ay
amendments to standards has no significant impact B EG AT BREREEATE o
on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B IS SRR M E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(ii)

New standard and amendments to standards
that have been issued but are not yet effective
The following new standard and amendments to
standards, potentially relevant to the Group's
consolidated financial statements, have been issued,
but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts?
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers®
Amendment to Defined Benefit Plans
HKAS 19 (2011) — Employee Contributions?
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods

of Depreciation and Amortisation?

Annual improvements
Projects
(2011-2013 Cycle)

Improvements to HKAS and HKFRS!

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017

4 Effective date is still open and pending the finalisation of

impairment and classification and measurement
requirements.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of the
above new standards and amendments to standards
will not result in a significant impact on the Group's
results and financial position.

3. EEGTHEEE (R

3.1 wmHEIEE (&)

(i)

BRRetERRAR o

E AR £ X B9 =T F E 52K

28/

REE R RIRFRAA TR EERE
fRe M BHmRAEEACBMEDNR
A REVFTRT A E S R

ERMBRSE
BEMBEE
&

FRENS 198
(B%—2011)

EEETEAS 165 R
SRR ER G

FEREE
(201120135 E3R)

RAEIH
RRIE 145
BRMHREENF 155

SMIA!
BRETELERS?
EREPARN
WAHER?
RIEBMEE -
BIBN?
ENEHEN
BES Vi
HER?
HERBETERR
BRHHRE
BRI HE

! R-F-—HFLA - B2 ERABN

FEHARER

? RIB-RF-A—-BZZMARKN
FEHRER

: RZF—tF—HA B ZEMABKRN
FIEHREER

‘ FERCA BIRAT R AR SERORLE - D3R
Rt 8HENK

EEgEsRA DT MK
2 B 75 1 2 S 7 R (B 0 48 2 A SR AT

MBBIRRELEEX

—=F
—=

C—UEF 3R

S/ 48
rE°

117



118

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(iii) New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.

622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts
and Audit” of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into operation as from
the Company’s first financial year commencing on or
after 3 March 2014 in accordance with section 358 of
that Ordinance. The Company is in the process of
making an assessment of expected impact of the
changes in the Companies Ordinance on the
consolidated financial statements in the period of
initial application of Part 9 of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). So far it has
concluded that the impact is unlikely to be significant
and only the presentation and the disclosure of
information in the consolidated financial statements
will be affected.

3.2 MERGER ACCOUNTING FOR BUSINESS

COMBINATION INVOLVING ENTITIES
UNDER COMMON CONTROL

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statement items of the combining entities or
businesses in which the common control combination
occurs as if they had been combined from the date when
the combining entities or businesses first came under the
control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
consolidated using the existing book values from the
controlling party’s perspective. No amount is recognised in
respect of goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in the
net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities
over cost at the time of common control combination, to
the extent of the continuation of the controlling party’s
interest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

3.3

MERGER ACCOUNTING FOR BUSINESS
COMBINATION INVOLVING ENTITIES
UNDER COMMON CONTROL (Continued)
The consolidated statement of comprehensive income
includes the results of each of the combining entities or
business from the earliest date presented or since the
date when the combining entities or businesses first came
under the common control, where there is a shorter
period, regardless of the date of the common control
combination. The comparative amounts in the
consolidated financial statements are presented as if the
entities or businesses had been combined at the end of
the previous reporting period or when they first came
under common control, whichever is shorter.

Business combination related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

SUBSIDIARIES

(i)  Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all its
subsidiaries made up to the end of December.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR MIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.3 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(i)

LANDSEA GREEN PROPERTIES CO., LTD. ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Consolidation (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions — that is, as transactions with
the owners of the subsidiary in their capacity as
owners. The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired
of the carrying amount of net assets of the subsidiary
is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B IEER R M EE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3. EEGTHEEE (R

3.3 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 3.3 MBATR (&)

(ii) Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee's
net assets including goodwill.

3.4 ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

An associated company is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associated companies are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the profit
or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The
group’s investments in associates include goodwill
identified on acquisition. The Group's investments in
associated companies include goodwill identified on
acquisition.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 ASSOCIATED COMPANIES (Continued)

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement, and its
share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of losses in an associated company equals
or exceeds its interest in the associated company,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associated company.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in the
associated company is impaired. If this is the case, the
Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the
associated company and its carrying value and recognises
the amount in the consolidated income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associated company are recognised in the Group’s
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor's interests in the associated companies.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associated companies
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associated
companies are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3. EEGTHEEE (R

3.5 JOINT ARRANGEMENT 3.5 6%

The Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangement AREEDTFHELSTHNEEL  BEAS
and determined it to be a joint venture. A joint venture is LTHBEENE A PEFAERS

accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interest in a joint
venture is initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. The Group’s investment in a joint
venture include goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon
the acquisition of the ownership interest in a joint venture,
any difference between the cost of the joint venture and
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the joint venture’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as
goodwill. When the Group's share of losses in a joint
venture equals or exceeds its interests in the joint venture
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint
venture), the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the joint venture.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the joint venture. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
the joint venture have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br 755 R AR B

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.6 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of the
performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported
to the executive directors are determined following the
Group's major business and service lines.

3.7 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

(@) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the consolidated financial
statements are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
RMB and the Company’s functional currency is HK$.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.7 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION
(Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-
inflationary economy) that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

— assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

— income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the
dates of the transactions); and

— all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation), all of
the currency translation differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or
loss.
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Br 755 R AR B

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.8

3.9

LANDSEA GREEN PROPERTIES CO., LTD. ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2014

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by
the Group. It also includes properties that are being
constructed or developed for future use as investment
properties. Land held under operating leases is accounted
for as investment properties when the rest of the definition
of an investment property is met. In such cases, the
operating leases concerned are accounted for as if they
were finance leases.

Investment property is initially measured at cost, including
related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing
costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are
carried at fair value, representing open market value
determined at each reporting date by external valuers. Fair
value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if
necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or
condition of the specific asset. If the information is not
available, the Group uses alternative valuation methods
such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. Changes in fair values are
recognised in the profit or loss.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The
cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a Separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs,
such as repairs and maintenance, are charged to profit or
loss during the year in which they are incurred.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3. EEGTHEEE (R

3.9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 3.9 FEE - ITRKZEE)

(Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment to their residual values using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives:

Leasehold land Over the lease terms

FrERMBIAT R A B FHHEK
AREEDBEENREENE

HETwHHR HEH

classified as finance RERE
lease
Buildings 4% or over the remaining terms Ex A5 A AF BARY 4% B,
of the leases of useful lives, FIerE B B &
whichever is shorter
Leasehold Over the lease terms, if shorter, & SHESMERNERRE
improvements or 5years
Furniture, fixturesand ~ 3-5 years RE-HEBER  35F
office equipment N L]
Motor vehicles 5-10 years ) E iR 5104

The assets’ residual value and estimated useful lives are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting
date.

Gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

3.10 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each balance sheet date.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.11PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT AND

HELD FOR SALE

Properties under development and held for sale are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Development
cost of properties comprises cost of land use rights,
construction costs and borrowing costs incurred during
the construction period. Upon completion, the properties
are transferred to completed properties held for sale.

Net realisable value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less applicable variable selling
expenses and the anticipated costs to completion.

Properties under development and held for sale are
classified as current assets unless the construction period
of the relevant property development project is expected
to complete beyond normal operating cycle.

3.12FINANCIAL ASSETS

(i) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: loans and receivables and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

(@) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the balance sheet date. These
are classified as non-current assets. The
Group’s loans and receivables also include
trade and other receivables, amounts due from
subsidiaries and cash and cash equivalents in
the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.12FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Classification (Continued)

(b)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are financial assets held for trading. A
financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this category
are classified as current assets if expected to
be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they
are classified as non-current.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs for all financial assets
not carried at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or
loss are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are included in the profit or loss.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br 755 R AR B

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

3.12FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

LANDSEA GREEN PROPERTIES CO., LTD. ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Recognition and measurement (Continued)
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss’ category are included in the profit or loss in the
period in which they arise. Dividend income from
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in the profit or loss when the Group's
right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

(@) Assets carried at amortised costs

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.12FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

(iv) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(@

Assets carried at amortised costs (Continued)
Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data
indicate that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the
amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract.
As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating),
the reversal of the previously recognised
impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.13CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and short term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

3.14SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issue of shares
are deducted from share premium to the extent they are
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

3.15PAYABLES

Payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Payable are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B IEER R M EE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EE2:i HEHEE(H)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.16BORROWINGS AND BORROWING COSTS 316FER K B
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of EBERRAARBETHRELENRSER
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently B IR TE R o & 30 H 18 1R 48 85 5k A< 7]
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the BE: FTER(FIBAZSZA) EHERLEE
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption YA fr] 22 BB M) A B R A R OE B S EAR
value is recognised in the consolidated statement of NELRE R IER ©

comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the BIEREBAEIEEEEENEEIRL
Group has an unconditional right to defer settiement of the EHERAEELI12EA  TANERSEE
liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date. ABRBaE -

Borrowing costs are accounted for on the accrual basis B AR R F 2 A B AMR - W g
and charged to the consolidated statement of HEEERNEEERERIIZ - BRIEZK
comprehensive income in the year in which they are REENSBEBEAEREBEXLENER
incurred, except for costs related to funding of {ERXAERE  ZERER AR ERE &
construction or acquisition of qualifying assets which are HERZTKBHETUERL -

capitalised as part of the cost of that asset during the
construction period and up to the date of completion of

construction.
3.17CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX BN7TEHRIELEFBH

The tax expense for the year comprises current and RNEFBHFIE ST B E1E S EFMIE TR
deferred tax. This is recognised in the consolidated HeMEBEEGANRRTER  BEAE
statement of comprehensive income, except to the extent HEMGAWRP ek EE TSP ERN
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive TBEABEEBRIN - FEZBERT I\
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also O RIEREMEGEES WS B EEE ST
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in TER o

equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis EHMERSTHREARAEEELERN
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the WARM YA SRR BEBMRE
statement of financial position date in the places where BLremmetiBgifsts - 82 En
the Group operates and generates taxable income. R AA B R PR IR Y 15 0 E 2R ET
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax ERFBERAMN - WEBAB R TIRE
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax TE BRZ8 M R IS L B S ST OB SRR TE 24 -

regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.17CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX

(Continued)

Current income tax also includes PRC land appreciation
tax which is levied on the appreciation of land value, being
the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including land cost, borrowing costs and all
property development expenditures.

Deferred income tax is recognised using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising from the
difference between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
statement of financial position date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.17CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX

(Continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, except for deferred income tax liability where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from investments
in subsidiaries only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there is
sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

3.18PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.19LEASES

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by another party, the
lessor, are classified as operating leases. Payments,
including pre-payments, made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

3.20REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. The Group recognises revenue
when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured
and when it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the entity.

Property development and management service fee
income is recognised when the services are performed or
on a systematic basis during the service period.

Revenue from sale of properties held for sale in the
ordinary course of business is recognised when all the
following conditions are satisfied:

(i) the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the properties,
which is when the construction of relevant
properties has been completed, upon delivery, and
collectability of related receivables is reasonably
assured;

(i) the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the properties
are sold;

(i) the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B IEER R M EE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3. EEGTHEEE (R

3.20REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued) 320k AFERR (48)

(iv) it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

(v)  the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Deposits and installments received from purchasers prior
to meeting the above criteria for revenue recognition are
included in the consolidated statement of financial position
under current liabilities.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line method over the term of the relevant lease.

Property management fee income is recognised when the
related services are provided.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis
using effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

3.21EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by the
employees up to the statement of financial position
date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br 755 R AR B

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.21EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

LANDSEA GREEN PROPERTIES CO., LTD. ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Pension obligations

The Group participates in defined contribution
retirement benefit plans which are available to all
relevant employees. These plans are generally
funded through payments to schemes established
by governments or trustee administered funds. A
defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays contributions on mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis into a separate entity.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee services in the current and prior
periods. The Group's contributions to the defined
contribution plans are expensed as incurred and, in
most cases, are not reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme
prior to vesting fully in the contributions.

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised
as a liability when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made. Liabilities of bonus plan
are expected to be settled within twelve months and
are measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when they are settled.

Restricted share award scheme

The Group operates a restricted share award scheme
to recognise the contributions by employees. The
fair value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of restricted share is
recognised as employee benefit expense.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3. EEGTHEEE (R

3.21EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued) 321 TER (8)

(iv) Restricted share award scheme (Continued) (iv) RREIMRGEBZ (&)

The total amount to be expensed over the vesting
period is determined by reference to the value of the
restricted shares granted:

° including any market performance conditions;

° excluding the impact of any non-market
performance vesting conditions; and

. including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions.

The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

At each statement of financial position date, the
Group revises its estimates of the number of
restricted share awards that are expected to be
vested. It recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in the income statement,
with a corresponding adjustment to other
comprehensive income.

Employee share trust is established, for the purposes
of awarding shares to eligible employees under the
restricted share award scheme.

The employee share trust is administered by an
independent trustee and is funded by the Group’s
cash contributions and recorded as contributions to
employee share trusts, an equity component. The
administrator of the employee share trust buys the
Company'’s shares in the open market for award to
employees.

Upon vesting, the corresponding awards in the
share-based compensation reserve will be
transferred to the employee share trust for shares
awarded to employees.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.22GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions. Government grants to compensate
the current year expenses are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the
same year through offsetting the corresponding expenses
by the grants to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

4.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks such as
market risk (including foreign currency risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk, which result from its
operating, investing and financing activities. According to
the Group’s risk management policies, the financial risks
shall be assessed continuously by the management taken
into account of the prevailing conditions of the financial
market and other relevant variables to avoid excessive
concentrations of risk. The Group has not used any
derivatives or other instruments for hedging purpose. The
most significant financial risks to which the Group is
exposed to are described below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

4.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(@) Market risk

0]

(ii)

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Group mainly
operates and invests in Hong Kong and the
PRC with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in HK$ and RMB
respectively. Other than the realised exchange
loss upon injection of foreign currency
denominated funds into the PRC, management
considers that the Group’s volatility against
changes in exchange rates of foreign
currencies would not be significant as the
assets and liabilities of each company within
the Group are mainly denominated in the
respective company’s functional currency.
Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is presented
for foreign exchange risk.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets and liabilities other than bank deposits
and borrowings. Bank balances and borrowings
at floating rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. The Group’s exposure to
market risk for changes in interest rates relates
primarily to bank balances which bear floating
interest rates. Management monitors the
interest rate risk and performs sensitivity
analysis on a regular basis.
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Br 755 R AR B

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

4.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

LANDSEA GREEN PROPERTIES CO., LTD. ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2014, if interest rates on bank
balances and borrowings had been 50 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, the Group's bank interest
income and profit for the year would have
been approximately RMB10,980,000 (2013:
RMB4,743,000) higher/lower. The sensitivity
analysis has been determined assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at
the statement of financial position date.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to
a financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under the terms of the financial instrument
and cause a financial loss to the Group. The credit
risk of the Group mainly arises from bank balances
and deposits, other receivables, deposits and
amount due from a fellow subsidiary. The carrying
amounts of these balances represent the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

The credit risk on the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit ratings. In respect of trade
and other receivables, deposits and the amount due
from a fellow subsidiary, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all debtors. These evaluations
focus on the debtors’ past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the debtors
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the debtors operate. The Group does not
obtain collateral from customers in respect of
receivable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

4.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(c)

The Group typically provides guarantees to banks in
connection with the customers’ borrowing of
mortgage loans to finance their purchase of
properties for an amount up to 70% of the total
purchase price of the property. If a purchaser
defaults on the payment of its mortgage loan during
the guarantee period, the bank holding the guarantee
may demand the Group to repay the outstanding
amount under the loan and any interest accrued
thereon. Under such circumstances, the Group is
able to retain the customer’s deposit and re-sell the
property to recover any amounts paid by the Group
to the bank. In this regard, the directors consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
Detailed disclosure of these guarantees is made in
note 37.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents and
the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities.

The Group's primary cash requirements have been
for the payments for property development projects
and operating expenses. The Group finances its
working capital requirements mainly through internal
resources and borrowings from shareholders.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient cash balances and adequate
credit facilities to meet its liquidity requirement in
the short and long term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR MIEE

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 4.
(Continued)

4.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the statement of financial
position date to the contractual maturity dates. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay as of 31
December 2014.

Less than 1
year or
repayable
on demand
TE—F5
REREE
RMB’000
AREFTT

At 31 December 2014 =Z— M4
+=A=+—H

Creditors and accruals — fEfTZR M EHE B

Amounts due to fellow  fEftRE &

subsidiaries )N E O
Amounts due to JE TSR Il
non-controlling = IR
interests
Borrowings and interest  {& 3 & 7 &,
thereon

At 31 December 2013 —&—=

+=A=+—H
Creditors and accruals  JEfT R & ez E R 93,102
Amounts due to fellow — FERIE &
subsidiaries [ IpENGIE O 50,000
Borrowings and interest &z & L&
thereon 1,454,024

B EREE (&)

4.1 B E kR EE (&)

(c)

B ()

TRENASENGEAE  ER
HRRR BB R - RIE R PR
FKAEARZE A ORISR EEET
O ERAFRBENESER/N_-F
—OFE+ - A=1T—HRERIRH
ERBRERE -

Between 1
and 2 years Over 2 years Total

—EmE BBmWE et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTIT AR®TT ARETET

- - 93,102

- - 50,000

173,542 - 1,627,566
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

4.2

4.3

FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

1. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

2. Inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (level 2).

3. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

The Group's investment property is recognised under level
3 of the fair value hierarchy and details of the valuation are
disclosed in note 20.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s current financial
assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair values
due to their short maturities.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group's capital management objectives are:

— to ensure the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern; and

— to provide an adequate return to shareholders.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or obtain borrowings.
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BT RS SR AR MY aE

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

4.3 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
The Group monitors its capital structure on a basis of
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by
total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less
cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash pledged for
the Group's borrowing. Total capital is calculated as net
debt plus total equity as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 were
as follows:

B EREE (&)

4.3 EXREREE (&)
AEBEARBLERSEREZEEARR
B AL EAEB FERARE ARG
B ERFRNBRERBRELRE
EFEER  REESAREERERD
XREREFHE - RERABBFEM
RERE BB R T IR0 BT E -

R-ZE—NMEER-_ZET—=F+=A
=+—H BXRAELEAT

2013
—E—=%F
RMB'000
ARBFT
(Restated)
(ge=:73)

Borrowings (note 28) &k (35 28)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 26) 3 :
Restricted cash (note 26)

Net debt ERIFRE
Total equity R

Total capital BmENR
Gearing ratio BERBELE

Restricted cash was pledged as securities for certain bank
borrowings of the Group and management considers that
such restricted cash should be included in the calculation
of net debt in order to reflect an appropriate gearing ratio
of the Group.

The increase in gearing ratio for the year is mainly a result
of the increase in borrowings.
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Re kRSB (HE26)
RIRHIRE (HFE26)

1,505,600
(956,660)

548,940
1,042,191

1,591,131

34%
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Notes to the Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

)

(I

ESTIMATED FAIR VALUE OF INVESTMENT
PROPERTY

The Group's investment property is stated at fair value
which is determined by an independent professional
valuer. Such valuation is made based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainties and might
materially differ from the actual results. In making the
judgement, reasonable consideration has been given to
the underlying assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the reporting date. These
estimates are regularly compared to actual market data
and actual transactions in the market.

NET REALISABLE VALUE OF PROPERTIES
HELD FOR SALE AND UNDER
DEVELOPMENT

Management determines the net realisable value of
properties held for sale and under development by using
prevailing market data such as most recent sale
transactions. Such assessment is made based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainties and might
materially differ from the actual result. In making the
judgement, reasonable consideration has been given to
the underlying assumptions that are mainly based on
market condition existing at the reporting date. These
estimates are regularly compared to actual market data
and actual transactions in the market.

5.
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Br 755 R AR B

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(1)

(Iv)
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INCOME TAXES AND DEFERRED TAX

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income taxes. There are transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain in the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
year in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is likely that future taxable
profits will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. When the
expectations are different from the original estimates,
such differences will impact the recognition of deferred
income tax assets and income tax charges in the period in
which such estimates are changed.

PRC LAND APPRECIATION TAXES

PRC land appreciation tax is levied at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value.
The Group engaging in property development business in
the PRC is subject to land appreciation taxes, which have
been included in the income tax expenses. However, most
of the property projects of the Group are still under
development as at 31 December 2013 and 31 December
2014, and the Group has not finalised its land appreciation
tax returns with the relevant tax authority. Accordingly,
significant judgement is required in determining the
amount of land appreciation and its related taxes. The
Group recognises these liabilities based on management’s
best estimates. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
expenses and provisions of land appreciation taxes in the
period in which such determination is made.
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6. REVENUE 6. WA

Revenue recognised during the year is as follows: FRIERHWAIT ¢
2013
=%
RMB’000
ARBF T
Continuing operations FERE
Property development and management TH B A% R E R RSB (FFE36)
service fee income (note 36) -
Rental and management fee income HeREEBRA 22,067
Sale of properties in HEWE
— Hong Kong (note 23) — B8 (M15E23) -
— The PRC — R -
22,067
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. DEHEA
The executive directors have identified the following operating WITESFDLERNLEE AT -
segments:
iy  Property investment; and iy FEHERE: X
(i)  Property development @iy FHEME
During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group HEZZT—=F+-A=1+—HILFE K&
discontinued its financial service operation. Details of the BEELRIFHSmRIBE - RILEEHFIE
discontinued operation are included in note 13 to the BRI REMTE3 -

consolidated financial statements.
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Bt FE R 3R T 5

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. oEE (&)
The segment information for the reportable segments for the FARARED D ILETAT
year is as follows:

CONTINUING OPERATIONS: HERE

Segment revenue (external) 2P (FMEB)

Reportable segment profit/(loss) 45 EFE,/(&E)

Depreciation of property, TEE - THREREITE
plant and equipment

Fair value gain on investment REUMEN DA EBERE
properties

Share of losses of associated FE(GEEE A Rl e
companies

Share of loss of a joint venture BiE—EeEERBE

Finance costs BHBER

Segment assets DEEE

Segment liabilities HHBE

Additions to non-current assets g inERENEE

150 LANDSEA GREEN PROPERTIES CO., LTD. ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2014



Notes to the Financial Statements

B B R R Y

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEPEM(E)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS: (Continued) FELE (&
2013
—T-=F
Property
Property  development
investment and trading Others Total
FibERZE
FiERE M5 HAot fmEt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBFT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT
(Restated) (Restated)
(=E51) (L&)
Segment revenue (external) 2 EBUA (53D ) 22,067 - - 22,067
Reportable segment profit/(loss) & HEFE,/ (B1E) 51,755 (16,200) (804) 34,751
Depreciation of property, TEE - THRBHITE
plant and equipment (352) - - (352)
Fair value gain on investment BEMEWER
property RABENE 38,426 - - 38,426
Fair value loss on financial UNAnBEESEER
assets at fair value through BHABSNER
profit or loss BENALEEEBE - - (1,374) (1,374)
Finance costs HBER - (2,561) - (2,567)
Segment assets DEEE 155,857 1,759,814 - 1,915,665
Segment liabilities HEHARE 2,610 1,776,754 - 1,779,364
Additions to non-current assets IR EE 1,074 923 - 1,997

BESseERRAT o — T UFFR



DISCONTINUED OPERATION:

Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR MIEE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEEM (&)

RibgeE .

Segment revenue (external)

Reportable segment profit

Segment assets
Segment liabilities

Reconciliations of segment profit to profit before income tax and
discontinued operation are as follows:

7 BB A (51 ED)

Continuing operations
Segment profit
Bank interest income
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
Unallocated corporate income
Unallocated corporate expenses

Profit before income tax

rEcE

7 &R A

RITH B e
BRETE - THEREBOFSG

REAHODESREENNE
RE— B ARG
2N YNCILV 62

AN AFEMR

HIRRFT SR E
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Provision of
financial Services

2013
—ET—=F
RMB'000
AREF T
10,975

9,922

201

# 0 BB A R SR =R AT B R R LI

2013
—E—=F
RMB’000

ARBFIT
(Restated)
(&&=:75)

34,751
3,163

2,062

1,024

563
(15,760)

25,803



SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION: (Continued)
Reconciliations of segment assets/liabilities to total assets/
liabilities are as follows:

7 ERE N ()
RibEE (&)

BoBEE AERHE

DEEE — FHEKE
AOBLEE

Segment assets — continuing operations
Unallocated assets

Total assets BEE

Segment liabilities — continuing operations %
Segment liabilities — discontinued operation 4%
Unallocated liabilities v =N

Total liabilities waE

Other than providing management services to fellow
subsidiaries, the Group does not have any single customer
which contributes more than 10% of the Group’s revenue.

Unallocated expenses mainly represent corporate expenses
such as legal and professional fees and other compliance costs.
Unallocated assets mainly comprise cash at bank.

mEE/RBOT

2013
—E—=F
RMB'000

ARBFIT
(Restated)

(KEE5)

1,915,665
964,670

2,880,335

2013
—E-=fF
RMB’000
AREFT
(Restated)
(#e&E7))

1,779,364
201
58,579

1,838,144

BRARAMBARREHRERFEREERS
Sh - REBAFEEEREBAEEEA10%

NENE—FP -

APMERIZENENRER  WERME
XERAMEMARKA - ROEEEETZRIR

THRE -

BFREMERRQT o

—T-mEER
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BT RS SR AR MY aE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

7. 2EEM (&)

The Group's revenue from external customers and non-current REIINBELTIEREEENREERA WS

assets are divided into the following geographical areas:

CONTINUING OPERATIONS:

DA IR R
Revenue from external
customers Non-current assets
IBEFUWA kRBEE

2013 2013
—F—= —F—=F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMBTIT ARBTF T
(Restated)

(F&E5))

Hong Kong (domicile) &7 (5rfti)
Mainland China PPN 175

DISCONTINUED OPERATION:

720
155,714

156,434

g
Revenue from external
customers Non-current assets
SEEF A FRBEE

2013 2013
=4 —E—=F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREEF T

Hong Kong (domicile) &8 (5rfiti)

The revenue information above is based on the location of the PR ABNERBEEANE - FMiIEREE
customers. Non-current assets information above is based on EENEREEMNMNERTREEERIAE
the location of the assets and excludes deferred tax assets. EE o
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8. OTHER INCOME

2013
=%
RMB'000
AREFTT
(Restated)
(& E5)
Continuing operations BHERE
Bank interest income RITH B ES 3,209
Government grants BT -
Dividend income & F 570
Sundry income FEIE A 563
4,342
9. OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET 9. Htth(EE) FE— 38
2013
—F—=%F
RMB’000
AREET T
Continuing operations FERE
Net exchange losses I 1R -
Gain on deemed disposal EERE—HHBARMNFIE
of a subsidiary (note 34) (FF5E34) -
Gain on disposal of property, BENHE « THMXEENFIE
plant and equipment 2,062
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale BEEAHHESREENTIG
financial assets 1,024
Fair value loss on financial assets NAREBAEFEBEEHTAEE
at fair value through profit or loss NERMEEMNANEBEBXL (1,374)
1,712
HFRemEARLAT o« —Z—NFFIF
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10. FINANCE COSTS 10. % EAR

Continuing operations BHERE

Interest expense on borrowings BHFEER

Less: Interest capitalised (note 24) B F BB (EE24)
Other finance charges H B isE R

LANDSEA GREEN PROPERTIES CO., LTD. ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2014

2013
—E-=fF
RMB’000
AREFT
(Restated)
(#e&E7))

18,658

(16,097)

2,561

2,561



11. EXPENSES BY NATURE "M BREEIENER
2013
—F—=%F
RMB'000
ARBT T
(Restated)
(gE=H)
Continuing operations BHERE
Employee benefit expenses: BTEANER :
Directors’ remuneration (note 17) BEEHM (FFE17)
— fees — e 1,406
— salaries and allowances — HERER 2,781
— retirement benefit scheme contributions — RREFEEIRA 58
— restricted share award — PRI A% 1 22 8 -
4,245
Other staff costs HiuBT&RA
— wages and salaries and allowances — TERH N RIER 3,087
— retirement benefit scheme contributions — — RREFIET 21 A 287
— restricted share award — PR IR 1 2B -
7,619
outgoings in respect of investment property 18 E MY ¥ 7,193
Cost of sale of properties in EEWERAE
— Hong Kong — &% -
— the PRC —¢h _
Other taxes HFi1E -
Advertising and promotion expenses EEREHEE 11,516
Legal and professional fees FEMBEER 5,813
Stamp duty ENIERR 115
Minimum lease payments in respect of KEMEFEREKHEERNK
properties under operating leases 1,689
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 25 B 57 B 655
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment T8z « TR LR EITE 475
Others HAth 3,108
Total HBET 38,183
Representing: EHE
Cost of sales and services THE FIARISA A 7,615
Selling expenses HEER 13,489
Administrative expenses THER 17,079
38,183
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Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at 16.5% (2013: 16.5%)
on the assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for the year.

Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at
the applicable rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which
the Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations

and practices in respect thereof.

LANDSEA GREEN PROPERTIES CO., LTD. ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2014

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FAIBHER
2013
=%
RMB'000
ARBT T
(Restated)
(fe&E5))
Continuing operations BHERE
Current tax B HTIE
— Hong Kong profits tax — BAEMEH
Tax expense for the year FEMIE -
Over-provision in prior years VAR 8 2 (B ER (1,646)
— PRC enterprise income tax — R EMEH
Tax expense for the year FEBIE 2,593
Under-provision in prior years AR FEEFETR 39
986
PRC land appreciation tax AR+ i IR E -
Deferred tax (note 29) EEFTIS L (BT EE29) 6,220
Total income tax expense FTiSfi & R 4ast 7,206

FEBBMEHRHRERT G H16.5% (=
T—=fF 1 165%):TH °

HA T3 EMMER  RBEBWNRTL
& BREAED - HRAKREZERDEERN
EREMMERGHE



12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

12. FRIEBEA ()

Reconciliation between profit before income tax and income tax
expense is as follows:

BREFE BRI AR PTS T & B 2 FH &Y 38 & 40
T

2013
=%
RMB'000
ARBT T
(Restated)
(FeE3))

Continuing operations

Profit before income tax
Add: Share of losses of associated companies
Share of loss of a joint venture

BR PSR AT A
o IR E A RER
i —HaERREBR

Tax on profit before income tax, calculated
at the statutory rate of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%)

Effect of different tax rates of group
companies operating in other jurisdictions

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of unused tax losses

Utilisation of tax losses previously not

BrETSREAIFEATIE » 28R 16.5%
KEAEMRZREE (20134F  16.5%)
ENE R A EREENEBR QRN

TREINE AHIEA
RERHIBHIA
AR ERABIE

Over-provision in prior years LARTFEBERERE

Income tax expense

4,257

2,734
92
2,051

(1,607)
(321)

7,206
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13. RESULTS AND CASH FLOWS OF THE 13. RIERENEEFNRESRE
DISCONTINUED OPERATION
During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group HE-_Z-—=F+-"A=+—HIFE HA
discontinued its financial service operation as management AEBNERENEBASEEERETRFH
plans to concentrate the Group’s resources on property ERZEE AMAEEKIESRREE
development business. 7% o
The results and cash flows of the discontinued operation were BIHEENEENIRSRIHOT

set out below:

2013
—E—=%F
RMB'000
AREEF T
Revenue U A 10,975
Expenses L33! (1,053)
Profit before taxation 4|4 P EE AR I BR AR A A
from the discontinued operation 9,922
Taxation T -
Profit for the year from the RIS EFTEA A FE RS
discontinued operation 9,922
Cash flow from discontinued operation BIERENRESRE
Net cash inflows from operating activities LEEFHHFRERE 104,798
Net cash inflow FHEMAZE 104,798
Expenses of the discontinued operation mainly included RIS EERTZRRBLCEHERSMEAMT
operating lease rental and other administrative expenses. BER -
14. Profit attributable to the owners of the 14. EERE AR MEENRAE
company
The consolidated profit attributable to the owners of the FEERAATIBENGETEFREARKE
Company includes a loss of RMB 44,944,000 (2013: a profit of Q49000 BIE(ZE —=F: AR
RMB109,546,000) which has been dealt with in the financial 109,546,000 7L F)E) - BB B AR B8 B
statements of the Company. R R o
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15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(A) BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculations of basic earnings per share, after taking
into account the effect of the rights issue made during the
year ended 31 December 2013, attributable to the owners

15. R =
(A) EXgRKE

HRERKERBRARBMAEEN
BERNTEM(EEREBE_T—=F
TZA=+—RLEFEETHHRERE

of the Company are based on the following data: 2
2013
=%
Weighted average number @R T E ()
of ordinary shares ('000) 1,989,327
RMB'000
ARBT T
(Restated)
(ge=H)
Profit attributable to the owners FEEBRARRIFAENFE
of the Company
— Continuing operations —FERE 18,597
— Discontinued operation — R 9,922
28,519
RMB
ARETT
(Restated)
€c==x7l))
Basic earnings per share attributable ERYEEBRAARIFEE
to the owners of the Company
— Continuing operations —FERE 0.009
— Discontinued operation — R 0.005
0.014
R REtERRAT o —T—UFFH
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15

16.

. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(B) DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings
per share since the Group has no dilutive potential
ordinary share as at 31 December 2013 and 2014.

DIVIDEND

The directors proposed a final dividend of RMB0.01 per ordinary
share, totaling approximately RMB29,799,000. Such dividend is
to be approved by the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting on 1 June 2015. These consolidated financial statements
do not reflect this dividend payable.
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15.

16.

FRYE (&)

(B) MrEEF KK
R_F-—=ZF#R-F-WF+-7
=t+—8 EREEETFETRED
BEERR - HERFRYGRERE
AR Uas— B o

9=\

EXEEIEREBRRNRAREARE
0.017T » BFEH AR ¥ 29,799,000 - A Bk
BRERR-_Z-AFAAA—HORRBFA
G EHE o W FRE P BRRIAL A RIR I B

BLE e



17. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 17. EEMe N SR EEAEME
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS EEME
Emoluments paid or payable to each of the eleven (2013: fifteen) ENMEMN T+ (ZE—=%: +Hh)E
directors were as follows: EREAMMETT

2014 —E-mF
Executive directors HTES
Tian Ming (note (i) 88 (F3E ()
Shen Leying (note (i) gL (fEE ()
Xie Yuanjian (note (i) AR ()
Liu Da (note (vi) B3 (95T (vi))
Ding Feng (note (viii) T &8 (BzE (viih)
Xiang Jiong (note (i) e (B (i)
Lu Baoxiang (note (ix)) BEEA(HFEX)
Independent non-executive By FHITES
directors
Xu Xiaonian (note (v)) J (FEEW)
Ding Yuan (note (v)) R (W)
Lee Kwan Hung (note (v)) $i’ﬁ&(ﬁﬁiﬁ )
Non-executive director FHITES
Zhou Qin (note (vii) &% (Bt 3 (vi)
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17. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 17. EEeMNSREEASME (&)

MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)
DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (Continued) EEME (8)
Salaries,  Contribution
allowances  to retirement
and benefits benefits
Fees in kind scheme Total
T& R RRAEF
we BEWFE= FTEIEA HEt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARETFT ARBTT ARE®ETET
2013 —E—-=
Executive directors HITES
Tian Ming (note (i) AR (B3E () - 500 5 505
Shen Leying (note (i) BR 242X (B AE () - 433 15 448
Xie Yuanjian (note (7)) AEiE (MR 3) - 433 12 445
Liu Da (note (vi)) 23z (BEE Vi) - 333 5 338
Ding Feng (note (viii)) T 82 (B &E (viii) - 233 13 246
Xiang Jiong (note (i) e (B 5 (i) - 125 2 127
Wong Chung Tak, Richard T Ba/E (B (i)
(note (i) 95 724 6 825
Independent non-executive B EHTES
directors
XU Xiaonian (note (v)) /N (BIRE (V) 100 - - 100
Ding Yuan (note (v)) T (BEsEW) 100 - - 100
Lee Kwan Hung (note (v)) 5 (IR W) 100 - - 100
Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart (note (iv)) Z=BE1#3 (FisE (iv)) 253 - - 253
Chung Koon Yan (note (iv)) tEIE A (T Gv) 253 - - 253
Chong Kally (note (iv)) FEM (V) 253 - - 253
Non-executive directors EBITES
Liu Sing Piu, Chris (note (v)) R (KL (v) 206 - - 206
wong Ngo, Derick (note (iv)) T (i (v) 46 - - 46
1,406 2,781 58 4,245
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17. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

0]

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

Appointed as executive director of the Company on 31 July 2013.

Appointed as an executive director of the Company on 18 November 2013.

Redesignated from an executive director to a non-executive director of the
Company on 31 July 2013 and resigned as a non-executive director of the
Company on 18 November 2013.

Resigned as non-executive directors of the Company on 31 July 2013.

Appointed as independent non-executive directors of the Company on 31
July 2013.

Appointed as an executive director of the Company on 31 July 2013 and

resigned as an executive director of the Company on 5 January 2015.

Appointed as a non-executive director of the Company on 5 January 2015.

Appointed as an executive director of the Company on 31 July 2013 and
resigned as an executive director of the Company on 23 February 2014.

Appointed as an executive director of the Company on 23 February 2014.

There were no arrangements under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or
as compensation for loss of office.

B B R R Y

. EEMENSREEAE#ME (&)

EEME (&)

i

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

RIB-—ZFLA=+-BREBRARBNTE
Ho

RIE—=F+—-A T+ N\BHED KRR ANHNT
B

RIF-=ZFtA=+—BHRBREBR/AREN
FNTEE UR_T—=F+—-ATNHBRER
RENFRITES

REIE—=FLA=+—HBHEARRBERITES -
RZF-ZF A=+ BREGR/ARRFNIEHR
TEE -

RIE-—=FLtA=+—-BHREGRERANRNT
B IR -_T-AF - AARREARBORT
K

R-ZE-—RAF-—RERREDRARRANFRTE
g

N-ZE—=F+A=+ BRI AEARRNAIT
B YR -E--NFE-_A-_+=AFELQTN
HITES -

R-E—ME_A -+ =HHEGR/ARRNITE
g

EEMTETHELERBEREANFENT
T BT -

REE  AEBERATAEE NS ER/E
EEMAREBERMA 2R 2 B HIER/EK
ERZREE -

BRRetERRAR o

—T-mEFR
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17. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 17. EEeMNSREEAESME (&)
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS hfuGEEHMAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the AFEEAEBESTFMORMNALBIERAMA
Group for the year included five (2013: four) directors whose —ZE-=F M) ES  MARNEHE X
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. MBI AT AR - HE S —=F+_= A
Emoluments payable to the remaining individuals during the =T —BIEFEXNTEBRATHEFBNOT

year ended 31 December 2013 were as follows:

2013
—T=%F
RMB'000
ARBTIT

Basic salaries, housing allowances, other EXFHE - FEMAL - EER
allowance and benefits in kind MEYF = 640
Contribution to retirement benefits schemes R {REFIET 238 A 12
652

Their emoluments were within the following band: IEFHME TIESEER

Number of individuals

2013

—E—=F

Nil to RMB500,000 4 5| A R % 500,000 7T -
RMB500,001 to RMB1,000,000 ARBE500,001 TTE AR

1,000,000 7¢ 1
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18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

B B R R Y

- REE QR 2 ES
2013
—T=%F
RMB'000
ARBTIT

Carrying amount at 1 January —A—REREEE
Additions N
Share of losses of associated companies FEAG B N B E IR

Amounts due from associated companies JFE LK B 2 N T SR8

Carrying amount at 31 December

During the year the Group acquired 34% interest in f/NE2E
%A A7 (Hangzhou Wanye Property Co., Ltd.*) at a
con3|derat|on of RMB68,000,000. In addition, the Group also set
up two new project companies, R R E b E A R A 7
(Nanjing China Merchants Xingsheng Property Development Co.,
Ltd.*) and &IMEHEIRBAREE 2 BMR A7 (Suzhou Science and
Technology City Landsea Property Co., Ltd.*) with two third
parties during the year with initial investment of RMB15,000,000
and RMB10,000,000 respectively.

Details of the associated companies are disclosed in note 39.
These associated companies are principally engaged in property
development and are strategic partnerships for the Group.

The amounts due from associated companies are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

TZA=+—HBREEE

REBERAREE AR 68,000,000 7T AM
MEXEXBRAFNA%ER - HR - A&
BRAHETRDBANAREBARE
15,000,000 7T K2 A £ # 10,000,000 7T E2 73 42 5
=AM MEIER AR — BREREEE
EBRARREFMEEHMAFERBERAR -

BpE N R A RIS BRI IRE 30 - X2
RAMELEXRBREHERSE  EAKEEE
SR FHRAR

fEYE S ARIREAEER LR - WWRBE
EEEFH-

BREEERRLR « —T—HFFR

167



168

Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR MIEE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 18. REFE QT 2= (&)

(Continued)
Set out below is the summarised financial information of the B A RME AREREARR - NEEBE AR
associated companies which are accounted for using the equity ﬁégﬁ%;(;zu‘r :
method:
Hangzhou
Wanye
Property
Co., Ltd.* Others Total
MMEEEE
BRAT Hith st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AREFT
Revenue WA - — _
Loss and total comprehensive RFEEIBRBETEEE
loss for the year (23,643) (8,365) (32,008)
Total current assets BN EEERE 1,261,200 1,007,966 2,269,166
Total non-current assets EMBNEEMRTE 15,782 657 16,439
Total current liabilities B BEERE (1,100,610) (916,988) (2,017,598)
Net assets at 31 December 2014 —E—NFE+ZA=+—H
FEE 176,372 91,635 268,007
Interests in associated companies B4 A RS 34% 20%-30%
Carrying value at 31 December 2014 —Z—mE+_—_HA=+—H
BREEE 59,966 22,497 82,463
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's AEBFEBEQRIEAERBAE -

interests in the associated companies.
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19. INTERESTS IN A JOINT VENTURE 19.

R—BeghkcER

2013
—E—=F
RMB’000
AREEF T

Carrying amount at 1 January —RA—BEREEE
Additions (note 34) 0 (MsE34)

Share of loss of a joint venture Eh—EaEEBE
Amount due from a joint venture Bl —REE & ERIER
Carrying amount at 31 December +ZA=+—HEKEEE

Details of the joint venture are disclosed in note 40. The joint
venture is principally engaged in property development and is a
strategic partnership for the Group.

Amount due from a joint venture is unsecured, interest-free and
has no fixed terms of repayment.

BELEESHFIERERMEL - ZEEE
TCENTEEBAFMERE  EAKEIH
BEREFERA(R o

FER— TR & A RIFAREBERALLE - AR
BEEEEFH-

BRFREMERRAT « T UFFR
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19. INTERESTS IN A JOINT VENTURE

Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR MIEE

19. R—EEE R ERE (F)

(Continued)
Set out below is the summarised financial information of the A sAARR c NREESEEMN
joint venture which is accounted for using the equity method: BEMMEWLT :
Nanjing
Langrun
Property
Development
Company
Limited*
EARAEEE
HRERAT
RMB'000
ARBT T
Revenue WA -
Interest expenses PBER ()
Income tax credit FTiSHiE R 246
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year REEBERBEESEBRE (739)
Cash and cash equivalents REMRESEEYD 50,682
Total current assets MENE EBE 294,694
Total non-current assets IEMENE EME 31
Total current liabilities MENE BB (144,477)
Total non-current liabilities B BEETE (91,267)
Net assets at 31 December 2014 ZENFF+ZA=FT—RFEE 59,261
Interest in the joint venture BEDTEER 50.1%
Carrying value at 31 December 2014 —WFE+—A=+—HEEER 29,690

There are no commitment or contingent liabilities relating to the A&

Group’s interest in the joint venture.

i)
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20. INVESTMENT PROPERTY — GROUP
As at 31 December 2014, the Group held one block of
commercial building located in Shenzhen, the PRC. Changes to
the carrying amount of investment property in the consolidated
statement of financial position are summarised as follows:

20.

B B R R Y

BREMYNE — &H
R-B—MFE+-A=+—8  FEERHEMN
Rep ERYIM — R e - 3 AR IRE E{E
BAGARBRARTIIRMT :

2013
—E—=F
RMB'000
ARBFIT

At 1 January —A—HiIREEE
Fair value gain RABENE

At 31 December +-A=+—HIREEE

The Group's interest in investment property at its carrying
amount is analysed as follows:

115,830
38,426

154,256

aN

NEBEREEYENER -
W :

RHIREEE

2013
—E—=F
RMB'000
ARBFIT

Outside Hong Kong, held on:
Medium-term lease of between
10 to 50 years

ERBIIMNGE :
10E50F AN FHIHEE

Investment property was valued at 31 December 2014 by an
independent professionally qualified valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle
Corporate Apprasial and Advisory Limited, who is a member of
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, and has appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of similar
properties.

Management reviews the valuation performed by the
independent valuer for financial reporting purposes on a half-
yearly basis. The review includes verification of all major inputs
to the valuation, assessing property valuation movements and
discussions with the independent valuer. Management considers
that the current use of the investment property equates the
highest and best use.

154,256

KEMMERBE Y X GHEMFEMTEEN
ERFBAERARR T NF+—A=+—
BibE  WhHEMEEBIEMZSNHEE
YARBHREEXRAER L ERBLUEE
HEMITHRER -

EREEANYBREZBH - BB AEMH
TREETFERN - 2RI REHARG
BEMMBEEABANRE  HEBEMESZ

RS KRB A ERN T H - BEERRK
BEUMEBNERENERSMRERER

BREEERRLR « —T—HFFR
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20. INVESTMENT PROPERTY — GROUP 20. BEMYWE —£8 (&)

(Continued)

The valuation of the investment property as at 31 December BWEAUMER-_T—NME+-—/A=+—H8H
2014 is determined using income approach based on significant BERRAWZRE BEEANTEBEREAE
unobservable inputs and is recognised under level 3 of the fair FUWEAEBEAAAEBEERNEIE - R
value hierarchy. The directors and the valuer consider that it is BEENHEMRE  MATEESRENRY
appropriate to use income approach since management will XANRARER ST ETEERALEERE
hold the investment property for long-term rental yield and will MR BEBWCEERREN o

not dispose of the investment property in the short run.

The key unobservable inputs of the valuation include BRI ERNEES AR (T —=
reversionary yield of 6.0% (2013: 7.5%), vacancy rate of 6% (2013: £ 75%) MBI HREFREE R ¢%(—E—=
8%) and the average daily rental per square meter of RMB2.03 F 8% )MEERNAEIHEHBEFESER
(2013: RMB1.81) during reversionary period. BEARKARE203T(ZE—=F: ARK
1.817T) °
21. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT — 21. THE - IHEERE — EEBANLQ
GROUP AND COMPANY G|
GROUP £
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold land Leasehold office
and buildings  improvements equipment  Motor vehicles Total
BE EER
MELTHMEF B BN HE)ER Bat
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT  ARBTR  ARBTRT  ARETT  ARET:R

At 1 January 2013 (Restated) —ZE—-=f#—HA—H

(E5)
Cost % 1,671 2,844 856 3,226 8,597
Accumulated depreciation ZHNE 91 (2,844) (836) (2,158) (5,929)
Net carrying amount 1R E R E 1,580 - 20 1,068 2,668
Year ended BE-E-=%
31 December 2013 +TZA=t-BHLFE

Opening net carrying amount  ER¥IIRE R (E 1,580 - 20 1,068 2,668
Disposals & (1,514) - 2 (434) (1,950)
Additions #m - 583 341 1,073 1,997
Depreciation nE (28) (49) (34) (364) (475)
Exchange difference ERER (38) - (1) 23) 62)
Closing net carrying amount HIRIEEFE - 534 324 1,320 2,178
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21. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT —

21. FBHE - THR®E — EEAA

GROUP AND COMPANY (Continued) 7 (#8)
GROUP (Continued) 568 (&)
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold land Leasehold office
and buildings  improvements equipment  Motor vehicles Total
HE EER
HELIAET % MARE e it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETFT ARBETT ARBETT ARETFT
At 31 December 2013 —E-=E+-f=1+-R
(Restated) (BEF)
Cost A - 3214 1,169 1,883 6,266
Accumulated depreciation 2:rE - (2,680) (845) (563) (4,088)
Net carrying amount RERE . 534 324 1,320 2178
Year ended Hz-z-mE
31 December 2014 +ZA=t-HLEE
Opening net carrying amount BUEEEBETE
Additions #m
Depreciation e

Disposal of a subsidiary

Closing net carrying amount

At 31 December 2014
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

GE-RHBAF
BARREFE
“E-ME+ZA=1-H
A

ZHE

HREF

BFREMERRQT o

—T-MFEFER 173
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22. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS 22. RKB A TR FEWH B QTR
DUE FROM AND/OR TO SUBSIDIARIES — B EAHEATRE — A F
COMPANY

2013

—E—=F

RMB'000

AREEF T

Unlisted shares, at cost JELETRRG - AR -

Amounts due from subsidiaries R S NGIE 432,996

Less: Impairment losses recognised B EREREREE (229,657)

203,339

Amounts due to subsidiaries FEH I B A B3R -

Impairment loss was recognised for amounts due from certain MELEREBRATHRANHEBAR - #R
subsidiaries since these subsidiaries were loss-making and in a FEW N B A R FIBR R EE X -

deficit position.

Movement for impairment provision of amounts due from FEUSH B A B RIE R B EEE D) -
subsidiaries:
2013
—T—=F
RMB'000
AREEFTT
As at 1 January —H—H 293,707
Impairment loss FEEE 2,274
Reversal of provision AEfEE O (66,324)
As at 31 December +=-—A=+—H 229,657
The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free, BB ARIMEREEER 28 AREX
repayable on demand and are mainly denominated in HK$. REEATZEITTAENM -
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2014 are RZZE—WOF+—A=+—BNTENBRF
detailed in note 38. BT RIAMIEE 38 ©
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23.

24.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE — GROUP

23.

B 6 SR 3R T

FEHEENX — &8

2013
—FE—=%F
RMB'000
ARBT T

Properties held for sale: FHEHE WS -
— In Hong Kong, held on long-term lease —ERARBENRBEE 17,323
— In the PRC, held on leases of 70 years —EFBEBEEN/0FHNAE -
17,323

0On 19 December 2013, the Group entered into a provisional sale
and purchase agreement with a third party to dispose of its
property held for sale in Hong Kong at a consideration of
HK$39,800,000 (equivalent to RMB31,442,000). This transaction
was completed in April 2014.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT —
GROUP

24.

RZZE—=F+_F+hB AEFHE=FH
FRIERFFHE R E % - LARAR 39,800,000
BT (RSN AR 31,442,00070) U EHB H &
HEBBRHIEHERNE - ZZEX PN -Z
— P AR e

FREPEHE — &8

2013
—FE—=%F
RMB’000
ARBFIT
(Restated)
(&E7)

Land use rights b fsh FA A
Development expenditures FEE T
Interest capitalised BB

The Group's properties under development are located in the
PRC.

As at 31 December 2014, land use rights included in the
properties under development with net book value of
RMB2,754,646,000 (2013: RMB112,890,000) were pledged as
collateral for the Group’s borrowings (note 28).

The capitalisation rate of borrowing is 6.7% (2013 (Restated):
5.8%).

957,890
124,921

1,082,811
16,097

1,098,908

AEERENERDEHEDMNPE -

BHE-Z-NWE+—-A=1+—0 BEEMR
PREHMEMNIHERENE ARE
2,754,6460000( = & — Z F: AR ¥
112,890,000 7T ) B R FEIE B4R RITIE AL
SEEERAIEIR R (F1FE28) -

ERERNMEERR6TH(ZT—=F(KFJ) :
5.8%) °

BRREHERRAR « T NFFR
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25. OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND 25. EMEWR - AR KkEZRE — &

DEPOSITS — GROUP AND COMPANY BN AT
GROUP 58
2013
=%
RMB’000
ARBT T
(Restated)
(g&=5)
Non-current asset FREBEE
Deposit paid for acquisition of g R ) /NETlE b s a

an associated company _
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits  Efb B - BRI R kLS 14,676
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits mainly include HEEGk  BNRAIZSEERRERTFE
prepayment of bank charges and insurance premium. B RIRBBRTERFK -

Ageing analysis of the Group’s other receivables as at the AEBERE BB E MBI RE ST
reporting date, based on due date is as follows: IRBRE BB SR ¢
2013
=%
RMB'000
ARBTF T
(Restated)
(geE:5)
Other receivables: FH At RN -

Neither past due nor impaired I £ 8 B SORE 13,609
Based on past experience, management believes that no AERBELR  EEERBANEEREIL R
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances BRI BEHERARTEAWRER - &
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and ERELARIEL R EREE - AEEWL B
the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group did BRI EMIEARR o

not hold any collateral in respect of these balances.
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25. OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND 25. E{ifEWE: - AN RESE — &

DEPOSITS — GROUP AND COMPANY B AT (&)
(Continued)
COMPANY AT
2013
—ET-=%F
RMB’000
ARBFT
Other receivables, prepayment and Deposits  E b e - FER TR LIRS 88
Other receivables, prepayment and deposits of the Company RAREMBEWGK - BRRRESFEZBER
mainly included prepayments for bank charges and other TFEBREMITHERMTEMN -
administrative charges.
These balances are neither past due nor impaired. ELAARI B EASRE ©
Based on past experience, management believes that no ARBELR EEERBANEEREL R
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances BRI AEBERARTEREIR - &
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and FHELAMELBEEE - NARNEERE
the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Company sk i A R G o

did not hold any collateral in respect of these balances.
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26. RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH AND CASH 26. TRFBRE - RERREEEY

EQUIVALENTS — GROUP AND COMPANY — &KEKAF
GROUP £H
2013
=%
RMB’000
AREEFT
(Restated)
(& E5)
Restricted Cash ZREES
— pledged for the Group’s bank borrowings — {EA&REEAHRITE KA -
— settlement of construction payable — M LENFNER -
— guarantee deposits for construction of —ERTEEMEERETR
pre-sold properties 54,800
54,800
Cash at bank and in hand ReEkEFRE 943,660
Highly liquid funds mmE RS 13,000
956,660
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate RekREEEYNREEARRZEARBERE
their fair values. i
The Group’s bank balances of RMB414,615,000 (2013: REBHRITLESH A AR 414,615,000 7T (=
RMB391,060,000 (Restated)) are denominated in RMB and are T—=F : ARM 391,060,000 (FEF))
placed with the banks in the PRC. The conversion of the Group’s EMAEENARKABEMNNRITER IR S
RMB denominated bank balances and cash into foreign AR EESmPEELRTEREE SN
currencies or the remittance of such bank balances and cash J8 S P B BT 78 A5 B SN B IR 1B BR A AR PR
out of the PRC are subject to relevant rules and regulation of fil e EBAMIRITTEBRFEEUB TRETLRAE
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government. i »
The remaining bank balances are mainly denominated in either
HKS$ or USD.

178 LANDSEA GREEN PROPERTIES CO., LTD. ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2014



26.

27.

RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH AND CASH 26. TRFIFE RERBEEEY

EQUIVALENTS — GROUP AND COMPANY — &EENRAT (&)
(Continued)
COMPANY NG|
2013
—ET-=%F
RMB’000
ARBFT
Cash at bank RITIRS 618,106
Cash at bank of the Company is mainly denominated in HK$ or RABKBRITIRES T 2B EITLAE N
USD and earns average interest at 0.21% (2013: 0.41%). FIHFEE021% o (ZFE—=F : 0.41%)
CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS — GROUP AND 27. EIRFREGTER — £@EMA A
COMPANY Gl
GROUP =3
2013
=%
RMB’000
ARBF T
(Restated)
(geE:5)
Payables for construction materials FERT TR R AR TS
and services — not yet due — fEE A 34,640
Proceeds received from rights issue B1TH B IRERR (D TS 5K 29,310
Interest payable on loans FERHE T B 15,579
Deposits received WHIE RS 5,042
Advanced payments received IR B B9 FEA 3R -
Accruals for staff costs BT ER 179
Other payables H A R 3K 8,352
93,102
Proceeds received from rights issue of RMB29,310,000 related to HBERBEREROCHAGSRAARE
over-subscription of shares and were denominated in HK$. 29,310,0007T + HAB L BBAL - AfhiEsrE
Other balances are mainly denominated in RMB. ZUAREREN -

BRFREMERRAT « T UFFR
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27. CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS — GROUP AND 27. ERERRKREFTER — £EMNA

COMPANY (Continued) 7] (&)
COMPANY NG
2013
—E—=F
RMB'000
ARBTFT
Interest payable on loans FERHEFRFIE -
Proceeds received from rights issue BITHERERMDTER 29,310
Other payables H A 4,846
34,156
Proceeds received from rights issue of RMB29,310,000 related to BERBEREROAMSABARE
over-subscription of shares and were denominated in HK$. 29,310,0007T * BIAB T BB - HthssrE
Other balances are mainly denominated in either HK$ or USD. BUATHETRENA -
28. BORROWINGS — GROUP AND COMPANY 28. B — KEMAF
GROUP =
2013
=%
RMB'000
ARBTF T
(Restated)
(& E5))
Loans from the ultimate holding company RERKERARNER(ARE)
(in RMB) 1,235,000
Loans from the immediate holding company REBHZZERATNEZ GET)
(in HK$) 110,600
Bank borrowings RITIER
—inRMB — AR 160,000
—in HK$ — BT -
Loan under trust financing arrangement, ERAETRELTHENER
secured (in RMB) (AR®) -
Senior private notes (in USD) BRLEES (FT) -
1,505,600
Less: current portion W REE S (1,385,600)
Non-current portion IEmEN LD 120,000
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B IEER R M EE

28. BORROWINGS — GROUP AND COMPANY 28. e — KENM AT (F)

(Continued)

GROUP (Continued) S8 (&)

The loans from the ultimate holding company are arranged by a BEREERARNERATFIERNIRITIZ

bank in the PRC under entrusted loans arrangements. BETER M ZEETT -

Loans from ultimate and immediate holding companies are TR B B AR AR B B R AR A B KB FUA I

unsecured and carry interest at 5.5% per annum. BERNER55% -

Bank borrowings carry interests ranging from 2% to 10.8% per IRITIERFEFE BN T 2%E210.8% 17 B M M

annum and are secured by: THEITHER -

(i) land use right (included in properties under development) ) THHFEAEBEARAZEDEE) H
with total carrying value of RMB2,754,646,000 (2013: REEMES A AR 2,754,646,0007T (=
RMB112,890,000), T—=4F : AR¥112,890,0007T) :

(i) Part of the development expenditures amounted to (i) FAEILBEEMNTS  HEBEAARE
RMB354,103,000 (2013: RMB102,357,000); 354,103000( Z T —=F: AR

102,357,000 7T.) :
(i) Restricted cash of RMB1,408,450,000 (2013: Nil); (i)  PRHIIRE AREE1,408,450,000 0 (=&
—=F &)

(iv) aguarantee provided by the ultimate holding company; (v) H&EERAFREAER

(v) standby letter of credit issued by certain financial v) HBETESHREZLINEREHRE:
institutions; and

(vi) aninvestment property of the Group. Vi) FEEH—(EREEDE -

Senior private notes carry interest at 9.56% per annum and are BANEBEFENEKE956% @ WHADTH

guaranteed by the ultimate holding company, certain R AR  ETHB AR N —RAARE

subsidiaries and a director of the Company. EEER
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BT RS SR AR MY aE

28. BORROWINGS — GROUP AND COMPANY

(Continued)

28. AR — KEMLQF (&)

GROUP (Continued) 58 (&)
Borrowings are repayable as follows: LT AEEEZER:
2013
—FE—=%F
RMB'000
ARETTT
(Restated)
€3==x7))
Within one year —&FR 1,385,600
Between one and two years —FEMF 120,000
Over two years FELA -
1,505,600
COMPANY NG
2013
—ZT—=F
RMB'000
ARBTFT
Bank borrowings RITIER
—inRMB — ARE -
—in HK$ — AT -
Senior private notes (in USD) BELEES (ET) -

Less: current portion

Non-current portion

FEREIE D
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28. BORROWINGS — GROUP AND COMPANY

(Continued)
COMPANY (Continued)
Bank borrowings carry interests ranging from 2% to 9.56% per

annum and are secured by:

() a guarantee provided by the ultimate holding company;
and

(i) standby letter of credit issued by certain financial
institutions.

Bank borrowings are repayable as follows:

28. fER — KEMAF (&)

~E ()
ST 2 F R BT 29% 529.56% 3 5 M
TR -

()  BREERARRMAER: &

iy FTEREBBRLOERERSR -

T REEREZRITHER

2013
—E—=F
RMB’000
AREBFT

—2
R BA E

Within one year
Over two years
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29. DEFERRED TAXATION — GROUP AND 29. EIEFIE — EEM AT
COMPANY
The deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a BAEETEREITRERNA LG ERITEHEEE
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against HERHREaERY  BELERERFNRE—
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate B - AInBECEm SR EERaFEE
to the same fiscal authority. The net amounts are as follows: o HeEEYWT
GROUP 5
2013
—ZF—=
RMB'000
ARBFIT
(Restated)
(E75)
Deferred income tax liabilities to be settled T FRESERLHEAE
after more than one year 18,685
Deferred income tax assets: FRETRIEE
— to be recovered within one year — E—FAKE -
— to be recovered after more than one year — £ —4E1&k[E] 3,324
3,324
The movements in the net deferred tax liabilities are as follows:
2013
—E—=F
RMB'000
ARETTT
At 1 January (Restated) —A—B(&EY) 9,141
Charged to profit or loss e8> 8 6,220
At 31 December +=—A=+—H 15,361
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B IS SRR M E

29. DEFERRED TAXATION — GROUP AND 29. BiEBE — KEHN AT (F&)
COMPANY (Continued)
GROUP (CONTINUED) 568 (&)
Movements in the deferred tax liabilities, prior to offsetting, are AR B R EEEH T
as follows:

Accelerated
tax Revaluation of

depreciation properties Total

IEEBIETE B EEM Met

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBFT ARBF T ARBFT

At 1 January 2013 —F—-=F—H—H 102 9,076 9,178
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss  #E1825 (3K %) Skl (100) 9,607 9,507
At 31 December 2013 —E—=F+=ZA=+—H 2 18,683 18,685
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss  #E18%5 (3K %) L4 2) 12,718 12,716
At 31 December 2014 —ZE-NME+-_HA=+—H - 31,401 31,401

No deferred tax liability has been recorded on temporary
differences of RMB369,858,000 (2013: RMB59,015,000) relating
to the undistributed earnings of a foreign subsidiary because the
Group is in a position to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that such differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

AR RSN BT B8 2 B9 R 0 B A 2 AR B O A
MEEARE369,85800T(=ZF—=%F: A
R ¥ 59,015,0007) s EELEHIAEEE - AR
AEEREMEFEREREERNREEZE
REAARBRRAEISED -

BREEERRLR « —T—HFFR
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29. DEFERRED TAXATION — GROUP AND 29. EEFIE — EEM AT (E)
COMPANY (Continued)
GROUP (CONTINUED) £E (&)

The movements in the deferred tax assets, prior to offsetting,
are as follows:

HEREEHRAEELSHIN T

Tax losses

i

RMB'000

ARBETIT

At 1 January 2013 (Restated) —E—=F—A—HEEHN) 37
Credited to profit or loss EEERE 3,287
At 31 December 2013 —E-=F+-A=+—H 3,324
Credited to profit or loss fEiEmike 12,224
At 31 December 2014 —E-mFE+=A=+—H 15,548

At the reporting date, the Group has unused tax losses of
RMB36,964,000 (2013: RMB40,315,000) available for offset
against future profits which have not been recognised due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams.

The expiry of unrecognised tax losses are as follows:

EHREAH - ANEBEES AR R BRR
FRARERARE 36,964,000t (ZT—=%:
AR 40,315,0007T ) ° 1 7 2K A B R 7 £
TRFERM - BRREFHBERELEAEHE
7o

HAEENTERNE BT

2013
—T—=%F
RMB'000
ARBTF T
(Restated)
(s E5)

Tax loss without expiry date REEIEBMTIE
Tax loss expiring in five years MBS A TEBBRE
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29.

30.

DEFERRED TAXATION — GROUP AND
COMPANY (Continued)

COMPANY
As at 31 December 2014, the Company did not have any
significant unprovided deferred tax liability (2013: Nil).

At the reporting date, the Company has unused tax loss of
RMB32,796,000 (2013: RMB36,433,000) available for offset
against future profits. Deferred tax asset has not been
recognised for these tax losses due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. These tax losses have no expiry date.

SHARE CAPITAL — GROUP AND COMPANY
The share capital of the Company consists only of ordinary
shares. All shares are equally eligible to receive dividends and
the repayment of capital.

29.

30.

ELERE — SEN QT (F])

N

R-ZZE—MFE+-A=+—H  KQARWEE
AEAN BT EEENETCHEHREE(ZT
— T ) e

EREBE - AAAHA AT ENERFEAR
FERAHEAREK3279,00T(—ZE—=
AR 36,433,0007T ) o B3 7 2R A i 77 18
TAIERM R EARZEHIERRELRSE
MEE - ZEBBWHIEA -

BE — EEAAT
ARAEBEAEREEBR - SLEZRFNE
AEEMS - AANBRGDAGRSER -

2013
—2-=F
Equivalent
Nominal nominal
value of value of
Number of ordinary ordinary
Share Share Share
LERAES
kihgg LRREE AE
Note ‘000 HK$'000 RMB'000
iz T BErfr  ARETR
(Restated)
(ms71)
Authorised: HERE:
At 1 January —A—H 3,000,000 30,000 24,300
Increase in shares BinEm @ - - -
At 31 December +ZA=t-H 3,000,000 30,000 24,300
Issued and fully paid: BETR2EHR
At 1 January —A-H 1,986,606 19,866 16,001
Issue of shares upon rights isse  Z17R BRRIER (b) 993,303 9,933 7,848
At 31 December +-R=1+-B 2,979,909 29,799 23,939
BBt ERGRAT o —T—NFFHR
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30. SHARE CAPITAL — GROUP AND COMPANY

31.

(Continued)

Note:

(a) Pursuant to a resolution of the Company passed in the annual general
meeting held on 22 May 2014, the authorised share capital of the Company
was increased from HK$30,000,000 (equivalent to RMB24,300,000) divided
into 3,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each to HK$60,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB48,600,000) divided into 6,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each.

(b) On 31 December 2013, Company issued 993,303,000 shares of HK$0.01
each by way of a rights issue in proportion of 1 right for every 2 ordinary
shares at a subscription price of HK$0.75 per share. These newly issued
shares rank equally in all respects with the existing shares. The net
proceeds from the rights issue amounted to HK$739,829,000 (equivalent to
RMB 584,465,000).

SHARE OPTIONS AND RESTRICTED SHARE
AWARD SCHEME

(A) SHARE OPTIONS
Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 25 April 2012, the
current share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
by the Company. Since the adoption of the Scheme, no
further options can be granted under the old scheme.

The Company operates the Scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and reward to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include the directors
(including executive and non-executive directors), other
employees, suppliers, customers, person or entity
providing research, development and other technical
support, invested entity and any professional advisor and
business consultant of the Group from time to time
determined by the directors as having contributed or who
may contribute to the development and growth of the
Group. The Scheme is effective on 30 April 2012 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, remains in force
for 10 years from that date.
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30. KX —KEMQF (&)

31.

i

@

BEAR-_Z—NERA -+ -HRITHERQITBRE
BEXGMBBH—ERE  ARANEERAR
30,000,000 7% 7T (E{E M A R#5 24,300,000 7T ) + 5t
3,000,000,000 8% + % A% 0.0178 7T # = 60,000,0008
TL(ZEER ARE 48,600,0007T) + #5t6,000,000,000
f% - Fi%0.018 7T °

RZF—=F+=ZA=+—H " AQFUER075
BT REESILBEWRE — AL F 3T
993,303,000 % + FAZ0.017E T © iE LI EITHM D
B HEASRBEARD B - BTEABRIEMS
FOF O R739,829,000 T( H E N AR K
584,465,000 7T.) °

B 4D H R B2 PR I AR 40 SR B 5T &)

(R)

igvig:tibid
BER-_ZTE——FMNA-+RHBEITH
FERRAGH —BERRE KA F
BN T RS E RGO B8 ([ ARG
2l)  BRMAAEZB - TREBIRIE
Bt D R B -

ARABE UL E 0 B ER BB S 1§
2EE BEE/ANEENKINELH
EHZ BB - AETEIMA K2 HE B
EX(ETESMIFNITES) - Hh
BT tER-FF - REHNIET B
MEMBMENABRS TR HwIRE
B LBHESTRHETERASE® T
EXERREBER  RHASENF
FMB R LM ERSE AR M
BE - AFEE T ——-FMOA=1+H
X BRBENTFHEFERR
BEUHSIERTERID -
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31. SHARE OPTIONS AND RESTRICTED SHARE 31. B 17 HA R &2 BR &I 1 AR 19 28 B 5t 2
AWARD SCHEME (Continued) (&)

(A) SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED) (A) B HIRE (8)

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Scheme or any other share option
scheme adopted by the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on the
date of grant.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, total
number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued
upon the exercise of the options granted to each
participant including both exercised and unexercised
options under the Scheme or any other share option
scheme adopted by the Company in any 12-month period
must not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholder’s approval in a general
meeting.

The limit on the number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Scheme and any other schemes of
the Company must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time. No options may be granted under any
share option schemes of the Company if this will result in
the limit being exceeded.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors (excluding any
independent non-executive director who is a proposed
grantee of the share options). In addition, any share
options granted to substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time and with an aggregate
value (based on the official closing price of the Company's
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

RIFAFT BIHRIFE R EMARR TR
# B 0 B ME 5t 8R4 e P B LU A
TTERAERITHARRABRMD A - 42
AT BBHMESIRAEE R ARAFE %
TR A 10% - BEARABIER 5 A #
BRON o

RIBARGT 8 SARIFAE A E M AN R R R4
M) RS $ELEE B2 R
EH AR B (BTN ARTTRE
HARE) 1T IR B BT T Y Sk AT BE T TRY AR R ]
Pein 8 AR+ —{E A B - 85T
TREBARFSETRMNMI%  EX
REABRRZARAERSI - RHBBZR
BO A HIE - BEBRRKRE LESK
REVHLAE -

RIBAGH 8 AL E AR R IR RO E
g DEBERRITENARD %
ETEERETHRTNRNOEE - 758
B EITRDA30% - NMFREEM
B tn AR T 81 BB AN R AR B A AR
1 % -

BYARAEST TRAHKEER
RoOREBENRMODE AELEES
B IFMITESHNIE (T RIBEAER
RERNDBAEIBANBILIFNTE
F) e s HARTARAEERRK
B IFTITE T H AT B E A TR AR
HERE . EEM T —EABMER - R
BBARABERETRMDEZN0.1% A
E(EREL B ARRRRNE 7 g
{E)Bi85,00000087T - BERRARE
LEGERRMESLLLE

BREEHERRLR « T UFFR
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SRR MIEE

31. SHARE OPTIONS AND RESTRICTED SHARE
AWARD SCHEME (Continued)

(A) SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

(B)

LANDSEA GREEN PROPERTIES CO., LTD. ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2014

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 days from the date of offer, upon payment of
nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
Each share option is vested immediately at the date when
the option is accepted, which is the commencement of the
exercise period. An option may be exercised in accordance
with the term of the Scheme at any time during the period
commencing one week from the date on which the option
is accepted and expiring on a date to be notified by the
directors to each grantee, which shall not be more than 10
years from the date on which the Scheme was adopted.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company to be
issued upon exercise of the options shall be no less than
the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by
the SEHK on the date of grant; (i) the average closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
guotation sheets issued by the SEHK for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of
grant. The subscription price will be established by the
board of directors at the time the option is offered to the
participants.

The Scheme
There was no outstanding share option under the Scheme
as at 31 December 2014.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 2 July 2014, the Group adopted a share award scheme
(the “Share Award Scheme”) as an incentive to recognise
the contributions by employees and to give incentives in
order to retain them for the continuing operation and
development of the Group, as well as to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group.

3. RO MERRBIER G RB S

(%)

(A) KinHA%E (&)

(B)

B IR MBS - A IREIE
BAZNOATIETORELE R
AEWER-+—XAET - SHRG
ARG R 2 B EE(S - BIE (T
B4 2 05 o — 15 BB AT U AE R IO 50
2 ARG —ARK R ESBAE —
RIFRALZ B MR - R A B
BRATE 1B R B R A Bl
TRIBIBTF o

Bt BRI TR R BT AR R BB
BEABERRTZE®SE  ()BXZXHAR
BROBZRTHNEAREEFMANEAR
BRI U RR(E ¢ ()BT BATR
BEXZHHETNEEREEP AN
NERBRENFHE  Ri) AR F 8RR
AR EE - REEER D ER
HE2REZHHAESSHRT -

et d
RIEB-—NFE+-A=+—H" REX
aHEl - ERITE AR HAHE -

PR Bl 4 A% 42 32 B =t &
AREER =T —MEFLA - BRATR
PR E I AEBURFRENE
B HEi R AT REN S EEEME
RSN AASEEE—SERR
SlEA AT ©
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31. SHARE OPTIONS AND RESTRICTED SHARE 31. B 17 HA R &2 BR &I 1 AR 19 28 B 5t 2

AWARD SCHEME (Continued) (#8)
(B) RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (B) PRI 2R BETE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, existing shares of RIBERMDEETE  AARER Tt
the Company will be purchased or new shares will be ANEHEBSEAROKDEFIENDIELSR
subscribed for “Restricted Shares” by a trustee appointed B | - WLAEEE AR IB AR A
by the Company and be held on trust for the relevant BEEEZSROBER D EREI1E
grantees until such shares are vested with the relevant ERBIFENEBEHEARALL -
grantees in accordance with the rules of the Share Award BT EHOREHERDIE2EEAFE AR
Scheme. The Restricted Shares will be awarded with I RSB EENAES BT
reference to the performance, operating and financial MEENEMZEEET -
targets and other criteria determined by the Board from
time to time.
Details of the Restricted Shares granted by the Company RABRARFERTHR S MR D
during the year are as follows: BIRAT -
Granted Outstanding at
Fair value per Outstanding at during the 31 December
Name of employees share (HK$) 1 January 2014 year 2014
—E-mF
BRAREE —E-0F +=—A=+—H
BIpsg (Bm) —B—BR1TE FART RATHE
Directors 2=
Tian Ming FH A 0.68 - 1,596,000 1,596,000
Xiang Jiong EEE) 0.68 - 1,596,000 1,596,000
Shen Leying Rt 0.68 - 1,064,000 1,064,000
Xie Yuanjian Him 0.68 - 1,064,000 1,064,000
Lu Baoxiang 2B 0.68 - 888,000 888,000
6,208,000 6,208,000
Other employees HthB T
In aggregate 5T 0.68 - 11,620,000 11,620,000
- 17,828,000 17,828,000
No Restricted Shares granted were vested during the year REZERZERFERGEL T A S
and the remaining vesting periods of the Restricted Shares B REMRDBTSREB B TE —
granted are less than one year. F o
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32.

RESERVES

(@  The movements of the Group’s reserves are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the

consolidated financial statements.

32. fE
AR EREEDIERIIBR G I H
ERNGAEREDED -

@

()  The movements of the Company’s reserves are as follows: (b)) AREEHSEERIFHROT
Share based Capital
Share  Translation compensation  Employee  redemption Retained
premium reserve reserve  share trust reserve earnings Total
RHEE ERE RESHEE BIRRES EXEERE Bhki st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR ARETT  ARETR
(note 31(B)) (note 31(B) (note)
() (HE310) (Bzt)
At 1 January 2013 —g-=£-§-§ - - - - 2185 56,454 7963
Profitfor the year FETE - - - - - 109,546 109,546
Bxchange diferencearisng ~ EX TEZE
from translation - (2,364) - - - - (2,364)
Total comprehensive (loss)/ EE&L4 (§8)/ %
income for the year - (2,364) - - - 109,546 107,182
Issue of shares Lpon righis issle /745 ERERH 576,417 - - - - - 576,417

At 31December2013and —ZF-=£+=Ff

1 January 2014 Zt-BR-%-mF
-8~
Loss for the year FEER

Total comprehensive loss  £E&5AEE

for the year
Shares held for restricted share. AR 11 B3 28512
award scheme fEERRN
Employee share based BT R
£ompensation

At 31 December 2014 “E-MmE+ZA
=t-A

Note:

Capital redemption reserve of the Company represents the nominal value

of the ordinary shares of the Company repurchased and cancelled.

ARBMERELFERORARFEEMPUE L BRMN
MEE
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32.

33.

34.

Notes to the Financial Statements

RESERVES (Continued)

(c)  Certain subsidiaries of the Group incorporated in the PRC
are required to allocate at least 10% of their after-tax profit
according to relevant regulations to a statutory reserve
until such reserve has reached 50% of their registered
capital. This reserve can only be used for specific purposes
and it is not distributable or transferable to the loans,
advances, cash dividends.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(@ The loss for the year ended 31 December 2014 attributable
to non-controlling interests is RMB1,440,000 which is
mainly attributable to # M BA i & % & BR 2 &) (Suzhou
Langkun Property Co., Ltd.*). The non-controlling interest
in respect of &k JI BA 3 & % F R A 7] is considered not
material.

(b) During the year, the Group acquired additional 10%
interest in A1 M B 7= & ¥ A R A 7] (Hangzhou Langhong
Property Co., Ltd.*) with carrying net book value of
RMB10,000,000, at a consideration of RMB10,000,000.

(0 The amounts due to non-controlling interests are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

DEEMED DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY
In December 2014, the Group entered into a cooperation
agreement with a third party to jointly cooperate in a property
development project in the PRC through a project company,
R EEE H E B R 2 8 (Nanjing Langrun Property
Development Company Limited*) (“NJLR"). Before the
transaction, NJLR was a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.
Pursuant to the agreement, the third party injected additional
capital into NJLR and the Group’s equity interest was diluted
from 100% to 50.1%. As a result, NJLR has become a joint
venture of the Group.

32.

33.

34.

BT RS aR MY aE

i (&)
© REBBEIRMEBER AQFRF
BRI WK ERARRRETE S
R FOR R 7 TR 5 4 10% B B 35 12 )4 7
E-REERME  BEXREEDER
BARH50% © i EIE R BIEEER /Y -
ADRKEEEER - BR - RER

B o
TN

e HI R

(@ BE_ZT—MNF+_A=+—RIEFE
A AT ERENNEEAAR
51,440,000 7 - £ Z /5185 B R &M BA
MEXAFRATMNFEEEE - LR
BMNBAHBEBRATAIEESIE#ER
AR AIEE KRR o

) REERN - AEE AR 10,000,000
TRINBEEMMNAZEEZRR R AN
10%k# HFEEEERARY
10,000,000 7T °

© HIFEHUEREEAZS
RENBEERER

HREEE—BHREAR
RIZ-—NFE+_F AEEE-ZFE=777]
Ve Bt E7RE-BEARQ
Al ERAEEHERZEARAE (BB
1) - HREEERBELNTEN—EFMER
B-XZH BRABAAKEZENBA
Al - RigHaE - ZBE=TERERAERIN
A& REE 7 R B 100% 7 E 50.1% ©
bt BREAEKAARE —REERE -

BB -

BREEHERRLR « T UFFR
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34. DEEMED DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 4. HEEE—FEHEB A7 (8)
(Continued)
The net assets of NJLR at the date of the deemed disposal were M ERN SR EEHN EEEN T AT
as follows:

Net assets disposed of comprise: HEFEERE
Property, plant and equipment TEE « TRRAMRE
Properties under developments F B B i EE

Cash at banks RITIHE

Other receivables Hofth R

Other payables EAfth ETHR

Amounts due to group companies JER ANEE R RIFRIE
Group's share of net assets disposed of AEERGEHEFEE
Recognition of interest in a joint venture (note 19) R—EaEbERER (M 19)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHHBARNFIE
Net cash outflow arising on disposal HEEEMNFReRT
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35. COMMITMENTS 35.
(A) OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

Group — As lessee

The Group leases two office properties under operating
lease arrangements. At the reporting date, the Group had
outstanding commitments for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases as
follows:

A
(A) KeHEHS

£E — EBAHEA
AEERBEEHEHREHEMERF
B RBESEH RETATRENES
HEWZ  AEERKREAFEETH
ARSERERNFOT

2013
—E-=F
RMB’000
AREFT
(Restated)
(#e&E7))

Within one year —FK
In the second to fifth year inclusive FFEERF
(BEEZFRERF)

1,478

739

2,217

BRFREMERRAT « T UFFR
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35. COMMITMENTS (Continued) 35. A& (1)
(A) OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (A) R&EHEW=R (E)

(CONTINUED)
Group — As lessor FEH—ERHBEA
The Group leases its investment property under operating AREBREBESEHER THBEEKRE N
lease arrangements, with lease terms ranging from one to Y HEHRRK —FI —_+F1%
twenty years, with an option to renew the lease terms at BB A S A S EMAEEE P 15
the expiry date or at dates as mutually agreed between Mz BEME HEKRFABELREXRARP
the Group and the respective tenants. The terms of the S I BREIR MG EEE
leases generally also require the tenants to pay security HIEFHE o

deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions.

At the reporting date, the Group has contracted with RBEAE AEBEEAFFII KM
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: ORI RN
2013
=%
RMB'000
ARBFT
(Restated)
(ge=:73)
Within one year —FR 10,196
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FERERE
EE_FEREREF) 17,207
After five years ERFUE 9,698
37,101
Company Y-l
As at 31 December 2013 and 2014, the Company had no H= g —FEr_ZT—MNFE+ A
significant operating lease arrangements. =+—H: ' AXRdA EEH FARLIAE
Tk
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35. COMMITMENTS (Continued) 35. &g (1)
(B) CAPITAL COMMITMENT (B) BAFEE
As at 31 December 2014, the Group had the following R-ZE—NFE+-_A=1+—H A£EH
capital commitments: HEARAENT ¢
2013
—E-=F
RMB'000
ARBTF T
Authorised but not contracted for EREBRELD
— Purchase of land use right —EBE T AR 560,000
Contracted for: BEL
— Purchase of land use right — BB T IE AR 404,000
As at 31 December 2013 and 2014, the Company had no RZE—=Fk_ZFT-—MWMF+=H
significant capital commitment. =+—H  RNAREFERERERAGE -
36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. B AR S
(@) In addition to those related party transactions disclosed @@ BT A R oAb b 75 4% BR O B G
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the ARG REBEF W TR
Group had the following related party transactions: Z
2013
=%
RMB'000
ARBF T
(Restated)
€ c3==x7))
Property development and management 18 B B2 R S IR ARIG B U A (M5 1)
service fee income (note i) -
Design service fee m—RER RN B AR ITEE
to a fellow subsidiary (note i) BR7sE A (i) -
Interest expense on loans SAS R A B
from holding companies ERelES) 15,234
Purchase of construction materials and H—RHRZWEAREE TRk
service from a fellow subsidiary 13,621
Handling commission to a company M—HB R ESEHNAR
controlled by a former director S FEER 127
Interest income from the promissory notes [a] B g 4342 A% A &) 3% H /Y
issued by the former ultimate holding JE U 2B B ) 8,
company 380
Rental expense to a related company m—EEBARNHEER 768

BRReHERRLT

. ZT-MEFR
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BT RS SR AR MY aE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)
(@  (Continued)
Notes:

0]

Pursuant to the Property Development and Management Services
Agreement entered into between the Group and its ultimate holding
company on 23 February 2014, the Group has provided certain
project management, sales management and financing advisory
services to fellow subsidiaries since 1 April 2014.

The prices of these services are based on the prevailing market
prices of similar services provided by the Group and are not less
favourable to the Group than that to be provided by the Group to
independent third parties.

Pursuant to the Design Services Agreement entered into between
the Group and its ultimate holding company on 23 February 2014, a
fellow subsidiary has provided design services to the Group since 1
April 2014.

The prices of these services are based on the prevailing market
prices of similar services provided by Group and are not less
favourable to the Group than that to be provided by the Group to
independent third parties.

(b)  Balances with fellow subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.
(© Included in employee benefit expenses are key

LANDSEA GREEN PROPERTIES CO., LTD.

management personnel compensations which comprises
the following categories:

36. BEEAL X5 (&)

@ (&)
MisE -

REBEAEEEGEERARNR T —HFE—
AZ+=B#IWABREREERGH
# o AEER-ZT-NENA-AREBR
MEBARRMIEEEE HEEERMER
AR %

BRI ERERBEARERRRRRE
MBRTHSERMNE X TERAKERS
B =T RHFERE A ELS o

(i  BREAKEESKEERATR-_T—NF_
A=+ = AR RBHE - —RRAR
MEBARB T —MFMA—BRAREE
FRHERET AR -

18 e RS B (B AR RAR IR AN SR B IR L [R 4R R TS
MIRITMSERME T TERAEEEE
SFE = RERERBHOERE o

RIEHAEERR 28

© BIBNERTEEEREEASMHE

W EEM TR

2013

RMB’000
ARETT

Short term employee benefits
Contributions to retirement benefits

2 HAR T A& A

schemes

BRBHETEIRA

e ANNUAL REPORT 2014

4,187

58

4,245




37.

38.

Notes to the Financial Statements

BT RS aR MY aE

GUARANTEE 37. &R
2014 2013
—E-QmE —F-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
(Restated)
(5&=7)
Guarantee in respect of mortgage facilities for FhE T E R 2 LB L& TR (L E (R
certain purchasers 97,347 30,843

The Group has in cooperation with certain financial institutions
arranged mortgage loan facilities for its purchasers of properties
and provided guarantees to secure obligations of such
purchasers for repayments. Such guarantees will be discharged
upon the earlier of (i) issuance of the real estate ownership
certificate which will generally be available within four years
after the purchasers take possession of the relevant property;
and (i) the satisfaction of relevant mortgage loan by purchasers.

AEERZREBEBAEF SEVERERL
BRI ERREY MR FER 2 EREERM
R RKEERERENOBLFHOEREE(—
RENBEFZMSHEDEEAERUFAH
H) RNEREERBERBER(URES
) IRERRR -

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 38. FEME LA
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 RZE—MOFF+—A=+—HARANEEN
December 2014 are as follows: BARFENT :
Place of Nominal value of
incorporation or  issued ordinary share  Percentage of issued/
establishment/ capital/registered paid-up capital held by
operations capital the Company
Name EMHERL BRITLER KARBEHERT/  Principal activities
£ i e RAEE FHEX BWERLH TEER
Directly Indirectly
BHiE M
Cathay Holdings Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each 100 - Investment holding
EREEAR AR ENE 28 BR1ET REEK
China Information Industry Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each - 100 Investment holding
HEESEXARAA N 2B BR1ET REER
Dawning Information Industry PRC HK$152,120,000 - 100 Property leasing and building
(Shenzhen) Limited #* H 152,120,000/ 7T management
BAEBEX(RI)BRAR MERERER
# Limited liability company registered in the PRC # RABEEMEERAR

* For identification purpose only

BREEHERRLR « T UFFR
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38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38. FEME LT (&)

Nominal value of
issued ordinary share  Percentage of issued/

Place of
incorporation or

establishment/  capital/registered paid-up capital held by
operations capital the Company
Name ERLE A ERTLER KARHEWERT/  Principal activities
£ - RAHE ZEMEX EWEXRLH TEREY
Directly Indirectly
B Gk
GOl Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each 100 - Investment holding
B 2B 8RBT REAZK
Green Era Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 100 - Inactive
BERRAERAF ("BVI") 10 8R1%ET PR
EBHRRES
Green Future Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 100 - Investment holding
BERREREBAF B 10 - SRAET REZR
Green Homeland Limited Hong Kong 1 shares of HK$1 each 100 - Investment holding
BRERXEERAT 0 18 BR1ET REZK
Green Theme Limited Hong Kong 1 shares of HK$1 each 100 - Investment holding
B 1% SR1ET REAZK
New Phenomenon Technology Limited ~ BVI 1 share of US$1 100 - Investment holding
EBERARMHS 1% BR1ET REERR
Nanjing Langming Property PRC RMB50,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Development limited** H AR 50,000,000 7T RERR
HRRSEEREERAR"
Hangzhou Langhong Property Limited** ~ PRC RMB100,000,000 - 100  Property development
P NEELE1 YN H AR 100,000,000 7 MERE
Chengdu Langming Property Limited** ~ PRC RMB8,000,000 - 100 Property development
KRS E X AR AR I AR 8,000,000 7T MERE
# Limited liability company registered in the PRC # RABEFEMERAR
* For identification purpose only
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38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38. FEME LT (&)

Nominal value of
issued ordinary share  Percentage of issued/

Place of
incorporation or

establishment/  capital/registered paid-up capital held by
operations capital the Company
Name B E A ERTLER KATRHEWERT/  Principal activities
8 R RAEE SMEX BEWERLL A TERER
Directly Indirectly
HE CiE:3

Shanghai Langming Property PRC RMB50,000,000 - 96 Property development

Development Limited** H AR #50,000,0007T MERE
LERSEEREERAR"
Shanghai Langzhi Property Limited** PRC RMB8,000,000 - 100  Property development
BB EEERAR" R AR #8,000,0007T MERE
Suzhou Langkun Property Limited** PRC RMB100,000,000 - 55 Property development
N B R ER AR R AR 100,000,000 7T MERE
Shanghai Langxin Properties PRC RMBS50,000,000 - 100 Property development

Development Limited** H AR 50,000,000 7T MERE
AR ERERREERAR"
Wuxi Langhua Development Co., Ltd.**  PRC RMB50,000,000 - 100 Property development
BOMEEEERAR" R AR 50,000,000 7T ELES
Nanjing Ganjia Investment Limited** PRC RMB8,000,000 - 100  Property management
HREERERRAR! FE AR H#8,000,0007T MEER
Nanjing Landsea Shenlu Property PRC RMB5,000,000 - 100 Property leasing and building

Management Limited*# F ARE5,000,000 7T management
HRRRRGNEERARAR" MEHERER
Nanjing Landsea Investment PRC RMB5,000,000 - 100 Investment holding

Management Limited*# F AR H5,000,0007C RERR
BRUFREEEERAA"
# Limited liability company registered in the PRC RABEEMEERAR

* For identification purpose only
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38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38. FEME LT (&)

Nominal value of
issued ordinary share  Percentage of issued/

Place of
incorporation or

establishment/  capital/registered paid-up capital held by
operations capital the Company
Name ERUE A ERTELER KATRHEWERTT/  Principal activities
B R RAEE BMEX BEWERLL A TERER
Directly Indirectly
HE CiE:3

Shanghai Landsea Investment PRC US$5,000,000 - 100 Investment holding

Management Limited*# H 5,000,000 7T REER
O EEBBRAR
Shanghai Langmao Investment PRC US$500,000 - 100 Investment holding

Management Limited*# F 500,000 7T RERR
LARKEREERERAR"
Nanjing Langging Property Limited** PRC HK$1,371,480,000 - 100 Property development
HRREERERAR" HE 1,371,480,000/8 7T MERE
Nanjing Landsea Construction and PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100  Decoration and design

Decoration Limited** F AR 1,000,000 75 SR
HRRRRERMBRAR
Zhejiang Langyue Construction and PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100  Decoration and design

Decoration Limited*# H AR 10,000,000 7T 3 B
IR ER AR AR
Wuxi Minglang Property Limited** PRC RMB50,000,000 - 100 Property development
EHRRBRER AR I AR #50,000,0007T MERE
Suzhou Langhong Property Limited** PRC RMB50,000,000 - 100  Property development
BMNAREEERAR" R AR 50,000,0007T MERE
# Limited liability company registered in the PRC RABEEMEERAR

* For identification purpose only
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39. ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 39. BN T
Percentage of
Place of ownership
establishment/ interests
operations FEERERLLE
Name MBS Indirectly Principal activities
8 e B BE FEXK
Hangzhou Wanye Property Co., Ltd.** PRC 34 Property development
MINBHEEXBR AR A I E kS
Suzhou Science and Technology City PRC 20 Property development
Landsea Property Co., Ltd.** s Lk
ENBIE AR EEAR AR
Nanjing China Merchants Xingsheng PRC 30 Property development
Property Development Co., Ltd.*# s I EAE
ARAEEEEEBR AT
# Limited liability company registered in the PRC # R EEREER AR
* For identification purpose only
40. JOINT VENTURE 40. &%
Place of
establishment/ Percentage of
operations ownership
Name EMmE R, interests Principal activities
=B e i B FrEERERIEE FEEK
Indirectly
EE
Nanjing Langrun Property Development PRC 50.1  Property development
Company Limited.** H ek
MR EEEREBRAR
# Limited liability company registered in the PRC ! P B A IR 22 ]

* For identification purpose only
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41. SUBSEQUENT EVENT 41.

In January 2015, the Group entered into a cooperation
agreement with three third parties to set up a project company
for a property development project in Hexi area of Nanjing City,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC. The Group holds 12.97% equity
interests in the project company. The project is intended to build
a green technology residence and the estimated tota
investment of the project is RMB5.5 billion.

LANDSEA GREEN PROPERTIES CO., LTD. ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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RZE—AF— A AEEHEBYE=FFTL
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FETiE— AR EER - EAEE 2%
& 584 AR 5,500,000,000 7T °



Results

Revenue*

Profit before income tax*
Income tax expense*

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interest

ES

LN

BRAT SRR F] *
SRS *
FRE A
EAECT

AREMAE
ElS e a2 g

*Including continuing and discontinued operations

Assets and liabilities
Total assets
Total liabilities

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interest

BERAE
BEE
BafE

5

EAECT
ARERAE
S ds 5

Year ended 31st December
BE+T=-B=1t—HLEE

- HEBRE

2013 2012 20M 2010
—T=F ZT-ZF ZF-F %%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT AR®TR
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(#=51) (g&53) (& 53) (& 535)
33,042 72,532 53,865 605,543
35,735 83,695 65,544 273,947
(7,206) (5,877) (8,178) (4,361)
28,519 77,818 57,366 269,586
28,519 77,818 57,366 269,586
28,519 77,818 57,366 269,586
* B E RIS
At 31st December
Rt=A=+-8H
2013 2012 20M 2010
Bz T "T——% _"IT-TF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETT ARBTRT ARETT AR%®TR
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(#&E51) (g 535) (& 551) (& 55)
2,880,335 815,678 1,544,430 1,556,909
(1,838,144) (387,394) (41,799) (38,802)
1,042,191 428,284 1,502,631 1,518,107
1,032,191 428,284 1,502,631 1,518,107
10,000 - - -
1,042,191 428,284 1,502,631 1,518,107
RRetERRAR « — T MFFR
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Particulars of Investment Property

REMYEFT

INVESTMENT PROPERTY HELD FOR RENTAL HEHEZREMYE
PURPOSE
Approximately
gross floor area Attributable
RYELEEE Nature of interest of

Location (square meters) property the Group Lease term
i B (FEFHK) MEME AEEEEER ANFEH
Dawning Tower, Shahe Road West, 23,736 Commercial 100% Medium-term
Shenzhen High-Tech Park, lease
Nanshan District,
Shenzhen City,
The People’s Republic of China
pEE AR AFIE 23,736 [EHES 100% HR AR AY
YT
[E={iN)

AR F i 8 2 A 7
B KE
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